
TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION
Meeting No.2827

October 7,2020,1:00 PM
175 East 2nd Street,2nd Level, One Technology Genter

Tulsa City Council Chamber

The meeting will be held in the Tulsa City Council Chamber and by videoconferencing
and teleconferencing via GoToMeetinq. an online meeting and web conferencing tool

Commissioners and members of the public may attend the meeting in the Tulsa City
Council Chamber, but are encouraged to attend and participate in the TMAPC meeting
via videoconferencing and teleconferencing by joining from a computer, tablet or
smartphone using the following link:

https ://www.qotomeet.me/C itvOfTu lsa/tmapc-qotomeeti nq -i n-cou nci l-cham bers-
october-7th

Commissioners and members of the public can also dial in using their phone by dialing

United States: +1 1: 711317-3112

Participants must then enter the following Access Gode: 697-381-093

The following Commissioners plan to attend remotely via GoToMeeting, provided that
they may still be permitted to appear and attend at the meeting site, the Tulsa City
Council Chambers, Second Floor of City Hall, at One Technology Center, 175 East
Second Street, Tulsa Oklahoma: Chair Covey, Commissioner Blair, Commissioner
Craddock, Commissioner Kimbrel, Commissioner McArtor, Commissioner Reeds,
Commissioner Ritchey, Commissioner Shivel, Commissioner Van Cleave,
Commissioner Walker

CONSIDER, DISCUSS AND/OR TAKE ACTION ON:

Call to Order:

REPORTS:

Chairman's Report:

Work session Report: A work session is scheduled at 10:00am on October 21,2020
via Zoom to discuss: Plan 66 (Route 66 Master Plan update); Route 66 Bus Rapid Transit
(BRT) Study; and County Comprehensive Plan update for the areas of North Tulsa
County, Turley & West Central Tulsa County.

Director's Report:



1. Minutes of September 2,2020 Meeting No. 2825

2. Minutes of September 16, 2020 Meeting No. 2826

CONSENT AGENDA

All matters under "Gonsent" are considered by the Planning Commission to be
routine and will be enacted by one motion. Any Planning Gommission member
ffiâv, however, remove an item by request.

NONE

PUBLIC HEARINGS

3. CPA-88 KKT Architects. Trev Wilson (CD 4) Location: South of the southwest
corner of East 5th Street South and South Victor Avenue requesting to amend the
Land Use Map designation from "Existing Neighborhood" to "Employment".
(Related to 2-7560) (Continued from July 15, 2020 and August 19, 2020)
(Withdrawn by applicant September 28,20201

4. 2-7560 KKT Architects. Trev Wilson (CD 4) Location: South of the southwest
corner of East 5th Street South and South Victor Avenue requesting rezoning from
RS-4 to lL (Related to CPA-88) (Continued from July 15,2020 and August 19,

2020) (Withdrawn by applicant September 28,20201

5. TCCP-3 consider adoption of an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan of the
Tulsa Metropolitan Area for the unincorporated areas of Tulsa County lying within
the fencelines of Broken Arrow and Sand Springs; and unincorporated areas in

South Tulsa County, lying between 201st Street South and 211th Street South and
in the Keystone area, lying west of the Sand Springs fenceline.

6. Woodward Acres (County) Minor Subdivision Plat, Location: Northwest corner of
East lTlstStreet South and South Harvard Avenue

7. River West Phase lll-lV (CD 2) Authorization for accelerated release of building
permits, Location: Northwest corner of West 23'd Street South and South Jackson
Avenue

8. CPA-90 Russell Muzika (CD 1) Location: West of the southwest corner of East
36th Street North and North Garrison Avenue requesting to amend the Land Use
Map designation from "New Neighborhood" to "Main Street". (Related to 2-7572)

9. 2-7572 Russell Muzika (CD 1) Location: West of the southwest corner of East
36th Street North and North Garrison Avenue requesting rezoning from RM-l to
GS (Related to CPA-90)



l0.2-7573 Tulsa Citv Council (CD 9) Location: Southwest corner of East 38th Street
South and South Peoria Avenue requesting rezoning from RS-3 and CH to MXI-
P-65 and MXI-P-U

ll.2-7574 Arborstone Land Holdinss. AAB Enqineerinq. LLC (CD 6) Location:
North and west of the northwest corner of East 4'1st Street South and South
Garnett Road requesting rezoning from AG to CS

l2.2-7575 Jesse Fulcher (CD 6) Location: North of the northeast corner of East 41st
Street South and South 145th East Avenue requesting rezoning from RS-3 to RS-
4

OTHER BUSINESS

l3.Consider designation of TMAPC member to coordinate with the City Attorney's
office in representing TMAPC in Tulsa County District Court case number CV-
2020-1179, Randle et al v. City of Tulsa, et al.

14. Proposed 2021 TMAPC Meeting Dates

Comm issioners' Comments

ADJOURN

CD = Council District

NOTE: lf you require special accommodation pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act,
please notify the Tulsa Planning Office at 918-584-7526. Exhibits, petitions, pictures, etc.,
presented to the Planning Commission may be received and deposited in case files to be
maintained Tulsa Planning Office at INCOG. All electronic devices must be silenced during the
Planning Commission meeting.

Visit our website at tulsaplanninq.orq email address: esubmit@incoq.orq

TMAPC Mission Statement: The Mission of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission
(TMAPC) is to provide unbiased advice to the City Council and the County Commissioners on
development and zoning matters, to provide a public forum that fosters public participation and
transparency in land development and planning, to adopt and maintain a comprehensive plan
for the metropolitan area, and to provide other planning, zoning and land division services that
promote the harmonious development of the Tulsa Metropolitan Area and enhance and
preserve the quality of life for the region's current and future residents.





From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Thanks Mary and Francis,

We willwithdraw both items from consideration

Let me know when you would like to meet again

Wilkerson, Dwayne

Monday, September 28,2020 10:31 AM
Mary Huckabee; Sawyer, Kim; Miller, Susan

Francis Wilmore
RE: 2-7560 and CPA-BB

z-75ba

FILI OOPY

r, Kim

TULSA

Dwoyne Wilkerson. AS[4. PIA
Principol Plonner I Current Plonning
Tulso Plonning Ofiice
2W.2nd St., Bth Floor I Tulso, OK 74103

18.579.947 5

lhoprQur
STARÏ TI

Fuþrr
ERE

PLANNINO OFFIGS

From: Mary Huckabee <MHuckabee@cwlaw.com>
Sent: Monday, September 28,2O2O 1-0:L5 AM
To: Wilkerson, Dwayne <DWilkerson@incog.org>
Cc: Francis Wilmore <Francis.Wilmore@kkta rchitects.com>
Subject: Z-7560 and CPA-88

Dwayne,

My client would like to please withdraw the following applications: 2-7560 and CPA-88. They intend to reapply with a revised
plan. l'll be in touch regarding our new applications. The applicant I believe was technically KKT, so l've cc'd Francis Wilmore who
can respond affirming our decision to withdraw. Thank you for your assistance.

Mary Huckabee I Partner
CONNER & WINTERS, LLP
4000 One Williams Center I Tulsa, OK74172-0148
P 918.586.5715 lM 918.902.4844
MHuckabee@cwlaw.com I v-card I bio I cwlaw.com

This message and any attachments may contain information that is highly confidential, privileged, and exempt from
disclosure. Any recipient other than the intended recipient is advised that any dissemination, distribution, copying, or other use of
this message is strictly prohibited.

1

cpe-g(

3.1





Subject:

Kim

TULSA

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Thanks Mary and Francis,

We will withdraw both items from consideration.

Let me know when you would like to meet again.

Wilkerson, Dwayne
Monday, September 28,2020 10:31 AM
Mary Huckabee; Sawyer, Kim; Miller, Susan

Francis Wilmore
RE:7-7560 and CPA-BB

ê úû-3(

FILT COPY

Dwoyne Wilkerson, AS[4, PLA
Principol Plonner I Current Plonning
Tulso Plonning Office
2tN.2nd St., Bth Floor i Tulso, OK 24]03

18.579.947s

Our tull¡rc
HERÍ

pmn¡NtNo oFFtËE

From: Mary Huckabee <MHuckabee@cwlaw.com>
Sent: Monday, September 28,2020 10:1"5 AM
To: Wi I ke rso n, Dwayne <DWil kerso n @ i ncog.o rg>

Cc: Fra ncis Wilmore <Francis.Wilmore@kkta rchitects.com>
Subject: Z-7560 and CPA-88

Dwayne,

My client would like to please withdraw the following applications: 2-7560 and CPA-88. They intend to reapply with a revised
plan. I'll be in touch regarding our new applications. The applicant I believe was technically KKT, so l've cc'd Francis Wilmore who
can respond affirming our decision to withdraw. Thank you for your assistance.

Mary Huckabee I Partner
CONNER & WINTERS, LLP
4000 One Williams Center lTulsa, OK74172-0148
P 918.586.5715 I M 918.902.4844
MHuckabee@cu4alucam lv-card I bio lcwlaw.com

This message and any attachments may contain information that is highly confidential, privileged, and exempt from
disclosure. Any recipient other than the intended recipient is advised that any dissemination, distribution, copying, or other use of
this message is strictly prohibited.

1

z-75bÒ

4.1





TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Sloff Reporl
October 7,2O2O

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Prepored by Robi Jones, rjones@incoo.orçr ,918.579.9472

llem
TCCP-3 consider odoption of on omendment to lhe Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use Plon
for unincorporoled oreos within the fencelines of Broken Arrow ond Sond Springs, olong with lhe
unincorporoted oreos of South Tulso County ond Keystone.

Bockground

The Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use Plon will serve os o guide fo decision mokers when
determining Lond Use decisions in unincorporoted oreos of Tulso CounIy. The following
unincorporoted oreos within the fenceline of these municipolities were odopted by Tulso

Metropoliton Areo Plonning Commission on June 19, 2019 ond opproved by Tulso County
Commission on August ì5,2019: Bixby, Glenpool, Jenks. Owosso, ond Skiotook (TCCP-I).
Additionolly, the unincorporoted oreos within the fenceline of the following municipolities were
odopted by Tulso Metropoliton Areo Plonning Commission on August 21,2019 ond opproved by
Tulso County Commission on September9,2019: Collinsville ond Sperry (TCCP-2).

Comprehensive Lond Use Mops ond occomponying descriptions of Lond Use Designotions hove
been prepored for odoption if the following oreos within The unincorporoted oreos of Tulso

County:

. Broken Arrow (Adopted by Broken Arrow Cily Council August 6,2019 - Resolulion 1255)

. Sond Springs (Adopted by Sond Springs June 26, 2017 - Resolulion 17-25)

. South Tulso County (the southernmost portion of unincorporoted Tulso Counly, lying
between 201't Street South ond 2l ltr. Streei South)

. Keystone (the Keystone oreo of unincorporoted Tulso County, lying west of the Sond
Springs fenceline)

The oreos we ore colling South Tulso County ond Keystone ore oreos within Tulso Counly which
were never included in the Tulso County Melropoliton Areo Comprehensive Plon. Both oreos hove
received public input into the desired Lond Use Plon ond ore being considered for odoplion ot
this time. Public engogement wos through community surveys, input through on odvisory teom,
ono-on-one discussions with community members, sociol medio, ond virtuol communily meetings.

Remoining ore the oreos of Norlh Tulso County, Turley, ond West Cenirol Tulso Counly. We
onticipote o work session in October with o request for odoplion in November. lt is onticipoted
thot the process of completing the Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use Plon will be completed
by December 2020.

Sloff Recommendol¡on

Stoff recommends thot TMAPC odopt on omendment to the Comprehensive Plon of the Tulso
Metropoliton Areo for the unincorporoted oreos of Tulso County lying within the fencelines of
Broken Arrow ond Sond Springs, olong with the unincorporoted oreos of South Tulso Counly ond
Keystone.

Attochmenl(s)
Exhibit l: Mop of Tulso County Comprehensive Plons Coveroge Areos
Exhibit 2: Tulso County Comprehensive Plon for unincorporoted oreo in Broken Arrow's Fenceline

lol17

2 W 2nd St, 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74ì03 | 918.584.7526 | www.incog.org 5.\



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Reporl
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Exhibit 3: Lond Use Mop for unincorporoled oreo in Broken Arrow's Fenceline
Exh¡bit 4: Tulso County Comprehensive Plon for unincorporoted oreo in Sond Springs' Fenceline
Exhibit 5: Lond Use Mop for unincorporoted oreo in Sond Springs Fenceline
Exhibit ó: Lond Use Designotions for unincorporoted oreos outside of ollfencelines in Tulso Counly
Exhibit 7: Lond Use Mop for unincorporoted oreo in South Tulso County
Exhibit B: Lond Use Mop for unincorporoted oreo in KeysTone

2ot 17

2 W 2nd St,8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.7526 | u¿rvw.incog.org 5.7-



TULSÄ TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLÄNNING OFFICE

Exhibit I

,, Poge 3 of 17

2 W 2nd St, Bth Floor i Tulso, OK 74103 : ?ì8.584.752ó ! ','rvwv.incog.org

16lhs ñ

136hSlñTulsa County
Adopted

Comprehensive Plans
Coverage Areas

150fsr{

14&h 9tN

r36rh srN

12&h 6t ñ

t6rhst N

1ælh 3rN

96ih9 N

ô6rh sl N

76rh I N

slh sr N

4qh 9N

3Sh Si N

1llhg

st

SL

K
E

6

I
z
b

173ì
ENEE

71$ìSl

¡tssr

gtd5r

101srSr

l51sr9t

10lsl9l

17t$S

181slSl

bgÐd

I ei,¡y

I BmkènAror

I conimvnla

I Gþnæd

f rents

Librty

ã.!* roe¡
!uoøæ
[æass
tr sand spinsg

f, sawta

ffi sr.r*
J spery
--- -iru*

BixÞy (20011

..__ BrckenArow (2@3, 2012)

çoilnsvile {200E)

. Glênpool {2017)

J.n(s {2014J

.. tu.3e 12014)

Sand Spñngr (20171

I sâpulF (2014)

skhol {æ16)

spB,ry (æ13)

q6üdE(19761

' : usti.lg(1976)

[] u"raro{rszo)
,. ..: Dst¡cl24 (19?ô)

.¡; ostiazs ¡szo¡
No Cohprêhsilv. Plan

. i Nd Tuba&unty

..,r P¡a^ (19&i

I

t ?

&6 æø19

e:¿åd *E r Es *frt

I
3 6

E
!
h

0

¡

ì

I

'ttlrl
ll
ii
il

I

I

i.- l

5,3



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Sloff Reporl
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANN¡NG OFFICE

Exhibit 2

The@seryesasatoolfortheCitytocommunicatetheintendedfuture
land uses throughout Broken Arrow. Since 1997, the City has used a 'Land Use lntensity System'
(LU¡S) that provides structure for the Future Development Guide. This system recognizes that land

uses with similar intensities (density of development on a site) are more likely compatible than land

uses with different intensities.

4o117

DESIGNATION
LAND USE INTENSITY SYSTEM (LUIS) CLASSIFICATIONS -
BROKEN ARROW NEXT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Level 1

RURAL

RESIDENTIAL

Level l- represents the lowest ¡ntensity of land use in Broken Arrow. lt is used

primarily in the non-urbanized areas of Broken Arrow or to reflect established

areas of very low-density residential development that may be expected to

remain as an exception in urbanized areas. The principal uses in this level are

either agriculturally related or single-family homes on large lots. A request for R-

2, RS-z, or RS-3 zoning in the Level L may be in accordance with the

Comprehensive Plan, provided the site for the rezoning request is located

adjacent to an arterial street, or is part of an existing R-2, RS-2, or RS-3 area which

is located adjacent to an arterial street. Due to the uses allowed in this level of

intensity, areas designated as Level L should generally be kept free of significant

vehicular traffic generators and noisy or polluting uses. ln addition, special

consideration should be given to the manner in which Level L uses abut the other

levels of higher intensity.

2tN 2nd St, 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | ?18.584.7526 | www.incog.org 5cl



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Level 2

URBAN

RESIDENTIAL

Level 2 represents the predominant character of development in Broken Arrow.

This designation is principally used for areas of typical residential subdivision

development and is the base level recommended for the urbanized area of Broken

Arrow.

ln addition to single-family detached homes, two-family units and neighborhood

office parks may be in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. For an RD

rezoning request to be considered to be in accordance with the Comprehensive

Plan, the site must be located adjacent to an arterial street or be part of an

expansion of an RD area which is located adjacent to an arterial street. ln addition,

the streets proposed to serve the RD area must connect directly to an arterial

street. None of the traffic from the RD area to the arterial street will pass on a

street which contains single-family detached structures.

Similarly, a request for ON rezoning is in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan,

provided the site for the rezoning request is located adjacent to an arterial street

or is part of an expansion of an existing ON area which is located adjacent to an

arterial street. None of the traffic from the ON area shall utilize roads that pass

through a single-family residential area prior to reaching an arterial street.

Poge 5 of 17

2 W 2nd St,8th Floor I Ïulscr, OK 74103 | ?18.584.7526 | www.incog.org 5.



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Sloff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

DESIGNATION
LAND USE TNTENSTTY SYSTEM (LUIS) CLASSIFICATIONS -
BROKEN ARROW NEXT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Level 3

TRANSITIONAL

AREA

Level 3 represents a transition zone from strictly residential development to

strictly non-residential development. As such, the primary uses for Level 3 are

higher density residential uses and lower density employment uses. This level of

intensity should be located adjacent to an arterial street. The principal uses in this

district would be higher density single-family detached residential (RS-4), single-

family attached (duplexes and townhouses), multi-family apartments,

neighborhood offices, and planned office parks.

Although intended primarily for attached residential dwellings and office

development, single-family detached dwellings are permitted in RD and RM

Zoning Districts. lt may also be appropriate for R-2, RS-2, and RS-3 zoning districts

to occur within Level 3 under the following circumstances:

The Proposed R-2, RS-2, or RS-3 zoning in Level 3 is an extension of an

adjacent R-2, RS-2, district and would not preclude access to a potent¡al

higher intensity use from an arterial street, or

The proposed R-2, RS-2, or RS-3 zoning is part of a planned unit

development with attention given to screening and buffering the single

family uses from potential higher intensity uses.

A request for DF rezoning can be in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan,

provided the site for the rezoning request is located within the Planning Area of

the Broken Arrow Downtown Master Plan (between Elm Place, Kenosha Street,

Washington Street, and 9th Street). ln addition, the size and scope of the proposed

rezoning is compatible with the surrounding land uses and meets the design

standards and objectives of the Broken Arrow Downtown Master Plan.

O

a

Level 4

Commercial/
Employment

Nodes

Level 4 represents the typical local commercial and office intensity of land use in

Broken Arrow. The Level 4 classification generally designates commercial or office

activities that have developed in nodes around arterial street intersections.

Examples of uses would include free-standing commercial buildings, small-scale

shopping centers, and office developments permitted in Level 3. No residential

uses are permitted within Level 4, except for those designated in the

Comprehensive Plan as special district overlays with a PUD and in the NM and CM

zoning districts. ln these areas RM is allowed. The special district overlay, CM and

DM areas are intended to be more concentrated areas of retail commercial and

mixed-use office in a walkable setting, similar to the downtown area but at a

smaller scale.

Pooe ó of l7

2W 2nd St,8lh Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 I ?18.584.752ó | www.incog.org 5b



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
Oclober 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANN¡No OFFICE

DES¡GNATION
LAND USE tNTENSTTY SYSTEM (LUIS) CLASSIFICATIONS -
BROKËN ARROW NEXT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Level 5

Downtown Area
(Not in Unincorporated)

Level 5 is intended to represent a development intensity and style that is typical

of downtown Broken Arrow. The principal uses of land in this level is for mixed-

use office, retail commercial, and service commercial development on a small

scale south of the Downtown Residential Overlay District area.

Requests for zoning districts designated "possible" may be in accordance with the

Comprehensive Plan if such development is undertaken according to a planned

unit development and such development addressing the need to avoid height

impact, if any, on single family detached dwellings that may adjoin the

development.

Level 6

Regional

Commercial/

Employment
(Not in Unincorporated)

Level 6 represents an opportunity to develop regionally significant and highway

oriented commercial and employment nodes in Broken arrow. The Level 6

classification is for a mixture of medium to high intensity commercial and

employment uses in the vicinity of major transportation corridors. Nodes along

Elm Place, Aspen Avenue, and Kenosha Street, as well as key interchanges along

the Broken Arrow Expressway and the Creek Turnpike, are all appropriate areas

for Level 6 development. Typical uses could include large shopping centers, big

box retailers, commercial, automotive, and office/employment centers.

lndustrial Light (lL) would be considered in accordance with the Comprehensive

Plan under the following conditions:

o Done in association with a Planned Unit Development (PUD), and

¡ Such sites adjoin the BA Expressway, Muskogee Turnpike, Highway 5L, or

Creek Turnpike or existing industrial parks, and

o Such sites are reached by arterial streets that do not pass through

residential areas, and

o Such sites with high visibility from roadways have the appearance of a

quality corporate campus or business park; feature quality landscaping,

masonry building facades and no outdoor storage of materials; and are

carefully reviewed as to proposed architectural styles, landscaping,

location of service areas, and according to the use of Planned Unit

Development procedures, and

o Such sites that may adjoin residential areas are thoroughly screened and

buffered from such areas by landscaping and/or less intense land uses.

Poge 7 oI 17

2 W 2nd Sl, 8lh Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.7526 | www.incog.org 5.J



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPIÀNNING OFFICS

DESIGNATION
LAND USE TNTENSTTY SYSTEM (LU¡S) CLASSIFICATIONS -
BROKEN ARROW NEXT COMPREHENS¡VE PLAN

Level 7

Major lndustrial
(Not in Un¡ncorporated)

Level 7 represents the highest intensity of land use in Broken Arrow. The

predominant land uses in Level 7 would be industrial and major employment

facilities. Heavy commercial uses, such as those permitted in the CH zoning

district, may be in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan provided the site for

the rezoning request is located along a frontage road next to a limited access

highway or is part of an expansion of an existing CH area which is located along a

frontage road next to a limited access highway.

DESIGNATION
OTHER LAND USES IDENTIFIED THAT DO NOT FALL WITHIN THE

DIFFERENT INTENSITY LEVELS INCLUDE:

Greenway /
Floodplain

Areas that fall within the FEMA designated floodplain.

Public Recreation
(Not in Unincorporated)

City of Broken Arrow parkland

Private

Recreation
(Not in Unincorporated)

Recreation areas such as pr¡vate HOA parks or golf courses that are not open to

the general public.

Public / Semi-

Public
Public facilities, public schools, and cemeteries.

A-l : Agricullurol Dlshlct Allowed
RE: Resldenliol Estote Distulct Allowed

AllowedRS-l: SF Resldenl¡ol D¡sk¡cl

Posslble Allowed PossibleR-2: St Res¡dentiol Dlshlct

RS-2: St Resldentiol Dlshlct Posslble Allowed Possible

RS-3: SF Resldentlol Distrlct Possible Allowed Posslble

Allowed AllowedRS-4: St Resldentlol Dishicl
Posslble AllowedRD: Residenllql Duplex Dlshict

Allowed Possible Poss¡bleRM: Resldenllol MF D¡shlct

AllowedRMH: Resldenllol Mobile Home
Dlslrlct

Allowed AllowedNM: Neighborhood Mlxed-Use
Dlslrlct

Posslble AllowedCM: Communily rúl¡xed-Use Dlsh¡ct

AllorvedDM: Downtown Mlxed-Use Core
Dlshlct

AllowedDt: Downlown Frlnge Dlshlcl
Posslble Allowed Allowed PosslbleON: Off¡ce Nelghborhood Dlshict

Allowed Posslble AllowedCN: Commerc¡ol Neighborhood
Dlslrlct

Allowed Posslble AllowedCG: Commerciol Generol Dlslrlct
Allowed Poss¡bleCH: Commerclol Heow Dishlct
Posslble Allowedl[: lndush¡ol tlght Dish¡ct

AllowedlH: lndusklol Heovy Dlsùlct

Level 4 Level 5 Level 6 Level 7zoning Distr¡cts Level I Level 2 Level 3

PoqeBoflT

2W 2nd Sl,8lh Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 I 918.584.7526 | www.incog.org 5,y



;i.: ..,......;
i: f ,':'"r' "ì,' ll i.

TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Exhibit 3

!

=
Él
o

I

I

i

o

ö

o

t'
I

g

llEiNT Comprehensave Plan

Broken Arrow, Oklahoma
Tulsa County Fêncêline

Lând Us Map

f]] BrokonAnø FenøIne

ffi reverr Trsns(onâlArsa

I Levêt4 - comerciaÆnpioymnl Ndês

I Level 5 -ONntMArcå'

I Level6'Re0¡onalEmploymenÍCollllMal'

I Level 7 -Majorlndßlñal'

I GreenwayFbdpbln

I Pubtts Rær€dh'
Privale Roorsâtion"

I Publidsem'Publ¡c

'Not¡1 Unimryoraled

Broken Arfow

BþkenAffi Gty Unils

l.êgêîd

ii)

I A*anss River

i:,1,, 1ûYeàr Fl@dphil

C 91sl Si/wqchlnglon

É l0lsl

Ellllh sl/tlorence

E'l2lst St¡¡luscon 5t

E l31rt St/JdrÞêrSt

E l4t!tSl S

E lSlstStS

BXBY FENCLINE

Poge 9 of 1Z

2W 2nd St, Bth Floor å Tulso, OK 74103 I 9ì8.584.752ó I wvwv.incog.org 5.1



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Exhibit 4

Poge 10 of 17

DESIGNATION LAND USE DESCRIPTION - SAND SPRINGS 2O3O LAND USE MASTER PLAN

Commercial

The Commercial Land Use District represents areas of retail trade and services.

Typically, these areas are located around nodes of arterial street intersections or

in some cases, at intersections of collectors and arterials. Commercial Districts can

also be found in corridors that have an established commercial use pattern. The

Commercial District includes uses that range from small neighborhood

convenience shopping areas, single free-standing buildings, big box retailers,

restaurants, automotive services centers, and other similar retail uses. Residential

Multi-Family uses may be allowed where deemed appropriate as increased

density provides support for commercial areas.

Access is a key factor in the location of Commercial Districts. A site w¡th poor

access or that is difficult to get to is prone to fail; whereas a site with good and

safe access will stand a better chance of survival. ln all cases of commercial

development, access management should be carefully controlled with design

treatments such as mutual or shared access drives and cross connections

easements or agreements.

lndustrial/
Regional

Employment

The lndustrial/Regional Employment Land Use District represents the highest

intensity of Land use in Sand Springs. The Plan calls for industrial uses to be

targeted around existing patterns of industrial activity. Most of Sand Springs'

current industrial activity includes light industrial, warehousing, storage facilities,

small manufacturing shops, and numerous larger manufacturing and industrial

uses. Some of the larger uses are in the manufacturing of steel pipes, fabrication,

and oil refinement industries. Historically, Sand Springs has been a manufacturing

community full of industry, but with economic, technological, and numerous

other factors, the community has seen a downturn in industrial industry jobs in

recent years. Some higher intensity commercial uses may be appropriate in the

lndustrial/Regional Employment Use District. These may include higher intensity

auto and truck repair, truck rental facilities, lumber yards, etc., but other

commercial uses, when located in appropriate areas, should be considered as

many industrial areas are being cleared for redevelopment or are being

underutilized.

There are numerous areas located within the City of Sand Springs fenceline that

might be appropriate for additional industrial development or that are currently

being used for lndustrial purposes. These properties have been displayed on the

Land Use Map for the purpose of identifying additional areas of industrial growth.

2 W 2nd St,8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.752ó | wrvw.incog.org 5. lo



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPTANNING OFFICE

DESIGNATION LAND USE DESCRIPTION _ SAND SPRINGS 2CI30 LAND USE MASTER PLAN

Parks /
Recreational

The Parks/Recreational category generally identifies land area already being used

for public parks. The plan does not identify allof the private neighborhood parks

or other private recreational uses. ln general, parks should be situated

conveniently to allow access to all citizens in the community and be socially

equitable.

For the most part, Sand Springs citizens are geographically well served by park

facilities with one notable exception, the southeastern part of the City. ln this

area, there has not been any substantial residential growth or development that

has garnered the need for an additional park facility in this location. Additionally,

a large majority of the land in this area is owned by one property owner who has

not determined how the land might be used in the future. Further, the location of

Chandler Park (County Owned) does provide a location for some of the residents

in the area to utilize. The City encourages newer subdivisions to create

neighborhood parks to be maintained by private homeowners' associations,

which offers people in those particular neighborhoods a place for recreation and

to socialize.

Public parks require local funding for operations and maintenance. Currently, the

City is not fiscally able to take on or acquire additional park land. Additionally,

suitable tracts of land are becoming more difficult to locate and the cost of

acquisition is a concern.

Public /
Institutional/

Quasi Public

The Public/lnstitutional/Quas¡ Public land use category includes government and

quasigovernmental facilities. Uses that may be found in this category include

public buildings, schools, and/or utility substations.

Since it is difficult to predict with any degree of certainty where public and

institutional uses might locate, as many of them rely on land donations or

acquisition using public dollars, the Plan does not specifically identify where future

public uses might occur. Rather, the public uses shown on the plan exist and are

dedicated for a specific public purpose.

This category does not include churches, as they are perm¡tted in zoning districts

with a specific use permit.

Poge ll of 17

2W 2nd St, 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.752ó | www.incog.org 5. ll



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Sloff Reporl
October 7,2O2O

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

DESIGNATION LAND USE DESCRIPTION - SAND SPRINGS 2O3O LAND USE MASTER PLAN

Residential

The Resident¡al category is typically comprised of single-family neighborhoods of

varying lot sizes and represents the lowest intensity of all the use categories

outside of Agricultural Districts. Dwelling unit densities within the Residential

category generally range from 2 to 5 units per acre but density can be as little as

l- or fewer per acre. Planned Unit Developments may also be found in the

Residential land use category and may contain various intensities of residential

housing. ln most cases, the Residential use category is buffered from higher

intensity uses such as Commercial with the Transitional use district.

Sewer is the dependent variable in terms of the type of density the neighborhood

may have. Densities within future developments within the Residential category

will depend greatly on the availability of sanitary sewer service. Most of the higher

density single family neighborhoods can be found near available sanitary sewer

service. One area of concern is the need to expand or extend sewer services into

areas of potential growth to allow for more development options and densities to

occur. Other areas of the fenceline area may not develop to densities any greater

than 1 or 2 dwelling units per acre because of the expense of bringing sewer to

these locations. As a result of the many variables involved, the Residential

category was not broken apart into two different categories, such as rural or

urban.

Land availability can be an issue within Sand Springs as large parcels of land are

owned by various entities, trusts, and individuals. However, there is available land

for development, but unlike other communities, Sand Springs does have some

geological, topographical and developmental challenges. None of which are

insurmountable but do require additional prep work and design considerations

compared with other communities in the Tulsa Metropolitan Area.

ln some instances, duplexes or townhomes may be appropriate in the Residential

land use category. The use of these residential densities can provide for more

housing stock while utilizing less land in more developed areas. These uses can

serve as good transitional housing when located near higher intensity uses or

provide for redevelopment/infill housing opportunit¡es when located in proper

locations. Considering this, duplex and townhome uses may be appropriate in

some locations within the Residential land use district.

12 of 17

2W 2ad St, 8lh Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.7526 | www.incog.org
t IL



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

DESIGNATION LAND USE DESCRIPTION - SAND SPRINGS 2O3O LAND USE MASTER PLAN

Transitional

This designation represents a transit¡on zone from single-family residential

development to non-residential development. Typical uses found in the transitional

use zone include attached housing (e.g. duplexes, apartments, townhouses) and office

uses. This district would not be suitable for multiple story office buildings if adjacent

to single-family neighborhoods. Office areas within this district would include planned

office complexes and single use office facilities. Additionally, some commercial uses

might be deemed acceptable in transitional districts should the uses be found

compatible and of low impact to adjacent properties.

Transitional zones generally act as a buffer between higher intensity uses such as

commercial and lower intensity uses such as single-family residential. Additionally,

there is normally a connection to an arterial street from the Transitional District.

Transitional Districts can also be integrated with planned unit developments as part

of a larger neighborhood master plan.

Poge 13of l7

2W 2nd St. 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.7526 | www.incog.org 5't3



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Reporl
October 7,2020

Tulso Counly Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPTAHNING OFFICE

Exhibit 5

$and Epdngs 2030
Sand Spring., Oklehoma
Tulaã Counfy Fsncallno

lånd U¡e ll.p

16 Sll
Td L.irnd

E s.rd sDr¡nF Fqpl¡it
il Sddsplrg!cilyumb

i.-llaaaoncy
Ø lotvønacrî*n
! cmmruat

I mænounogma mgoymt
! nnrcparsprø

I touaûøtlubtto
il:¡l tu#dd
!rmnmr
'M ln thhoowdd

W 2Ll Slg

w Slri 31 5

w 5lltlts

l
a
s

t :
€'

t
Ì
F

ô

Poqe l4of l7

2 W 2nd St, 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 a 918.584.7526 I www.incog'org 5r*



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Sloff Report
October 7,2020

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Exhibit ó

Tu lsa Cou nty La nd Use Designations

Exhibil Z

Poge 15 of l7

2 W 2nd St, Blh Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 , 9ì8.584.752ó j 
",'r'"rnv.incog.org

Color Lond Use Designotion
RU RAL RESr DENTTAL/AGRTCU LTU RAL:

Lond thot is sporsely occupied ond used primorily for
formlond, ogriculturol uses, ond single-fomily homes on

lorge lots. Residentiol lols generolly ronge from one-
holf ocre or greoter ond moy use on-site services

where public utiliiies ore not ovoiloble.
RURAL COMMERCIAL:

This designotion provides for o mix of retoil cnd service
uses thol ore typicolly needed by residents in rurol

oreos ond surrounding ogriculturol operctions.
Developments in Rurol Commerciol designoted oreos
moy include o mix of uses, recognizing thot seporotion

of uses is not procticol in o rurol setting.

PARKS AND OPEN SPACE:
Lond or woter oreos generolly free from development,

They ore used primorily for pork ond recreotion
purposes but moy olso indicote open spoces reserved

for noturol resource conservotion.

PUBLTC / SEM|-PUBLTC:
This designolion includes uses thot ore educotionol,

governmentol, or institutionol in noture.

INDUSTRIAL
This lond use cotegory is designed to occommodote

industriol uses os well os wholescling, worehousing, cnd
distribulion focilities, which tend to require lorge

buildings ond genercte more lorge-truck troffic thon
other types of lond uses.

5. 15



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Stoff Report
October 7,2O2O

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICS

o
0

3

i lslslslsi

t9lsl St S

20lst Sl S

i

I
I

lst St 3

IY

ì

o

o

ì
OKfoIULGEE COU!TÏ

Þ

z

I
.J.- -*- - f-

I ,,,"
1Ædc¿Lt&

â !

I

!

fdtð tuñly tud¿¡/

I RurslCommrrcbl

I PerdopetrsFæ
I PrbrÞb!tubüc

D!tç; rMufiar

Ir//4161eü FtMptâh

Corpdatê llmlb
8ùbt Fdæ!re

trftr:

Õ'

tr

Legond

FúIT Låñd Uæ

...¡i

o

211thSf

E 08il)

u û qo o

I

I

l

't
.. . .9.

!

o
f

I

:

j

South Tulsa Gounty - Future Land Use

Poge 1ó of 17

2W Znd St, 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 | 918.584.7526 | www.incog.org ã f(t



TULSA TMAPC Public Heoring Sloff Report
October 7,2O2O

Tulso County Comprehensive Lond Use PlonPLANNING OFFICE

Exhibit 8

Poge 17 of 17

3

\
L

, w3161Sl S t--

I
ul
at

Ël
al

I

:l
srs

ú¡

W 61èl sf TUL$À CI'UÀ1Y

,

Lsgsnd

ffir"vø"
[---] ruæ mty awnoary

Futurå Land Us

I tud tunûßdBr

ll Paft6dø€n&srô

I Puþfi6omtPúbrþ

iJ , rø*¡¡r¡
f/,//. 1æYqnñþi^
CorÞont. LlmltB

ss¡d Spri@ Fcndine

E l,ántrd Feædre

+

Keytsone - Future Land Use

2W 2nd St, 8th Floor I Tulso, OK 74103 : 918.584.7526 I wrvw.incog.org 5. I ì





TMre
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonning Commission

Case : Woodward Acres

Hearing Date: October 7,2020

Case Report Prepared bv:

Nathan Foster

Owner and Applicant lnformation

Applicant: Select Design, Ryan McCarty

Owner. DD&R Properties LLC

Location Map:
(shown with County Commission
Districts)

'!¿
+. -..
..t -

Applicant Proposal:

Minor Subdivision Plat

8 |ots, 1 block, 20 7 âcres

Location: Northwest corner of East 171st

Street South and South Harvard Avenue

Zonins: AG (Agriculture) Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the minor
subdivision plat

Gountv Commission District: 3

Commissioner Name: Ron Peters

EXHIBITS: Site Map, Aerial, Plat Submittal

b. l



MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT

Woodward Acres - (County)
Northwest corner of East 171st Street South and South Harvard Avenue

This plat consists of I lots, 1 dlock on 20 + acres.

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) met on August 6,2020 and provided
the following comments:

1. Zoning: Proposed lots conform to the requirements of the AG district.

2. Addressing: Addresses provided by INCOG must be shown on face of the plat.

3. Transportation & Traffic: Approved as submitted.

4. Sewer/Water: On-site sewage disposal. Water service to be provided by Creek
County Rural Water District #2. Any improvements to existing water lines must
be approved through the RWD.

5. Stormwater, Drainage, & Floodplain: Approved as submitted.

6. Utilities: Telephone, Electric, Gas, Gable, Pipeline, Others: All release
letters have been received. O¡l & Gas certificate was submitted.

Staff recommends APPROVAL of the minor subdivision plat subject to the
conditions provided by TAC and the requirements of the Subdivisions
Regulations.

6.2



AG.R

AG

P -846

IIIIII

SUBJECT TRACT

AG G

I

400
Feet
2000

H
WOODWARD

ACRES
17-13 29

N

Q3+



4002000
Feet

Subject
Tract

WOODWARD
ACRES

17-13 29

Note: Gnphic overlays may not precisely.*:::"::::::,:::"::,:"::"i;"Lq
ÉJ



o
o

I6
èoI
sÊ
o

U)

d9

9{ls
FÈ
-$

I
l?ftt¡il1¡tü

7

fU¡|mXr¡

s g'68"w

5

fl{ ll?ltÌül¡

I
ffilfttrdt

1

3

ilHlúSüi

I
15'l IIIûdt

Iuw@4w@ÈØ

Easf lTlst Sfreef Soullr

PRIVATE SUBDIVISION

Woodward Acres
BISE

Lqse[q THIS SUBDIVSION IS DESIGNEO
IN ACCORDANCEWTH

ú
ASUBDIVISION IN fU!$COUNTY, STATE OF OKWOMA. BEINGAPMT OF IHE SOUTH HALF
(M)OF ThE SOUTHEAST OUARTER (Sg4)OF THE SOUTHÊAST OUARTER (Ss4) OF SECTTON
MNTY.NINE (æ), TOMSHIP SEVENTEEN (17) NORTH, WGE IHIRTEEN I3) AST OF THE

INDIAN BASEAND MÊRIÐÁN ACCORDING TO THE U.S. GOVERNMEÑT SURVEYTHEREOF.

ENVIRONMENTAL OUIIW
(ODEQ) RÊOUIREMENTS FOR

MINIMUM LOTSIZE FOR

1

17

¡FOR EACH LOT

Unplattecl

N 88.4737" E
'l 32t.oo' 'r#ig-F"

,4\/t\
VôY2

EE--

tt,o
G
lt,
l¡¡
Io
o

\
e,
0'o

at,

'Dñveway Sunmaryr Tabae

. _ _:o:o_4_, -

MNIüUMPIÞESEÊDRVflAY
LæÂTfr

3

8

rcE: MINIMUM HÞÊ sLoPE = 0 ßß

'B'

FINAL PßT
CÉRTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

HREW CÊilIry IHAI IBLS PLÁI MS ¡PMOEO

THESFI€GTNECdNTYCLER

POINT OFglrffi æRM soFff roN æ, Tnr{, f, rs
FdXDùILRüDSHrc

Ê!Þ!!y!9!gqgtat¡stiæ
PRV IESUBOVTSTONæNlÁrNSEGHI(qLOÌS NOEl)aLq
GRNSBoVSTON ÆA A71 0190 S/æ.mAeS

Bas¡s of Bearinqs

Benchmark

esÍE NGS OPUS $LUI|ONS Emf (MVD 1S)

Address

AÐRSSHM ON IHS Páî]SACdRATEÂIIHÊ TIüETBE
PúI WÆ F¡@ AO*E$ IS SUOJECf IO *ANGE ÂND
SNdLD NTER AE RELIED ON IN PUCE @ IFE L6AL

Floodpla¡n Data

Owner/ Devôlgpgr
¡M PROPERIIES. LLC

5716WSCHARLÉSIil $REEÍ
B@ ARW, * 74011

PHONÊ (913)231-Sæ

MR @æMRMRIN6 ME NED UN ûE OUHOMA SATE PWE
@ROIMIESYSEM, (Sfi qN). NOtrHAMER]ùN MTUM 1ß
(Mæ3) USING IHE SUTH LINÉ OÊ IHE W4 OF SøION 29 AS S 9c|{ergl

mrlz uNosùruEYNG LLC

2017 WS !1Sf SIREET

Eng¡neer
ENGINEEREDBY æSIGN, PLLC

æLC]TY *LMOMA 7315
PþN€r {@) 294æ

åh¿@ei0r@¡6btr6 on.rc

#-
lRÈT-

Monumentation
SET 3A' IrcN PN W GGN 'RITZ M' dP æ M MIL W
'FRIÍZ A@' WSER AT ALI @NErc UNLES MIÐ ANO

re *V€ &MNEO A W BY IHE FEDEùL ÊMERGErcY
MANreEMENI ÆENCY, FL@ ]NSUMrcE ME MÂP. IULS
æUNIY, @OMA UNIN@POfuTEO ÂRAS, æMMUNIIY
PANEL NO. 41{O4L - æl@Ê 16 2012, W¡e NoìqlES
IHÊ SU&ECT PROPÊRIY IO BE WINN UNSHADED ZdÉ X
(AøS OFERMINEO IO æ OUISIDE lNE 0.2% ANNUL @NE C.Â ,5m EXPIRS:8Sæ22

COUNÏY TREASURËR STAMP

f
\¡



WOODWARO ACRES

SECTION I. UIILIIY ilSEüENTSAilD RGHßOF-WAY
ÆCilPNYLú PúI TæOWO rcF€S) FÒR

SrcÎONil. RESIrcÎONSANDffUNIS

Tãia;Ei;ã;ffi1
l/*;'\oFFrcr[saL I
ll'"'3llc ls¡*tûucsRft I

l$@- -::.-."r.r;r:.I

E CERnfEATEOFSURVEY

l-Ãj-..m-tFfi:iñ.ìl/-.'\dÊrcrÀr sFÀ I
ll H,f ITENNFÊRFRrz I

l \@-¡:|. rlr: :: . r:... I

SECNON ÍI. EilFOrcEMEilT, WMNOil, AMENDMENI ANDSM&AUW CERÌIFEATE Of THE OXLAdOMA DEPARTMENI OF ENUrcNMENTAIOUALIil

ç.,c



TMA(9
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonning Commission

Gase: River West Phase lll-lv - Authorization for
Accelerated Release of Building Permits

Hearing Date: October 7,2020

Case Report Prepared bv:

Nathan Foster

Owner and Applicant lnformation:

Applicant: Wallace Eng ineering

Owner. City of Tulsa, Housing Authority of the City of
Tulsa

Location Map:
(shown with City Council Districts)

Applicant Proposal:

Request for authorization to receive accelerated
release of building permits

2 lots, 1 block, 2 phases, 10.9 + acres

Location'. Northwest corner of West 23rd Street South
and South Jackson Avenue

Zoninq: MX1-U-55 Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the authorization to
receive an accelerated release of a building permit

Gitv Council District 2
Councilor Name: Jeannie Cue

Countv Gommission District: 2

Commissioner Name; Karen Keith

1.1



ACCELERATED RELEASE OF BUILDING PERMIT

River West Phase lll-lV - (CD 2)
Northwest corner of West 23'd Street South and South Jackson Avenue

The applicant has requested that the Planning Commission authorize the City of Tulsa
to issue building permits prior to the filing of a final plat. The Subdivision & Development
Regulations require the approval of a preliminary plat prior to authorization for an
accelerated release of building permits. The preliminary plat was approved by the Tulsa
Metropolitan Area Planning Commission on September 2,2020.

This project is being managed by the Tulsa Housing Authority in partnership with the
City of Tulsa and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development along with
other private partners. The site was awarded a federal CHOICE neighborhood grant
through HUD that seeks to revitalize areas through the creation of affordable, walkable,
and safe neighborhoods. The required infrastructure will be funded by the City of Tulsa
and the implementation projects will be managed by Engineering Servíces. Any
additional infrastructure not funded by the City of Tulsa will be required to obtain IDP
approval.

As part of the platting process there will be relocation of existing utilities and expansions
of new infrastructure as well as a need to close and vacate several underlying
easements and existing rights-of-way. The associated grant with this project requires
construction to begin on a specific timeline where delays could create issues. The
applicant has requested deferring the requirement for the plat to be filed to the
certificate of occupancy in order to prevent delays on building permits. The Technical
Advisory Committee met on Thursday, September 17,2020 and no objections were
raised to the authorization of an acceferated release of building permits.

lf approved, this authorization only removes the requirement that the final plat be filed
prior to building permits being issued. All other codes and requirements of the City of
Tulsa remain in place.

Staff recommends approval of the accelerated release of a building permit

?, z



o

N)(¡o

(¡oo

.]]
oo

t

S¡
S Hñì 

=m=Èø

ìì

J
t^)

Ð

=I(,
ot-

n
3
I

o
-{
öï
g1

n
¡

=x
Ic
t

(Jr
('r

II}

n
=Il\) o

Ø

I
1I I CI'c

E(-
tÌt
oI
Ib
oI

=

v
C'
o
I,
(¡t

7
E
o
¡
N

uftt\=:]

=

t-
rno

JJTIdzEg
o
o
't)
o-Io
=3
=Ø

z



S PHOENIX AVE

ü
S PHOENIX AVE S PI]OENIX AVE .

E
i\þ
v)
I EË{ \

U,
I
Ø

Ett

F ËE¡

Õ

G

0

S OLYMPIA AVE
=\)N
Øì
Ø

S OLYMPIA AVE E
No
øt
U7

€
oo
(t,
-{
(t,

E
NÀ
I
(t,

E
N
À.
(t,
I
Ø

ã
N(,
.l
o.
U,
{
U,

E
N{
6:{
Vl

S NOGATES AYE

i¡ít!l I
E

t

S MAYBELLE AVE

EErsNo (,#-\
Ø-î (/'

SOUTHWEST BLVD

m. I "'d

"õ_.-

"qfl

t
ô

! 2
ts

ìo

-*itå

¡
l:;- +

¡
qt

E
N('t
U)ì
Ø \a

\

a

t \

S JÁCKSONAYE rrrla --

I

I

Ës
ix|- ¡(r) d f}

oâ a

I

I

O g

i¡¡s¡ - *l

s

:ër

S MAYBELLE AVE

çü¡û
a

I
o

T

Niloq

t

S¡
S BE
È 

=ñeoø
-{

o-
€- ß'{"
=6)

ÈÈ
ð'o
Eã
g-e=
Èo
O:3øo
6\¡¡
RO
slñoÈ
EÈÈgr
È..q

c)

(¡oo

V)

tèoo*q

bo..o
I
so
Þo
ilìoÞ
o
È
èJ?F



NOWALL MEN SYIts6E PESENIS
IHAÍ THÊ HOWreAUIrcÊTYtrIHEOÌ*TUISÂAPUAL]CÐY @ÊPOMTEÀNDrcLILC,
ORCN ZEO ANO EXSING INOÉR IHÊ LÂWS OF THE SIAIE OF OruffOM TIHtr). IS IHE MNER
oF THEFOLIOWNC oÊSCRTAEo REAL EStÆl$r!AIED NIAÊ OtyOFrlLs ÌULSælNn
SIATE OF OKútsOMA IO.W I

APÆTOFBlOCreINO I OFRIVÊRVIfu PARKAODITION,ÂREfuIOFELO*1 ilDAPUlOF
BLærc2I3, CIY OFTULS, BÊIreASUAOVSIONOF PÂRIOFTHENORIHASOWIER (NS4)
OF*CNONFOURTEEN(4), TOMSH]PNINÉTEEN (9) NORTA, NGEfuÊLVE IÐ ASIOF fH€
NOIAN NE ÂNO MERIDIAN IULSA COUÑ SIAIE OF OKLAhdA A@MING IO IHE !S
æVERNM€NTSURV*IHE*G. RËæRæD6 PLAI ruMBER 3IU

æMMÊNCLrc AI ftsE NORTffiSTæRNEROFRIVERWESI PÆEI,ARE-SISOVSdd PÀRI
OF BLOCK I ND BLOCK I OF RIVÊfufu PMKADOITON N THE rcRIH MIÊ (M2) tr SEdION
FOIRIEEN I{) IMSts P NINIEEN I3)rc$H, NE fuELVÊ (2) æT OF IHE iNOIN MSE
NO MER OAN IULS æUNW, STATE OFOKUtsOMÂ AæORUre TO TNE US GOERNMENf
$WEY IHæEOF ANO ÊÊ@RDEO Æ FBI NO æI3 N THE *NCÊ OF fÆ IULS ælMY
C!€RKiIHENG S 22'il æ q AoNG rHE W LINEOFSD RtvER ms P#E 

^ 
otsTME

OF21229FÉEf ÌÆrcES24'@ 20 E,CONTLNUINGAOÑIHÊæIIIN€OF$DRWRW6T
PHÆE AOSTANGG]æ37FEf IHENCÊSS'g'14'E,æNIINUINGAONGIHEÉßILIN€
OF SAO RìVER ffiSI P#Ê i A DISÍNCE OF 73 33 FEET, IO IHE POLNI OF BÉG]NNINC ftErcE
æNÌNUIM S S'E'14' €, NO ALONG INE EÆI L]NÊ æ BLOCK f OF RIV€R VM P&K
AæIIId, A FEPUI OÉ BLæK 1 AND A PLAI OF ALæKS 2.13 CIÛ OF IULSA BEING A
susovrsoN G PARr ff laE NoRtHEñl ouRfER (€4) oF sctLoN FoURIEEN f{),
TOWNSHP NLNtrEEN (9) NfiTH ilÑGE üEL€ 12) ÊÆI OÊ THÊ NOIN SSE NO MERION,
IILSA @!NIY SfÂfE OF O@OM, ACæRONG IO THE U S GOV€RNMENI SIRVEY IBEREOI
RE@ROEO Æ PUI NIMBER 31 23 A OISTArcE OF 93 44 FÊÊI, fO IHE NORÍHST CORNER OF
ALOCK OFSORIVERVIMPAR(ÀODIIONIIHÊWCONIINUIrcSS'A 1¡'E ANOAONGIHÊ
æI LLNE OF SD ALOCKI AOSTANCÊ * 19I 02 FEÍ, rc Arc]NI OF C!fuAIUÊÊ ItsÊNCE
ALONC A INGENI C!ÙE IO IIE RLGNI, CONIINIING AONG THE gSI L NÊ OÊ $OALOCK ,
UVINGÂRÆUSOF 14MÉEI ÁNArc LEreÛOF 161 $FEEI,ACENIùLAreLEOF66' 17'
?1,AC|OROBúRrreOFS6.2333"EANOASORODrSlÂrcEOF1S09FEFTOApOMOF
RryERSE @WÂIURE:IHÊrcEALOrcÀ TNSI CIWE IOlHE LFI ÓNIINUING &ONG IHE
ASILINEOFSAOBLO*I MVLreAfuO6S*.7I FEEI ANARCLÊNGItsOF17J.@FEf Â
GNIMLANGLE OF2S'25 21 , aCHOROAARrrcOFS 13'S ?,WNOACHOROO|SISCÊOÊ
1æ25 FEEI: lHÊNcÊ s 00'47 32'€, @NlNUlre ALOre THE ñ lNE oF sAD A@cK il, À
dsrÁNcE oF 309 æ FEEÌ. lo lhÊ sourHEÆT æRNER oF $LO 4æK THENCE S 3S. 07 09 W
ALONG IHE SOTH LINÊ OÉ SD BLOCK . A OSTNCE OF 3{OO FÉÍ IHÉNCÊ N E'47 32' W
PAULLELWIhÂNO $OM FÉãWEgOF ÆI SO æI IINE Â OSTÀNCEOF 705 æF€€I,IO
A MNI ONIhE SOWH RGHI OFWAY OFÆST2ÑSTREEIAøRONG IO S O PUT çRIVER
WES P#E I IIENCEAONG ANON.TArcENTCUNE IO IHÉ LEÛ ALOre SÀOSUTH R6HT
OFWAYLNÉ. IAVN6AfuO!SOF5MæFEET,NArcLENGIHOFl17.S7 FEET AGNTW
aNGLEOF0T'21 02 ACHORoÊARrrcOFNS"1e10 ENOACþROÛ$ANCEOÉfi 737FEEr
rcÀrcrNroNlÆrcRlf L|NEoÊsaro&*[ ftErcEæNltNUrNGAOreSrStÐCURW
IO fHE L€FT, ÂLONG SLO 9!f H RIGHT tr WAY IINE, FAVING A æUS OF 5@O OO FEEI N ARC
LENCÍNOF11345FEt ÂGNfruAreLEG01'21 26 ÂCHOROSAR|NGOÊN4.5õ56 E
aNoa GoRo 0slaNcÊoF 1134

srolMcToF 4NoæNraLNrNG 6@mES/ã,375 SSaUffi FEF

IHE OWNÉR IAVE AUSEO IHE SUAJECT rcPËRTY IO BE SUWryEÐ, SIAKED, PUÍEO ÂNO
SUAOVIæO INIO M LOIS IN &E BLæ( NO 3 RESÊRVES IN CONFORMIIY WTN IH€
ACæMPANYINC PúI ANO ûVÊ æSIGMIÉD THE SUBOVLEON Æ 'RVER WESI MS il,
ÆREINÆIER REFERREO IO Æ IHE SUBTVIW ASUBOIVSION IN IHE CN OF ruLS IAIE

sÉcfþr r, PUaLE srEEr. æE

Â PIBLCSTREEISAND!TLIIYæEüÊNIS

IHÉ ÚNRS HEREAY æOùÌE IO fHE PUBLIC, IrcSE rcRlONS OF SIREEI RLGHIS - S.
WAY O' ÆSf @ SI€I Æ EPLGD ON re À@MPNYLre fuI N FUS*R
ÉO ATÊS TO ItsE PWLIC IHE ÚIL W æMEMS Æ GãøEO d IÆ A@MPÑIre fuI
Æ'U/ E"M'U]LIT æEilEf rcR ilÊ SæMI ruRæ6N6Ire ilALNTAMre
OP€üING, REPAR¡re, REPLÆING ÂNTOR REMOVrc dY NO E PUBLC UIILITIES
NCIUDilG IæU ffNS, $NIIÂRY WSS ItrEPHOÑEAÑD @üüUNLûIId UNES EEORC
PNR LI€S N IüNFÑErc æ ! MS WÂER lMS N q&Ê IELfuS]ON LIMS
IæEIHER WTH ALL FIÍINGS IúUÞre ftÊ rcLES, WRES æNDUIq PIÆS, VALVÊS,
METERS, MrcLES ANO EOUIPMÊNî ÊOR Eß OF SUCÈ FACLIIIES ÂNO N OIHER
FPURIEMrcES IHERãO, WfH fHE RIGtsISOF IreRE$ ilD EGRES IOÀNO UPON IHE
UÍILIW WMENIS FOR THE USES ND PURPOSES STATEÐ PRdIOEO úCH OF THE
øMæ RÉSRVES IHE RIGffi IO @NSIRIO MANIAN, OEüTE, LAY NO REPALR OR
REPUCE WATER ILNESANO S&ER LNß, IæÉIHER WTH TÆ RIGHI OF NGæ$ ANO
EGRESS F@ SUCH CONSRæION MANTEMrcE, OEMIION LÀY rc. ffiPARING AND ft.
UYINGOVER, ACrcSANOALffi ÀI6THEITILil ASMENfS ÞEPICÍEOON ItsE PúI
WIhIN IHE MOÊÊRW MEDBYTH€PART CUUR øMRFORTHEPURFOSOFFIRNISHING
W^IERANæR SfuÊR *WICES TO MSS OEPIdÊOONlHÉ PúI IHEOWNER HEREIN
]MPOSESffi ESIRCTLVE@EWT,WHICI æVÊNÂNIS#LLABìNDIÑGONErcHLÔf WNER
ANO SULL BE ENFOrcæLÊ AY flÊ dW tr IULSA O(ArcM, ANO BY fÆ SUPPL EROF
ÂNYÆFEdEDUIILIWSEfrIæ,IMIWIHNTHEULryæEM€ÑIS OEPIdÊÐ ON ItsE
æ@MPANYNC PúI NO AUIÛrc. STRITIRE OR OÍHERÆôW OR AELfr GfulNO
OASRUCIION IHAI NIERFERES WIH SÎAED 6ES ANO PURæ*S OF ÎHÊ UT]LIN
æÊMÊNTS SMLL BE PúGGO ERECTq INÍALLEOOR MNTAINEO PROVIGO rcIHING
IERE N Sû! 8€æEMEO IO PrcHIBLT ORIV6, PÆKNG ÆAS, CURENG UNOsæIre
ÂND CUSIOMARY SCREEN re FÊrcÉS TMI M rcI @NS IUTE ÂN OSRUCIION

PRELIMINARY PLAT

RIVER WEST PHASE 3
A RE.SUBDIVISION OF PARI OF BLOCK I ANO BLOCK III OF THE RIVERVIEW PARKADÞITION IN THE
NORTH HALF (N/2) OF SÊCT|ON FOURTEEN (14), TOr/\t¡SHtp NTNETEEN (19) NORTH, RANGE
TWELVE (12) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, CITY OF IULSA, TULSA COUNTY, STATE

OF OKIAHOMA.

N IRANFORMEre Æ SIRCES OF SPPLY ÀI SE@NURY VOLIreES MAY ALSO AE OKUHOMÂ SID&ÂLKS SUIL BE CONSIRæTEO PR]OR IO IHE ISINE OF A CERIIFIüTE
LæATEO IN GENEML UIILIW æMENIS OF OæUPÂNd FOR AW A! LD re WHIN IHE SUBO VISION

2 UNÈrcROINDSERVICECÆLESNOGÆSEfuICE LINESIOALL SIMTIRESWIhIÑ
IHE $BO V SION MAY BË *IÉNæD FRN IHE NæESÍ GÆ M
OR IRNSFORM€R IO ThÊ rcINI OF USreE OFEfu NED 3Y fHE LGION ANO
CONIRICIION OF SÑB SIRUCÍURE UPd IÈE @I PRdLOÉO TUT UrcN ftE
JÑSI&úI ONOFÂSERVICEæLEORGÆSERVCELIÑE IOÂP&fICUUR $RrcruRE
IHÊ SUFPLIER OF SERVCE SMLL IHEtrAffER E OEEMEO IO MVE A OEFINITE
PERMAMNI, €FF€CÌVÉ ANO rcN.ÊXCLGNE ASM€NI ON ThE LOI, æWR]rc A 5
FæI SIR P *TENONO 2. 5 FEÛ ON ACH SÞE OF IHÊ SERVICÊ æLE OR LNE
EXIENÐINC FrcMTHE ùSMAN SEÊVæPËæSTALORIUNSFORúERIOTHÉSÉRVCE
ÉMMNCEONfHESTRUCIIRE

3 IhE SIPPLIM OF ÊLECTRC IELEPNONE, AALE E!ÊVSON ÀND GÂS SEWICÊ
rheo-cr rsaGEN-sa{oÊMô-oyÊÊs s4-ÀrÀ-l.vEs{vEfrEaGr-+rccEs
TO AI UI L]I æÊMEMSs@N ON IÆ PUTOROTtsEMSÊ PROVOEO rcR INIhIS
OE€O OF æOSI ON FOR TH€ PIRPOSE OF INTALLiNG. MA NIAN NO REMOVre OR
REPUCING SY rcRlON OF fh€ lNOErercUND &ECIFC IELÊPtsONE ßE
IELflISIONOR ff FACLIÎLES IßÍALEDBY INE SUPPIIæ OFINE UIILfr SERVICE

4 TÆ MÊR * N LOI S&LL AE MSrcÑLALÊ Éd ßE PæIEdIO S IHE
UNæRG@@ SWIG FAOLIIIÊS LøÌEO ON IHE MER'S LOI N SMI PRMM
IÆAEMTIddGMOEtr AWæNIfuq ONAOVWMS@D MEREEWT
IEElEffiIC IELEPþÉ qBÉrcLWAONORæFACILIIIES ffi S@PLERSI6E
SEfu6 SLL AÉ RFrcNIBE FOR OÐLW MMÊMG G ÆreROUNO
FAOLTIES, Aø IÆ LOf (reR SE PAY FOR NreE E ÈLOøION OF SH
FAC]L IIES ruSO d MCÊSIAEO W ÆIS d INE LOI OWR M TÆ LOf MER'

5 5THECdñANISSffiIIINIHSSSEC¡ONSALLSÊÊNrcRCæLEBY4CNS!æLEROF
IHÊ ELECIR C ELEffi qSLE TÛtrSM OR Gß *RUCE ÀNO IHÊ øNtr OF ANY Tø
ÑRES TO EE BOUNÐ EY NES æVEMNTS

INWNÊSS WREOF, ru ff¡reNTrcRIñOFre GIÛæruSA rc UECUEO
B6 TNSnWEñnrs_BYS_,2@0,

C WAER, SIIARY SMR AND SIORM SMR SEfuICE

1 IHE MER OF NY LOI Slru BE RÊSPONSIBLE FOR IE PROIEOLON O' I!€ P6L C
WÂIÊR MAINS SNIÁRY SMR MÂ Ñ M SfMM WERS LOAIEO ON TÆ frNER '

H CÊRI]FIqE OF OC@PÀrcY

MGRI]FICAIEOFOæUPffiYFORAB! LOLNGWIH¡NIHÊ SUBOIVSIONSULL AE ßSUEÐ
AY ilÊ OTY OF IUIS O(ArcM UNIIL CONSTRUøON OÊ THË RæIRED
TNFNTRUCTURE (SrREfS WÂIER, SN[my SilER, SÌORM SilER SYSTEMS NO
SWAL{S)SW]ÑG INE ENÍIRE SUæIV9d 4 AEEN 6MPLÊIEOANOACCETED BY
THE CITY þfuIISTNO NC TÆ FOREGOING TIE CIfi UYAUTHORIZE THE LSlÆ OF
A IEMrcRA* CERT]FSE OF @UPÀrcY F N IÆ CITS SOLE OISreION TtsE
CLRCUMSIMESSlPrcMIIE I$WCE FURIHER NOfuIÍHSNOT THE FOæGOING,
IHECIÛMYAUIÐR]ZEINEPüSIßæIHECONSRICIIONOFINFRÆIRUCIUREWIHIN
THE SGOVISJON AND IF PhÆING IS AIIþRZEO A CÊRTIF]dIE OF OæUPAil FOR A
AUILONG WIHIN AN NIIORIZEO PhÆE MAY I$UE UPON lhÉ æMPLETION ND
rcCÊFINE OF ThE INFæIRUCIURE SEryNG THE PARfICULAR PNÆE BIILONG
@NSIRUCÌLONOæFR]re PRIOR IO INÊ OfY'SAæEPIÂrc€OF ThÊ NFæIRUfrURE
SMLL BEATfHERISKOF IhEOWROÊIHE LOI MÚ]ftSIÂNTNG IHÉ $UNCF OFA
BUILD NG PERMIIORø AIEMPORARY CERI]FIùTEOF OCCUPMY

MITULrcCÉS ASilÊM
MIIULAæE$ ASEMENIS *PIdEOÆ'Æ'OR MNIA M€$ EÆEMENI"ON THE
€@MPANYrc PúI, ÆE tsEREBY ESIÆLI$Ð FOR ItsE FURrcSES OF PERMLITIre
WHCULMANOPÊOESÍRIS @SS TOANOFROM ÀL SREÍSANDAREASÁMENIIO
ND CONIA NEO WIHN IHE SlBÐ VISION SICH ASEMEMS MLL BE FOR IHE MUIUAL USÊ
ND BENEFI OF ACHAFF€CIEO LOI OWMR, IHãRGUESIS ÀNO INVITÊÉS, ANOStsAlL AE
ÆPURIEMNT IO SCH Ææd€Ð LOI OWN€R PROV æO GOfRNMENIAL reENC ES NO
TiE SUFPIIERS OF IIILIIY SERVCES SMIL &W IHE RæOWLE NE OF $CH
ASEMENIS INCIOENIÂL fO TH€ PrcVSON OF SERVIGS fO IHE IOIS WIHIN IHE

J RÊSEWE ARE6'( . OPEN SPACÊ ANÞ PEDESIRLN WALXMY

rHE SE OF RES€RVÉ ÆEß ä SWL eE L|MLTÐ lO OPEN SpæÊ RTRArON,
hNOSP NG. PEOESIRÂÑ WAMAYS ND WÂLLS

K RESEWEÁÈN'3 &C-OPEN$ACE

rdE Æ oe q*RvE 
^Ræ 

re_ s4L BE L MIÈO lO OE\ SoaCE añO AþFÉ\-tO\

THÉ RËSTRCIIONS HEREIN SETFORIHÆÉ COVEMNTS IORUNWIts ÌIE LÑOSDSMLL
æ ANûNG POTÈEOWMRg IHÊIRRÊSÉCIVEoMNEES fuæ6SOMMÑCN
WIHIN THE PRdISþNOF SIION I PGL C SIREÍS æEMEMSAND UIILIIIES, ÆÊ SF
FORIH CERIAN æWMNTS NO lHE EMORCEMENI RIGNIS PERIAN re ftEREIO ND
WETHER æ þI ÌHRSN S SIÂIEDIHE @EMNTS WÎH¡N €ION ISULL INIRE TO
IHE æNEFIT OF ANÞ gÉ EMORCABIE tr THE CIfl OF IUßÀ *
UNERSIGNEO @NERS OR ANY ff IHEIR R$PECTLVE GNlÊ6 , SUæESRS OR
ÆSIGNS. *LL VOUfÊ NY OF IHE COWMNTS WTHIN SCIÞN , IHE $PPLIER OF
UIILIT SEWICÉOR Cñ OFTULS,O(lmMMAY SRLNGNMIONAI6WOR LN EruIry
ÂdÑST fHE PÊ&N OR PERSONS VIUI]Ñ OR ANEMPIIre IO VIOúIÈ ANY SUCI
CdENNI IO PRryENT HIMOR IhÊM FMM9æINGOR fO@MPELæMPLßrcÉWTH
IHE æWNilI OR IO RE@VER MMreES IN N J!ÐICA! ÆIION rcUGII IO EMORCE
IHE @EMNIS ESTÂ81]$EDWIN N THIS OæOOF ÞÊOAION
PARW NITLAIING TA' ÊQUIIÆIE PRæEEOI€ W AN AæAUÌE REMEDY AT UW IS

THÊ* RÊSTRICTLON, TO IHE EXIÊNI PÉRMIITED BY APPUøSLE BW SIAL BE
PERPÊTUAL Blf IN ANY MNT SMLL 6Ê IN FORCE ND EFFECI FOR A IERM OF rcI LE$
rMN rN RÌ (&) YAæ FrcM ÎH€ ùrE OF rHE RECORTNG OF fHtS æÉD OF EqOl Oñ
UNGSfERMIMTEDORE&æOÆ HERE MFTER MdÞEO

IHÉæV€MNIS@NfANEOWIHINSCNONI PUBLICSIRÊEIS, ASEMÊNISNU LIIES,
MAY F &ENÉO OR ÎERMLMIEO AI N IIME BY WRIIIEN NSfRUMENI SIGÑEÐ ND
ACKrcWGDGEDAY IHEMER *IHÊLNÐIOWtsICHTAEfl ENÐMÊNIORÍERMIMI ON
IS IO æ AæLCABLE ilO ÆPMVEO BY INE IULS MEIrcfuLIIS ÀRA PUNNNG
æMMLSSION. OR¡TSS!æESORSÂNOCIWGI!6A OKhrcM ûEPROVSLONSøAW
INSIRUMENI N€Nûrc OR TERMLMNrc IÆ R6IRCILOß OR @ÊWIS SULL BE
EFFECIIVE UFd NDTER fiE INTRUMENI IS RE@ROEO LN IHÊ OFFCEOF f* TULSA

IHE MER OF IHÊ PMPÉRÛ AFFECÍED SilLL ff RESTNSALE FOR IIE trPÀLF S
NreE rc UNRP¡re AND PAVING OøEON€O ÊY INSTÀLLATION OR NECSA*
MANIENArcEOFUNOErcROUNDWAIER SNLTRSMR STMMSilER, MI!ilLGÆ,
COMMUNI*IION ABLE TAW SONORELECIRIC FACIIIT SWIHNIHE ASEMENTARæ
DEP OÊO IPON THE ÀæOMPAMING PLAI. PROVIED tsOWR INÊ Oil OÊ I!!SA OR IÆ
SIPPL ER OFIHE fILLW*RVCESIAL 6Ê re@WLE CÆE IN IHÉ PERFORMNCE OF

HOUSINGAWHM IÛ Gffi CIflSTUg

BY, 

-

MROÑ ùUN. PRESI EÑI/ CEO

SîAE S *UHøA )
)ss.æww oF ruLs )

flS ¡NTRWENI W AtrN@EreÞ BÊFdÉ ME d IHÉ

-,20æ, 

ÊYNd NDEN, Æ PRÊSIæNT/CEOOFftE rcUg-rcAUmtry*È€dfloFruLsa.

cÊE!!4çAlE!@
¡, _ oF _, a LTGNSEO ND
SURwd REGISER€O ¡N NE STAE S OMlfu, HEruBY æRNFY TAI I MVE
æEFULIY ANO AæUUELY SUMYEÞ, SUSOVIÞÊO, AND PUMO ûE fMCI G
Æ æSCRIÊÉO EVE, AND frAT ftE AædÞAWING PúT OESIGMED ÆRÉIN ÆSIN MEEK @L@, A SUBOVISION ¡N ftE CIf OF BRæN ARrcq WA@EF
@NÛ, STAE OF dUHM, IS A REP&SENIAION OF IHE SURVEY Mæ d ffE
GR@NO 6¡NG GENÊMUYACCEPED UÑD SURVEYIre PrclGS NÞ MEæ *
dCÉOS ftE ()l@ MINIMUM STANDÆS FOR ru PMCTG OF Æ
SURBINGÆ A@EO

wûEss w üNoND salü6 _ úY S_, æ0.

2.

3

WÍHìN UIILIY ASEMENTS æPICIEO ON fÆ ÂCæMPÁNYINC PLAI, IÆ AIE$I]ON OF
CRÆÉ FROM TNE @NIOURS TI Ñ UrcN frÊ ÓMPLEI ON OF fHE NSIAßIION OF
A PUALC WAIER MAN $N]IÂRY SSÊR MÀN. OR SIORM S&ER OR ÂÑ
CONTRUCION AñV¡IY MCH , IN IHE JUæM€NI OF ItsE CW OF TUS rcULO
INIERF€RÉ WIts PUEç WAIER MANS, SNI&Y $WER MANS. ND SIORM SMRS

fiE OT OF TULS, OKúrcM, OR LIS SUæÊSS@S SHAIL SE RE$ON9AL€ FOR
OÊùWY MAMEMNCE ø PUBLC WAIER SYSfEG, $NIIÀRY sMR MN, NÞ
Srcff SryERS BUT TAE LOI OMER ShALL PAY FOR UMAGE OR RELOCAIION OF $CH
FACIL]TES AUSEO OR NÉCE$]TAIÉO BY ÆS OF fHE LOT @NER OR fHÊ LOI ilUR,S reEMS AD / OR æNIùCIORS

IHE ON OFTULS, O(rcMÀ, OR IIS SUæESRS. SûL AI AL IIMÊS MVE RIGHT
OF ÆSS IO ALL UTILIW æEMENIS OEPIdEO ON THÊ ÆW
Oftfu* PNOVLDEO FOR IN IN]S OEEO OF æddION FOR
ÑTALLNG MANIANLre, REMOVING OR RÊPUC¡rc ÂM rcRION OF INæRGR&NÞ
WÂIER SAN IMY SEÆR ORSIORMSEÆR FrcIIIES

IHE COVENANIS SEI FORTH N IHIS SUSECT ON S4L æ ENFORCEÆLE SY IHE gW
OF IU!$, O(EOMA OR TS SIÆSSORS N IHE OWNER OF lHE LOI ACREES IO AE
BOUNO 3Y THSE COVÊMNIS

1. IHE SIPPLIER OF GAA S€RVICE IHÐ6H ISÂGÉNIS AND EMPLOYEES M!AIEL
IMÊS MVE IHE RIGfrOFrcCESS TOAL øILW æMENISSNM ONIIE PúIOR
ÂS OItsERWSE PWDEO FOR IN THIS DÉÊÞ OF æOAION FOR THE P!R6É OF
]NSIALUNG, REMOVING REPARNG. OR REPUCINO AW FORTION OF IHE FACILIfES
]ÑSIALLEO BY ÌÉ SIPPLIER OF GÆ SWCÉ

2. ilÊ ENER OF N LOI SULL AE RESNELE rcR ftE PROTECIION OF IHE
UÑÐERGROINO æ FACILIIE6 LOùIED WIHIN fÆ lOT AND SAL PRMNI 1HÊ
ALIEUILON ff G@E OR AÑ OIHER æNSIRrcNON rc¡Vil WHCF rcULD
INÎffiÉRÉWIHGÆ SERV€ TÆ SUÞL1ER OF ôÆ SÊRVICE SSLL BE RESrcÑIBLÊ
FOR IHE ORDIWY MAMEWCÊ OF IIS ÊÁOLIIIES, BlI IHE LOI ftNER SMLL PAY
FOR NAGE OR REL@ATION OÉ ÊACIL IIES @SED OR NECNIAIÉO AY rcfS OF IHE
LOTØMR, OEftE LOIWNÉR'SAGENTSOR CONTæTOS

3 ftÉ CryEMNIS ST FORIH N IHLS $S*ÛION SUTL BE ENFNEßÊ ÊY ItsE
S@PL ER OF IHE G6 SERVICE ANO fHÊ OW€R OF IHE !O1 AGREES IO AÊ æUND BY
IHÊS COVEWIS

ACH lOT SMLL RECEIVÊ NO OUN, N AN UNOSRICTEO MNNÊR IHÉ SIORM ND
SURFACE WÂTERS FrcM LOTS ÂNO MMGEÆæ OF H6BER E8ÀT ON NO LOIMNER
SMLL CNIRUCT OR PÉRMII IO æ CONSIRIfEO N FErcNG OR OIHER
OæIRUCTIONS WHIq rcULO LMPÀF IHE OfrIWE OF SIORM ND SURFACE WAIERS
MRNOÂCæ TIÊ LOI INE FORE@ING æVEMMS SEI FORIH IN IHISSUÊ$frON
Sru! 3Ê ENFORCABLE BY AWÆFEfrEOLOTOMERNO BY C

Áç!W

COUNil OFMA-
BIS NSNWENT rc rcKl@EOGED BEFæ MÊ HS MY *

2@O, 6Y

llwudlõ--

12-11¿O20
MYúMl$ONrc: 

'mþ2

OAfE:l l14l2o2o

SH€ET2 OF2

ls4l-

@åËiffil
s,wa(s .NAL BE æNsrRUrÊo aNo MAñrÀMD Êy-rrÊ-erryFprlels-s-r-iE-Ere åEâlii',j$""J,lX"EÆ:'¿?),trå,535i1%åi$ilÈ¡ff[ê'!i'ifLiüiîi*?IåÈ
oEsrcMED ay aNo rN rccoRmNcE w rN rÆ ruL$ MErrcÐLtr¡¡ ¡Rqa sl8llvs oN ÆFEci aw oF i+ orHER àEsmrcr oNs oÊ Âñi paRr HIRËo;ls ser ronr¡ ¡enel¡,ÂNo ÐilELopMENt RÊGuuroNs No oRoLNMs ø THE cû oF rut$ srwalKs w¡cisurrnev¡rwruu¡oRcEÂNoEFÊEclS&L E @NSIRUCÍEO LN@NFORMAC€WTH T* STÀNMRNOFIÆ OTOFIUßA

J
\t\



i

T

l
:
Ij
Á

åI
f

PRELIMINARY PLAT
E!:!g

RIVER WEST PHASE IV
I

il
I

R 12 E

A RE.SUBDIVISION OF PART OF BLOCK 1 AND BLOCK III OF
RIVERVIÉW PARK ADDITION IN THE NORTH HALF (N/2) OF SECTION FOURTEÊN {14), IOMSHIP
NINETEEN {19) NORTH, RANGE TWELVE (12) EAST OF THE INDIN BASÉ MERIDIAN, CITY OF TULSA

TULSACOUNTY, STAIE OF OKLAHOI4A
f
19

No

lrcE€-t

Lo€tion Map

OWNER ENGINEER SURVEYOR
WÀLWE Ëre¡¡8IN

¡l5wsrNOEmærcÊSRF SfRUoIUüLæ{SULÌÀNTS, tilC æ2SúN MÀN
J23MRf NLITHRKreJF AIVO WAGOÑ$ OK 767

AÍN CIIY CLRK S! EM
(rr3)5s.æ æFte,sru
o[NoMACArl@ ærEsffio

r¡odlM.ér

rdón.f@rbæóñ

suBqusw starslG

POINT OF
COMMENCEMENÏ

sBDrvss æNraNsr@ (a Lors tN oNE t)Èæk ND
oNE¡4 R6RVE sLoc(0) cilraNsæeslaRE

MONüENIAld

ss60FaaÉßs
ffir¿oNTA UrUM *SO UrcN NAO S3 ¡æq OI&OMÀ

M NOtrÊ ZdE gr

MÐ ON IA€ EÑ LINE OF ÊIVER W PHA* I ÂS E NG

ÆssþlE

WECT TO CNGE AM
*OUþ NEVER ERfuEDON N PUCEOF LreAL

f8
ãd
;Ã

È
¡ R

È

È
6 P!&aRffswNæas

RAæEO OR VßrÉO

ENMSESENT G ÆROVAL VIæTùÐH.Æ
(&ñvu)

E
ñ

dt
ul

*1

iìirÌ Rii \\
l'1il ñ

\l)nll()\ "
rl ({ li

õ

¡
g

s

I
ã
ð
5

g

@

LOI 1

4.037 AC

F--xl
Block I

q

-J

RIGHT OF WAY DETùEO
BY lHtS PUt (0.@ AC)

ÆrãRDSffiSOLffi
ísrcwt POINl OF BEGINNING

Æmsæffi



PRELIMINARY PLAT

RIVER WEST PHASE IV

frOW ALL MEN BY ftsÉSÊ PRÊSÉNIS
THAÍ INE HO6NG AUIÐRIÍY O OÐY æRPOMÍÉ AND rcLf C
ORGNLZEO ANO EXSING UNOER TFE LAWS OF INE SIAIE OF OKWOM fIM) IS IHE OWNER
OF IHÊ FOLLùLNG æR]AÊD RÊAL ESIAEÎ SUÍIAIEO IN îhE C IY OF TUq IUL$ @!NW,
srarE oF oKurcm. ro wl

A RÊ€UBDIVISION OF PARI OF BLOCK 1 AND BLOCK III OF
RtvERVtEW PARK ADDTT¡ON rN THE NORTH HALF (N/2) OF SECÎON FOURTEEN (14), lOìir/NSHrp

NINEÍEEN (19) NORTH, RANGE TWELVE ('I2) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE MERIDIAN, CITY OF TULSA,
TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHO¡/IA

1 OWRNAO LINES FOR IHE SUPPLY OF ELECIR¡C. IEEPrcNE ANO @!E IELry S ON OVER ANO AEN üE LOI INE FOREGOING @VENANTS SEI FORTN IN IHS SUASÊCTLON
SERVCES MAY BE LOüIÊO ALONG ftE W6T SDE OF SOITH JACreON AVENIE ShALLBEEMORCAALESYÂWÆFÉøAOLOIMÊRNOÊYOTYOFfULS O&AIOMA

APARÍ OFBLOCX OFRVERVfu PARKAOOIÌO,ÂtrPLATOFALæKI ANDÂPúÎOF&OCKS
2I3. CIfr OF I!!$ BEING A SUBOVSLON OF PÁRI OF THE rcRIHæT OIAMÊR Ng4) OF
SECTION FOIRÍÉÊN 14) IOWNSHIP NINEIEEN 19) NORIH, WE TMLVE 12) æT OF lHE
NDIN &SE ANO MERIOÁ{ TULS COUNW, SIAIE OF trLAHOMA. rc@Rore IO BE US
GOWfuMENISURVEYftEreOF, RECOÐEDÆ PûI NUMAER3123

BOUNNY. ÀNÐ rcRfHS DE OFUS23RD SIRÊEI þUNURY OF fHE SUÊÞVSIONÂS
NECESAW LF L@IEO N ÀN æSENI Æ EP øEO ON IHE AæMPAW rc PUI
SÎREEI LIGÆ POLESORSIANMæ SULL AESERVEOBY UNæRGROUNOæLES ÂNO

TLEPrcM qALE ELÛIS¡ONAND GÆ LINES SLL E LOSIED UNæRGæUNO N
ÊÆ€M€NIS OÊD ùIÉO FOR GENERAL UII! 1 SêRVICES ANO N lHE RIGHTS . OF,WAY OF

gO&A!KS S4L AE @NfRrcT€D ND MANIÀNEO AY INE øNERS Á!N SIREEIS
æSIGÑATED BY AND N AæORONC€ WÌH IHE IUL$ MEIROPOL TÑ ARA SUÊD V SION
ND BEIOPMENI RE6UUIIdS NO OROIMNCËS OF fHE CW æ ÍULS SIDSALS
SULL BE æNÍR@IEÐIN@ÑRMANCE WLIHIIE SANMDSOFINE OIY OF IULS,
oKLmMA SrñeKS SilLL 3É @NfRU6ÊO mrORrO rtsE |SANCÊ OF^CERTFTAIE
OFOæIFNCY FORAW AUtrONoWfHLN IH€6lBDIVSON

WALùIION OF ANY RE€TR]CI]ON SEI FORIN HEREIN, OR ANY PART IHÊREOF AY A
OROÉR. JUæMEM. OR OECFEE S ANY COURI. OR OTHERWSE. ShLL NOT LNVAIùIEOR
AFFECT NV OF IÆ OTÆR RESIR CIONS OF ANY PMI ÆRÉOÊ Æ SEI FORIH HEREIN,
WHICN SÊ41 REMAN]NFULL FORCENO EFFÊCI

THE PUBLLCSTREETSÆ æPICIED ON THE AæOMPANYING PUf SERVICE PEDESIALS
ÀNDIMNSFORMÉRq ASSdÊCæ OFSUPÞLYAI SEæNNY VOLIAGES. MAYAßO æ
LOAÉD NGENÊML UIL ñ ÊßEMÉNTS

øMMENCNG AI INE NORÍÞSIæRNEROFFIVÉRWÊSI PHASÉI.ARÊ-S!8OVSd6 PÀRI
OF ALOCK IND BLOCK I tr RVEfuM PÆKADDIILON LN IHE þRIH ULF (V2)tr SEdION
ÊOMEEN !¡) INh P NINtrEÊN O9) rcRfi. MreE fuELVE O2)æI OF IIE INOIAN SSE

SIAÍÉ OÉ O{$OMA AæORONG IO ThÉ ! S GOGRNMENI
SRVEY THEREOF ANO REÓÐED ÁS PUI NO æ13 IN THE ffFCE OF THE IILSA @!NTY
CLÊRK IHENCE S 22'11 æ'E ALN THE æI L NE OF SAIOR]VERWEST PHÆ I, AOSINCE
OF 21229 FÉT IHÊNCÉ S 24'02'ã'E CONÍINU NG ALOre TNE æI LINEOF $]Ð RIVERWSI
PMsI,AÐlsrNEoF!ñ37ÊÉTilrÊNcÊS33'34 14 8 @NINUINGÁNlhEælLrNE

olsrÂNcEoÊ7ss FÉÍi TtsENG óNTlNUrrc S$'v 1¿"E,
AND ALOre IHE SI LINE ff BLOCK I OF RIWR VIfu PÂRK AOOIIION, Â R€PUÎ OF ALOCK 1

ANDÂPLAIOFALOCKS2¡3 ONOFruLS AENGASUAOMSONOFPARIOFIH€þRÍHAS
AUARIER (Ng4)OFSÊCIION FOURTEEN14) ÍOWNSHiPN]NfiÉEN19) NORTh UreE MLVE
(IqSOFIHEINOIANNENOMER OIAN,IUL$@UNñ SIAIEOFO(WOMÂ ÂC@ROre
IO THE U S GOVERNMÊNI SURW IHÊRÊd, RÊæROEO Ñ PLAI NUMæR 31 ¿ A OSTANCE S
93 44 ÊEÊf. IO IHÊ NOffHA$ CORNER 6 ALæK I OF SAO R VEruI& PARK AÐT]ON INENCE
æNINU rc S $'34'14 Ê ANOÀLONG IHE EÆf UNE OF $O ALæK I, A OLSIÁrcE OF 19I @

ifÆw aoNc alNGENl dRvE lo lhE RrcHl @NtN! re
AdGTH€EÆILINEOFilOALOCK] NAVrcAÊAOIUSff lOOOFEEI,ÂNÑLEÑGÎHOF
161 $ FEEI,ACENIru NlE OF 6ô'17 21 ACHOROAARTNG OFS 05'ã 33 ÊANDACrcRO
DSIANCE OF 15309 FÉÉÌ IO A rcIM OF RMR$ CIRVAIURE IHENCE AION A IÁNGENT
CURVE IOIHE LEFI, COM NU NG ALOre TÆ æI UNEOF $Ð BLOCK], tsAV NC ARÐIUS OF
E7lFÊEI NARCLENGIHOF Fæ"?5'21 ACIOrcAæING
oFs13'30 r'waNDACNOROoT$ArcEf 169ãFEÍ:rÆrcESm'47 32 E.øNnNrNG
AONG IHE EÆI IINE OF SD BLæK ilI, À OSIANCÊ OF 3ææ FEEI. 10 IHE $UTNæI
æRNER OF SO ALOCK I THÊNG S æ' 07' Og'W ÂLOre IHE $UII L NÊ tr $D BLOCK A
OLSTSCE OF MOO FEEI, TO fHE rcIM OF BEGINMTi TÆrcÊ @NÌNUINC S 3S' 07'09 W

sur#Esr æRNÊR oÉ sro BLod r fHENcE N 00.52 $'w Àlore ftEres L|NE oF so
BLOCK . A RSIArcÊ G þ2æ FÊF, IO N INIERLOR CORNER OF SAO BLOCK I TÆNE

IANCE OF 273 21 ÉËEI IO Â IMENI rcINI OF CURVATURE:
ItsÊNCÊ ALONG A IN6EM CIWE IO IHE RIGII tsAVING A æ16 OF ã.OO FEEI AN ARC
L€refNOFæ27FEf AæNÍMIML€SS'OO'14' ACrcROBEMINGOFNE'07'1¡'EANO
A CrcRO OISTANG OF 35S FEETI THEME N æ'07 æ'Ê À OISfATÊ OF 49& FÊã, IO IHE

IVERWÉSf PNNE :ûÉrcÊCONIINUNGNæ"07'20'E ALOrc
fHÊ $UIH LINE OF SO RIVER WESf PMS I Â OISIANCE OF æ.æ FEEI, TO A INENI rcINI
ff CUWAIURÊ. THÊNCE ÀLONô A TÀNGENI CURW IO IHÊ LEf æNIINUIrc ALOre THE

IPMSÊI MVrc Â MUSOF26 OO FEEI,NMC LENGTHOF
1S¿¡ FEEI ACENTUL NGIES 3T'16 47, ACHORD ffirre @ N 70'ä 57 ENDA mÊO
OSIACE OF 1æ 1 3 FEET. TO A PONÍ OF COMrcUND CURVAIURE IHÊNCÉ ÂLOrc A IÂrcÉNf
CURVEIOIHEL€FT. æNIINUIrcÂLONC IHESOUIHLINEOF SDRVERW6f PffiÊ I, MVINô
À SÐIUS OÊ fuOO@ F€ET, AN *C LEreü OF 75¡4 F€EI, A CENIfuL MLE OF OO'51P. A
cHoRoaaRrrc6N5l'24 37 EiloAGORoorsl&GOFT5dFEEÌ ÌÈENCES@'47 32"E
aosraNcÉoF705 20FÊEl lo fhE Êo MoFaÊGLNNrre,

INE $BDVSION MY AE üTENDED FROM INE NffiESI GÆ MAN SEfu CE EOESTA
OR TNSFORMER IO THE rcINI OF USE OEIfu]NED BY THE LOil¡ON ANO
øNIRUCTION OÊ UH SIRUCIURÉ UPON IHE LOI PRdLOÊO ISI UfuN IBE
INSIALúI ON OF A SERMCE qBLE OR N SW CE LINE IO A PARÎICUúR $RrcruRE
IHE SIPPLIER OF SERVCE S*!L ÍHEEAFER E DEEMEO TO SVE A OEFINIIW
PERMAMNI, ÊFFECNVÊ AND rcN.ÉrcLS]VÊ ASEMENÎ ON IÆ LOI COVER rc A 5
FæT gR P *IENONC 2 5 ÊÊft ON ACN SOE OF IHÊ SÊWICÊ ûBLE OR LLNÊ

SEFVG PEDESTÂL OR IUNSFORMÊR IO IHÊ SÉRV CÉ
ENÍRNEON TFE SIRICIIRE

G PAVIre ANO ßNOSGP rc WüìNæEMENIS

NWNE$ MEREOF,IHE rcUSIreAUrcRIñOFIHE qÛOFIULSÁúS AECUEÞ
ßErNSmWENtffrS OAY*_,ææ,

IHE MER OF IHE PrcPERT AFFECÍEO SilLL æ RESrcNSALE FOR INE REPALR ø

MANÎENArcE tr UNOErcROUNOWAIER SNIIÑ SfuER, SI@M Sfuæ, MI!ùL 6A5
COMMUMAION . d6LE IE!Û S ON OR ELEdRIC ÉACILIILæ WTHN ßÊ ASEMÊNI ARæ
OÊPLCIÊO UPON IHE AæOMPÂMIß PLÂI ÞRdIEO HOWR, ÌHÉ Ofl OF fULSÂ OR fHE
SUPPLTERoT-IHÉ flLlf SERVTCES&L WE RÊÆOM&E *RE N rHEP€trORMNcEOF

BY, 

-

MRd MREN. PESIGNf /EO3 lHE S@PL]ER d ELEdRC TELErcNE qBlE TELry]9ON ANO GÆ SERVIG.
IHROUGH TSreEMSANOÊMPLOYÊ€S.SilLLAIALLILMES¡AWIIERIGtsIOFrcCÉ$
IOÂLL ITILIIY æEMENISSHOWNON IHE PúI OR OIHEfuSE PrcV OED FOR IN THS
OEEÐ OF ÐÊDIANON FOR fHÉ PURrcSE OF INSTÂLLING, MANIANING REÑVING OR
REPüONG ANY PORTION OF IHE UNtrRGrcUNO ÊLECIRIC. IELEPIONÊ . @LE
TÉLWISIONOR GÆ ÊAC]LII€S NSIALÊO SY IIE SPPUÉR OFIHE UTILÍ SEWCÊ

)
)ss
)

INFæIRUCTURE gREFS WAIER, SNII*Y SMER SIORM SilER SYSTEMS dO
SDfuALKS) SfuN6 TNE ENIIRE S!ÐLVSION # BEEN ÓMPLEIEDÂNDÂæEPIED BY
fIÊ CIf NOMIJHSTANO NG IÆ FORÊGOING TIE CIfl MY AUIhORIZÉ IHE SWæ OF
a lÊMrcM* c€RlFcaE oF æcuFMy F N 1Æ Cris soLE orscffilroN, lrÊ
CIRCUMSIÆS SUPrcRI fHÉ I$!NCÉ FUFIHÉR NOilIIiSANOLT THE FO*GOIN6,
ft E C]N MAYAlIrcRtrEIÆ PMsING G IHECONSf Rø]ON OF INFFÆIRUCIIREW IHIN
IHE SGôVIS]ON ÂNO IF ffi]NC S AUIrcRtrEO, Ä CÊRÍÉ qrc OF OæIPNd FOR A

AæEPIANCE OÊ TÆ ]NÉ*fRUCIURE *RVNG ItsE PARIIOLffi PtrE SULOIß
COÑTRICIION æCURRING PROR IO IHE Oil'S AæEPÎANCE G IHE INFæIRUdUæ

1 TÆ MER G AM TOT SMLL Ftr IHE PfuIECIIfl OF IHE
UWre&€ SfuIG FAOLIÍ ES LOAIæ ON IHE MER'S LOI ÂM SMLL PRMM HS ¡NSTRUMENT W AfiNffi@O ôEF*E MÊ d NÉ 

- 
ùV 6

-,2O2O,BYMNOEN 

ÆPRÊSIOEM/CÉOOFflErcSNcAt]l1tr
I iltrÊÈ OÛd ruLS.ftÊELEMC rcLEPþM qÙEIAWßONORæFACILITIES ffi SUPLEROFTffiE

SEtrCES ML BE €rcN8LE FOR OROMR MMEWG tr ÆreruNO

FÂCILIT ES d6EO@ €CE$¡TAIEO ry gS ø IÆ LOI NR OR IHE LOI NR

5ff8 @VEWIS grcRTH N INIS gN6d MLL BE EMORCA4E BY üCH SUPPUtr tr
fHÊ ÉLÊdRG IAÊPrcNE,6SLEIARßON ORqS SRVICENDINEMNER OFNY LOT
ACREÊS IO BE OND 3Y frÉS æV€WS

SNALL BEAI IHE RIY OF IHE OWNER æ fHE LOI, NOIWÎHSTANONG IHE ISslME d A
BU LOIrc PERMIÌOR OÊÂfÉMæMRY CÊRIIF CAGOFOæUPANd

SEBIE9AIE-9ESCBYEY
C WAER $IIARY SMR ANO STORM SMR SERVICÊ

¡, _ oF _, a LTGNSEO IN
SUMY* RÊGISÉRAO IN IHË SÌAE * OKUHdA, HÉæBY GRNÉY ûAI I MVÊ
*EFULLY NÞ AøUùELY SÚMYEO, SU6OVIOEO, NO ÞUftO üÊ Iæf S
LN æSCRIBED &W, ANO M' THE A@dPNYING PUI æSIGMEO HÊRÊIN 6
SIN CREEK &Lø. A SUBqVßþN IN ûE CIil OF 8RflEN ARROq WdER
dNfl. SIAG **UHM,IS A trPtrSENTAION OFIHE SURVEY Mæ ON frE
*OUþ 6ING GENEMLLYAæÉPEO LN SURWYIÑ PRrcTGS NO MÉÊß *

1 THE ÑNER OF NY LOT SúLI BE RÊSPONSISLE FOR IHÊ PROÎÊCÍION OF IHE PUSL C
WAI€R MAINS SANTMY SfuER MÁ NS ÀM SIæM WERS LOåIEÐ ON IHE WNÉR '

2 W]TN]NUIILITYæEMãNISOEPICI€DONTÆrcCOMPÂNYINGPLAI, fÆALIEùIONOF
GMDEFrcMIHEæMOURSilISfIT UPON IHE@MP!ÍLONç IIEINSfA4I OOF
À PU8ILC WATER MAN $NLTARY $WER MAN , OR AÍORM SMR OR ANY
æNIRUCTION ACTVTY WALCH ]N TN€ JUæMENI ø TÆ CIÛ OF IULSA rcULD

3 IHE CT OF IILSA O(úHOMA OR IIS SUæE$RS, SLL BE RÉSPOÑBLE FOR
OROWY MANIEIN€ OF PUBIIC WÂÍER SYSTEMS $NIARY SryER MANS ÁND
SIORM SMRS SUIIHE LOIOMERSULL PAY FORNAGEOR RErcATONS SICN
FACILÍ S qGÉO OR NEC6SIIAI€O SY ÂCfS OF IIE LOT OMER OR IHE LOI OWMR
's ñENls aNo / oR coNlmoore

4 IHE CT OF IUL$, O&#OMA OR LIS SUæSSORS SülL AT AL IIMES UVE RLGBT

OF @E$ TO 4L UÍIIIIY EÆEMENTS DEPIfrED ON IHÉ ÆCdPNY NO PúI OÊ
OINERWS PrcV#D FOR N IHIS DEEO OF OEDIA1ON FOR IHE PURPOSE OF
NSIAILING MANÎANNG RErcVIre OR REPUCIrc ÂT rcRTON tr INDERGR@ÑO
wa ÊR sÀ\¡ÆY sMq oq soRusÊftR 'æL 

r'Es

5 IHE COVENANIS ST FORIH IN fH]S SUSÊCÍ L ON SEL æ ÊNFORCÉÆLÊ AY IHÊ C Ì
OFIILSA OASOMA OR LISSÆSSORS NIHEMEROFfHE LOTreREæIO BE
æUNO BY IHSE COVEMMS

æ@MPANYNG PúT ARE HEREBY ESIÂBLL$EO FOR INE FURrcS6 OF FERMTIre
VÊHICUúRANOPEOESTR]SÆCESS IOANOFROM AL SIREETSANOAREASMCENTIO
ANO CONIA NEO WIHN IHE SIBO VISION SICH ASEMEMS SMLL A€ FôR IHE MUIIA! USE
ANO BENEF I ôF SCH ÆFECISD LOI OWMR, THERGIESIS AND]NVJTEES, ANOS!! BE
æPURIEMNI IO ACHÆFECTED LOT OWNER, PROV DED GOWRNMENIA AGENCLæ ÂND
fNE SUPPLIERS ff ÚILITY SÊRVCES SüLL ME IHE RæOMBLE Æ OF SH
æÊMÊMS rrcræNlÂ! tO ÎHÊ P&VrgON OF SERVGS fO l!É LOÌS WIHIN ltsE

EXCEEDS BE ruHM M¡NIMUM SIA@AÐS FOR H PMCICE OF UND
SURVÊYIÑG Æ AMPED.

ftE ßË OF R6ERE ÆE6 ã SLL ÊÉ LMIIEO fO OPEN SPACE RECREATION,
WÑCæIN6 PEOESTR N WALMAYS, ND WALLS wnEss MY lN ANO SE4 ftrS mY S , 2020.

TÈE OMER UVE ã6EO IHE YED SAKEO PLAfiÊO ANO
IN æNFORMIÍ WII IHE

ÆOMPÂNYINC Fúf ÀNO HAW æSIGMTED IHE SUBTVSION Æ RIVER WESI PffiÊ M.
HÉRÊINAFIÊR RÊFERRÊO IO Æ IHÊ'SUMVON', Â SUæIVSON N IHE C]il OF TISA SIATE

IHE lSEOF ÉSERVÊÆæ rc S&L AEL MITEO IO OFEN$AGÂNO BIODEIENTION

IICEÑÉD P|GSS¡M UND SURWYOR

IHE ilNERS NEREBV æOL*fÊ fOIHÊ PGL]C IrcSÉ rcffþNSOF SIRÊEI RGNÌS.d-
WAY S ÆS æRO STRET Æ CPIæD ON IHÊ ffiÑI6 PúI Ñ FUtrHÊR
ÉÞLdI6 IO IHE P@IC ft UîLIN æMEMS Æ EãÕED ON IÉ MPN NG PüI

W]ÍNINIHEPROVSIONSOFSd]ONI PUSLCSREFS, æÊMÊTSANOUI]L]IIES,ARÉST
FOtrN CERIAN æWMÑTS NO THE ENFOrc€MENI RIGHIS PERIAIMNG IHEREIO NO
WÛtsER OR rcI üEREIN S SIAIEDIHE @V€MNTSWIts N SECTLON ] SH[! INURË IO
THE BENEF IOFANDB€EMORCæLE BY IHEC]IYOFIULS OKúHM IFEIIN€ROF THE

ÆS GNS SHEL VIOúIE ANY ff THE COVEMNIS W IHIN SÊCT]ON I TtsÉ SUPPL ER OF
Uf lLN SRVCÊ OR CIÛ OF IUISÀ O&AHOM MAY BRING ÂN ÂCT]ON AI UW OR ]N EO! W
ÆÁINST TH€ PERSON OR PÊMN ViOLAIIÑC OF AII€MPTING IO VOLÂE ÂM SCH
WENANI TOPRilENTNIM OR THEM FæM SO æNG ORIO@MPEIæMFLNE WÌH
IHE 6VENNI@ TO RÊ@VER NMES IN NY JUOCA rcTId BROUGM fO ÊNFOM
tHÊ cdÊMNfs ÊsfÀaLrsÊDwfHrN tils oEÊo0F 0Êordf10N, lhÊ oÉFEñ lfaf ftsÊ
PARW NIIÑIrc IHE EOULÍÆLE PMEEOre U6 AN AOEOUIE REMEDY AT UW LS

THE$ RESIRLCILON. IO IHE EXIENI PERMINÊO BY ÂPPLIùSLÊ BW StsAL SE
PERPEIUA! BlT INAY MNI SMLL AE IN FORCÉ ANO EFFEfr FORÂ ERú OF NOI LE$
fUN IHLRT (S)YæA FrcM THE OAIEOF THERE@RONG OF THJS æEOOF DEûCAIION
UNLES TERMIÑATEDOR MENOEOÆ HEæINÆER MdIOEO

Æ,U/E 'tr 'UI LIY WMEilT ffift€WFML PURUESOF @NSMU6Ire, MAIÂINre
@ERANre, æPAIRLM, REPW re, ANdOR æMOVNG AM ANO AlL PU4IC IILII€S
¡NùUOI6 STORM S8S . SI^RY SMRS , EIEPHOE ÀNO @MMUMCÀNd ! ilG ELEIRIC
MR lNÉS N TMfuEæ, 6 LIÉS, WAIER LI€ AE @É IELÛ SION LINES
IOGEIHÊR WII ÁLL ÊTINGS. NCLUOIre üÉ rcLES WRÊg CONOU]1S PIPES VÂLVES
MÍÉRS MANÐLES AND EOULPMÊNI FOR æI OF SUCH FACILIIIES ANO NY OÌHÊR
APPURIENArcæ IHERf,O WTHTHE RICHISF INGÈ$ANOFCR€$ IOANOUrcN ÛE
UILLIY æEMENIS FOR ÎH€ US€S NO P@POSES STAIEO PRryOEO ACH OF IHE
OWMRS RESERVES IHE RIGffi UIq LAY NO REPALR OR
REPUCE WAIER IINES ÂNÐ SMER L]NES, TGEIHER WTN IHE RIGHI OF ]NGRE$ ANO
EGR6SF@SrcHCONSTRæIJON MANTEMrcE,OæUION úYLE.æPARINGANDffi,

WÎHIN lNE PrcPæfi MEDAYÛEPÂRILCUÆ øGR FORIH€PURæOFF!RNISHIÑô
WAIER ÂNæR SMR SERVCES IO ARæ æPløED ON IHE PúI.INE OWR H€RAN
MrcS6AR6IR CTIVECryEWI, WNICHæV&NTSMLLæBINOrcONACHLOI @NER
NÐ SMLL BE ENFæ€&E BY INE C ft OF IUL$ O(úHOM, NO W THE SUPPLIEROF

MEMS EPCTED ON IHE
ÆOMPANÍT PUI rc BUILqNG STRUCTRE OR OINERAþW OR BELOW GrcUNO

IMD PruæOþTH]rc
HÉRÊIN SMLL BEOEEMED IO P CUREINC. úN@Pre

1 INE SUPFL€R S qS SEW
IIMES üW THE R GNI OF ÁæES IO ALL !I LIW ASEMENTS SWN
AS OTHEM$ PRdIOED FOR LN IHS ÞEEO OF OEOICAIION FOR TNE PURPOSE OF
INSTALLLrc, REMOV NG, REPARrc, OR REPúC re ÂW POR' ON OF INE FrcLLT]ES
INSIÂLLËO AY f AE SUPPLLER 6 6ß SERVICE

2 IHE OWNER OF ANY LOI SMIL & RESPN€L€ FOR TNE PROIECTION OF IHE
UNOERGROUND GÆ FrcI]TIES LO*IEO WIHIN TÆ LOI AND SHALL PRMNI IH€
{fEMION S GæE OR AW OIHÉR @NSIRUCIION gIVft WHCH rcULD
]NTEËEREWIHCÆ SERVIG IE SUFIER OF GÆ SEWCE SUIL BE R€SrcNSIBLE
FOR IHE ORÛîw MANTEMNCE OF ITS FAOLIIIES, AU IHE LOI @N€R SüLL PÂY

AC(NWEæMENI

COUNflq ruLS

)
)
)

3 IHE @VENdIS SI FORTH IN IHß SASEOION SH{L AE EÑF@CÊÆLE AY ftE
SUFPLLERGINEGÆSERVCEÀNDINEOWNEROFIHElOIreRESIOBEAOUNOAY

THE COVENIS CONIALNED WTHIN SECIION , PIBL C STR€EIS æEMFNIS AND ITILII E6
MAY AE AMENDED OR TERMIMIED AT AT IME BY MITTEN INSIRUMENT SGNEO NO
ÆKNOWEreED AY IÆ OWNER OF TÆ úNO IO WHICH IHE AMENOMENT OR IæMIMI I ON
LS TO BE APPLIqALE NO æPrcVEO AY THE IUL$ MEIROPOLIN ÆA PhNNre
CdMI$ION, OR fS SrcCESRSAND C IY OF TUL$, OKIÆMÂ IHÊ PROVSdS OF AW
INTRUM€NI AMENûre OR IERMIMING IÆ RESNIC¡Oß OR CdEWfS SüLL AÊ
ffFECIIVÉ IPON ÂND ÆIER IHE INSIRUMENI IS RE@ROEO N IHE Oæ]CÊOF IÆ IULSA

ACH LOI SMI REGLVE NÐ DùIN IN AN UNGSIRIOEO MNNER, IHE STOfr dÐ
SURFACE WAIE6 FROM LOIS ND DRAWEÆæOF HIGtsER ELTAION Ñ lOI dNR
SULL CONSIRUÍ OR PERMII IO BE @NSN!qEO ANY FErcING OR OTÆR
OÑRUCI]ONS WHIG WOULÐ MPÀR IhE OUIrcE OF STORM NO $RFACE WÀI€S '"*'r@-m

12.11-M

SHEEI2 OF2

J
\J



:

lll

!4
CONCEPTUAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

RIVER WEST PHASE III & IV
r
I

R12E

A RE-SUADNISION OF PÀRT OF BLOCK I ANO BLOCK ilI OF THE RIVERVIEW PARKÆDITION IN IHE
NORTH HALF (N/2) OF SECTTON FOURTEEN (14), TOWNSHTP NINEÍÊEN (19) NORTH, ilNGE
ilELVE (12) AST OF THE INOIAN BASE ANO MERIDIAN, CIW OF TULSA, TULSA COUNIY, STATÊ

OF OKUHOMA,
T

19

N

POINÎ OF!AK ADDT]ON

0 50 75 r00

læ¡:!-l

RIVERVIEW
Loætion Map

IMPROVEMÊNÎS LEGENO

PROPOSÊD SN IÆY SEWEfl L N'

otst€R ENGINEER SURVEYOR

191û)5e$S

'¡

I
¡

J
(¡

"a



TM
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonníng Commission

Case Number: CPA-90
Comprehensive Plan Amendment
(Related lo Z-7572)

Hearinq Date: October 7 ,2020

Case Report Prepared bv:

Jani Wertin

Owner and Applicant lnformation:

Applicant. Russell Muzika

Propertv Owner: Tahir Khan
Location Map
(shown with City Council Districts)

Applicant Proposal:

Land Use Map change from New Neighborhood
to Main Sfreef

Tract Size. 1.05 + acres

Location: West of the Southwest corner of East 36th

Street North & North Garrison Avenue

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval oÍ the proposed
Main Sfreeú land use desig
45 feet of the subiect tract.

nation for the north

Staff does not recommend approval of a land
use change for the remainder of the tract south
of that line.

Gomprehensive Plan:

Land Use Map
Existing: New Neighborhood
Proposed: Main Street

Stability and Growth Map
Existing: Area of Growth
Proposed: Area of Growth

Zoning
Existing Zoning: RM-'1
Proposed Zoning: CS

Citv Gouncil District: 1

Councilor Name. Vanessa Hall-Harper

Countv Commission District: 1

Commissioner Name; Stan Sallee

a

October 7th,2020
t



TMAPC Staff Report
cPA-90

Comprehensive Plan Amendment

Property lnformation and Land use Request

The property in question is a 1.86 acre tract of land made up of two separate parcels, which the

applicant wishes to combine through the platting process. The applicant has submitted the

following Comprehensive Plan amendment request to amend the land use designation of the

southern 1.05 acre tract of the subject property from New Neighborhoodto Main Sfreef. This

request is accompanied by a concurrent re-zoning request (2-7571), which proposes a zoning

change on the entire 1.86 acre tract from RM-1 to CS in order to permit an existing convenience

store and proposed auto-repair shop.

Background

The parcel involved in this Comprehensive Plan amendment request is located in North Tulsa,
just south of 36th Street North, and abuts a single-family residential neighborhood to the east and

south, a single-family residential home and vacant lot to the west, as well as a service station and

convenience store to the north. This segment of the 36th Street North also contains a mixture of

commercial retail, non-profit, and religious assembly uses.

ln October of 2013, the 36th Street North Corridor Small Area Plan was adopted and the land use

designations of specific parcels were amended to reflect land uses that more closely aligned with

the vision of this plan. This included changing the land use designation of the Osage Casino from

Town Center to Regional Center, the parcels abutting 36th Street North between Osage Prairie

Trail and North Elgin Avenue from Town Center to Main Street, and expanding the Town Center

land use designation to more parcels around the intersection of 36th Street North and Peoria

Avenue and further south along Peoria Avenue. Despite these changes to the surrounding land

uses and the subject property's proximity to 36th Street North, the land use designation for the

northern parcel with the existing service station and convenience store was changed to Main

Street, while the southern parcel remained the same, retaining both the land use designation and

growth and stability designation it was assigned by the Comprehensive Plan in 2010, New

Neighborhood and Area of Growth.

The 36th Street North Corridor Small Area Plan aims to identify major capital improvements and

public/private investments that will spur positive change and help draw attention to the area's

many attractions, fostering this image of 36th Street North as a bustling commercial center

minutes from downtown, that is a diverse, attractive place to live and invest. This vision includes

the fostering of an entertainment district around the Osage Casino, increasing connectivity and

access to goods and services through a walkable Main Street, and transit-oriented developments

on Peoria Avenue. ln order to achieve this vision, the 36th Street North Corridor Small Area Plan

proposes policies that improve and expand the local trail system, encourage economic

development and diverse housing options, and increase connectivity and walkability through

improvements to transit, bicycle, and pedestrian infrastructure, as well as streetscapes.

2
8.

October 7$,2020

L



Existing Land Use and Growth Designations

A New Neighborhood land use designation was assigned to the area subject to the amendment

request at the time of the adoption of the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan in 2010:

"The New Neighborhood designation is intended for new communities developed on

vacant land. These neighborhoods are comprised primarily of single-family homes on a
range of lot sizes but can include townhouses and low-rise apartments or condominiums.

These areas should be designed to meet high standards of internal and external

connectivity and shall be paired with an existing or new Neighborhood or Town Center."

When the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan was developed and adopted in 2010, the subject tract was

designated as an Area of Growth:

"The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel
growth to where it will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and

services with fewer and shorter auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where
general agreement exists that development or redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are

taken to plan for, and, in some cases, develop or redevelop these areas, ensuring that

existing residents will not be displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to increase

economic activity in the area to benefit existing residents and businesses, and where

necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop."

Proposed Land Use Designat¡on (Tulsa Comprehensive Plan)

The applicant is proposing the Main Sfreef land use designation for the subject property:

"Main Streets are Tulsa's classic linear centers. They are comprised of residential,

commercial, and entertainment uses along a transit-rich street usually two to four lanes

wide and includes much lower intensity residential neighborhoods situated behind. Main

Streets are pedestrian-oriented places with generous sidewalks, storefronts on the ground

floor of buildings, and street trees and other amenities. Visitors from outside the

surrounding neighborhoods can travel to Main Streets by bike, transit, or car. Parking is

provided on street, small private off street lots, or in shared lots or structures."

Zoning and Surrounding Uses

Existing UseLocation Existing Zoning Existing Land Use
Designation

Area of Stability
or Growth

N RM-1 Main Street Area of Growth Service Station and
convenience store

S RS-3 Existing
Neighborhood

Area of Stability Single-family Residential

E RS-3 Existing
Neiqhborhood

Area of Stability Single-family Residential

October 7'h,2020

Area of Growth

3

W MX 1-U-55/AG Main StreeUNew
Neiqhborhood

Vacant/ Single-family
Residential

9.3



Applicant's J ustification

As part of the amendment application, the applicant is asked to justify their amendment request

Specifically, they are asked to provide a written justification to address:

1. How conditions on the subject site have changed, as well as those on adjacent properties

and immediate area;

2. How changes have impacted the subject site to warrant the proposed amendment; and;

3. How the proposed change will enhance the surrounding area and the City of Tulsa.

"To Whom lt May Concern,

Mr. Kahn's convenience store, known as "Jerrod Grocery" is in an area that does not appear to

have changed and rs sfab/e. Mr. Kahn purchased two parcels (as depicted by the Tulsa County

Assessoy' together as one parcel with the store in 2015. The convenience store and gas pumps

appear to have been operating since 1982. Both parcels have been owned and sold under the

same vesting deeds since 1982 and are both currently zoned RM-1. While fhe assessor shotøs

two parcels, the northerly parcel being the store and a southerly parcel being vacant, they are
inextricably tied together and owned by Mr. Kahn under one warranty deed. The southerly parcel

cannot be accessed except through the northerly parcel. The "36th Sfreeú Notth Corridor Small

Area Plan" Shor¡¡s the recommendation for the parcels fronting 36th Street North in that area to be
"Main Street" designation. However, the plan shows the north and south parcel as separate
parcels and designated the southerly parcel as "New Neighborhood". We believe these two
parcels should be recognized as one parcel and thereby allowing the change to the southerly
parcel to be "Main street" and allowing the zoning change of both parcels to become CS and
subsequent plat of both together. We believe this request is not changing fhe essence or vision

of the area, but more so adjusting the two parcels to be more appropriate for actuality. Mr. Kahn

is investing in the area and believes he serves the locals with convenience and a good neighbor
spirit."

Staff Summary & Recommendation

The 1.05 acre parcel involved in this Comprehensive Plan amendment is located in North Tulsa,
just south of 36th Street North, and abuts a single-family residential neighborhood to the east and

south, a single-family residential home and vacant lot to the west, as well as a service station and

convenience store to the north. Despite changes to the land use designation of some neighboring
parcels, the land use designation and growth and stability designation assigned to this parcel by

the Comprehensive Plan in 2010 has remained the same, New Neighborhood and Area of
Grovvth.

The applicant has requested both a Comprehensive Plan amendment and a concurrent re-zoning
(2-7571) to change the land use designation of the southern 1.05 acre tract from New
Neighborhood to Main Sfreef, as well as change the entire 1.86 acre tract from RM-1 to CS in
order to permit an existing convenience store and proposed auto-repair shop.

According to the applicant, the convenience store and gas pumps have both been operating, as

well as owned and sold under the same vesting deeds since 1982 and the area does not appear
to have changed. The applicant believes that "while the assessor shows two parcels, the northerly

4October 7th,2020
r.q



parcel being the store and a southerly parcel being vacant, they are inextricably tied together and

owned by Mr. Kahn under one warranty deed," and should be recognized as one parcel, noting

that the southerly parcel cannot be accessed except through the northerly parcel. The applicant

further suggests that these requests would not change the "essence or vision of the area," but

would more so be an "adjustment of the two parcels to be more appropriate for actuality." While

these parcels may have been sold together throughout the years, unless the parcels have been

through the lot combination or platting process, the lots are still legally separate and are

considered separately on issues of land use and zoning.

This is an important area of the City that is undergoing transformation. There is significant City

focus and investment in this corridor, starting with the adoption of the 36th Street North Corridor

Small Area Plan. As implementation of that plan, the City is rebuilding this segment of 36th Street

North which will include a pedestrian oriented streetscape project anticipated to begin

construction in Spring of 2021.

Without a development plan that offers more detail on the development, how it will impact the

adjacent neighborhoods, and what may be done to mitigate any negative impacts on abutting

residential uses, there is a need to limit the depth of the expansion of the Main Street land use

designation. Given the extreme terrain south and west on the site, future residential expansion

at this location is limited and a natural buffer is provided to abutting residential. The single home

on top of a hill in the AG district southwest of this site and is separated by over 90 feet of elevation

change. Staff cannot support an amendment to the entire parcel, however because of this
physical barrier on the southern portion of the property, staff recommends approval of the

proposed Main Streef land use designation for the north 45 feet of the subiect tract. Staff does

not recommend approval of a land use change for the remainder of the tract south of that line.

October 71h,2020 u8'5



9{

É

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN

NEW NEIGHBORHOOD

-

I

I Ál

E35g¡¿

I
a.
ro
(Þ

u¡

ì
o
q)
(Ð

ll¡

q'"

a

! Downto^rn

I Downtown Neighborhood

I main street

Mixed-Use Corridor

! negional Center

f TownCenter

Neighborhood Center

Employrnent

New Neighborhood

Existing Neighborhood

Park and Open Space

Arkensâs River Conidor

Land Use Plan Gategories

I
I

0
Feet
300 600 cPA-90

ÊJ 20-12 24 8.t



,'r,\$øÑ

I
Ê

SUBJECT TRACT

I
o
t¡)
(Þ

ll¡

ì
q.
u)
c)
lrt

E35g¡4,

Growtlr and Stability

I''^*urr'enffi
..''''Area 

of Stabilíff

ìl

6003000

Feet cPA-90
20-12 24 81



l c H

CG

\,
i- -i

-.3
!

!RS

j \l

s

-=

; lr r
:t-l
i- :.

:i-:
A- , 

--

P-

CS

SUBJECT TRACT

1-U-55 GH

ics CSCH
CHCS

'/'l. CS

RM.

RS.3 tr¡

AG

G

=
0-
ro
(Þ
l¡J

E355¡47

RM-1

E34STN

<ô-
r,.rP

+
AG

rl

i - -.1

!_1

LEGEND

Tulsa Corporate L¡m¡ts

l

ño
i:

l

reEt

N

0

Feet
300 600 cPA-90

20-12 24 tr,tr



6003000
Feet

Subject
Tract

cPA-90 Note: Graphic overlays may not prec¡sely
al¡gn with physical features on the ground.

20-12 24 Aerial Photo Date: February 2018 g.ì



0
Feet
50 100

Subject
Tract

cPA-90 Note: G,€,ph¡c overlays may not prec¡sely
align with physical features on the ground.

20-12 24 Aeñal Photo Date: February 2018

3.lo



TMre
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonning Commission

Case Number: 2-7572 (Related to CPA-90)

Hearinq Date: October 7 ,2020

Case Report Prepared bv:

Dwayne Wilkerson

Owner and Applicant lnformation

Applicant: Russell Muzika

Property Owner. Tahir A. Khan

Location Map:
(shown with City Council Districts)

Applicant Proposal:

Present Use'. Convenience Store

Proposed Use: Convenience Store/Auto Repair

Concept summary: The business is a non-
conforming use in an RM-1 district. The business
has been in place for decades and is hoping to
expand.

Tract Size: 1.86 + acres

Location'. West of the Southwest corner of East 36th
Street North & North Garrison Avenue

Zoninq:

Existing Zoning: RM-1

Proposed Zoning: CS

Comprehensive Plan:

Land Use Map: New Neighborhood/Main
Street

Stability and Growth Map. Area of Growth

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of GS zoning for the
north 260 feet of the subject tract. Staff does not
recommend rezoning the remainder of the tract
south of that line.

A concurrent request has been submitted for
amending the land use map of the
comprehensive plan to adjust the Main Street
Land use designation to that same line.

Staff Data:

TRS: 0224
CZM: 28

Gitv Council District: 1

Councilor Name: Vanessa Hall-Harper

Countv Commission District: 1

Commissioner Name; Stan Sallee

9.f REVTSED rO/L/202O



SECTION l: 2-7572

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT: The applicant has submitted a request to rezone the subject property
from RM-1 to CS and has a concurrent comprehensive plan amendment request to change the current
land use designation from New Neighborhood to Main Street in order to allow an existing convenience
store, as well as an auto-repair shop. The applicant has mentioned that the convenience store and gas
pumps appear to have been operating since 1982 and both parcels have been sold and utilized as one
property since that time as well. The applicant plans to formally combine these parcels through the
platting process.

EXHIBITS:
INCOG Case map
INCOG Aerial (small scale)
INCOG Aerial (large scale)
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Areas of Stability and Growth Map
Applicant Exhibits:

ALTA Survey

DETAILED STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

2-7572 is fully contained by the 36th Street North Corridor Small Area Plan was adopted in October of
2013 and amended in September 2016. At that time the land use designations for most parcels
abutting 36th Street North between Osage Prairie Trail and North Elgin Avenue were changed from
Town Center to Main Street to reflect the goals of the plan to create a well-connected, walkable main
street with access to goods and services, diverse housing options, and public transportation. CS
zoning provides uses and opportunities to accomplish those goals and,

CS zoning is consistent with many of the parcels abutting East 36th Street North are commercially
zoned (either CS or CH) and is consistent with the Main Street Land use designation along that
corridor. and,

Commercial parcels along this corridor are spaced beyond what would normally be considered a Main
street vision. The separation appears to be more of a function of these parcels' current state of
development rather than an intentional distancing, meaning that these parcels have the potential to
further develop in the future. Appropriate infill along this corridor is important to achieve the goals of
the Main Street land use designation and CS zoning supports opportunities to achieve that goal and,

CS zoning allows a variety of low impact, service oriented commercial uses and allows residential
building types such as townhouses, mixed-use, and apartments, meaning that a diverse range of
housing options could also be developed and,

CS zoning may be appropriate on the subject property where the convenience store is located on the
subject tracts closest to 36th Street North however the uses allowed in a CS district would adversely
affect abutting residential uses south, east and west of the site and it is not consistent with the Main
Street Vision of the Comprehensive plan, however

Due to the extreme terrain south and west on the site, future residential expansion at this location is
limited and a natural buffer is provided to abutting residential, therefore,

Staff recommends Approval of 2-7572 to rezone the north 260 feet of the subject property from RM-1

Lto CS qa

REVTSED 10lV2020



SECTION ll: Supporting Documentation

RE ONS IP TO THtr COIMPRF

Staff Summarv:

The north portion of the subject property currently has a Land Use designation of Main

StreeVNew Neighborhood and an Area of Stability or Growth designation of Area of Growth, as

assigned by the Comprehensive Plan in 2010. As the subject area is within the bounds of the
36th Street North Corridor Small Area Plan which was originally adopted in October of 2013
and amended in September 2016, this small area plan aims to identify major capital
improvements and public/private investments that will spur positive change and help draw
attention to the area's many attractions, fostering this image of 36th Street North as a bustling

commercial center minutes from downtown, that is a diverse, attractive place to live and invest.

This vision includes the fostering of an entertainment district around the Osage Casino,
increasing connectivity and access to goods and services through a walkable Main Street, and

transit-oriented developments on Peoria Avenue. ln order to achieve this vision, the 36th Street
North Corridor Small Area Plan proposes policies that improve and expand the local trail
system, encourage economic development and diverse housing options, and increase
connectivity and walkability through improvements to transit, bicycle, and pedestrian
infrastructure, as well as streetscapes.

The subject property lies within the stretch of 36th Street North designated to be a walkable
Main Street. As implementation of the small area plan, the City is rebuilding this segment of
36th Street North which will include a pedestrian oriented streetscape project anticipated to
begin construction in Spring of 2021.

Land Use Vision:

Land lJse Plan map designation'. New Neighborhood on South and Main Street on North

Main Streets are Tulsa's classic linear centers. They are comprised of residential, commercial,
and entertainment uses along a transit-rich street usually two to four lanes wide and includes
much lower intensity residential neighborhoods situated behind. Main Streets are pedestrian-
oriented places with generous sidewalks, storefronts on the ground floor of buildings, and street
trees and other amenities. Visitors from outside the surrounding neighborhoods can travel to
Main Streets by bike, transit, or car. Parking is provided on street, small private off street lots,

or in shared lots or structures.

HENSIVE PI AN

The New Neighborhood designation is intended for new communities developed on vacant
land. These neighborhoods are comprised primarily of single- family homes on a range of lot

sizes but can include townhouses and low-rise apartments or condominiums. These areas
should be designed to meet high standards of internal and external connectivity and shall be
paired with an existing or new Neighborhood or Town Center.

of Stability and Growth designation: Area of Growth

The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel growth to

where it will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and services with

fewer and shorter auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where general_agreement

1.3 ̂
,,,,,,,,o,,,,o,o

Areas



exists that development or redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are taken to plan for, and, in

some cases, develop or redevelop these areas, ensuring that existing residents will not be
displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to increase economic activity in the area to benefit
existing residents and businesses, and where necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop.

Transportation Vision :

Major Sfreef and Highway Plan: None affecting site redevelopment however anticipated reconstruction
of East 36th Street North is currently funded and construction will begin next year.

Trail System Master Plan Considerations: None affecting site redevelopment

SmallArea Plan: 36th Street North Corridor SmallArea Plan

Special District Considerations: This site is included in the Healthy Neighborhood Overlay

The purpose of the healthy neighborhoods overlay (HNO) is to modify and supplement regulations in a
specified area where there is a desire for greater diversity in retail options and convenient access to
fresh meats, fruits and vegetables. These regulations are intended to:

a. Avoid and reduce over-concentration of small box discount stores in the area.
b. Encourage and streamline grassroots access to fresh meats, fruits and vegetables
c. Encourage a greater diversity of retail activity and purchasing options within the area.
d. Allow for a more community-based approach to distributing and purchasing fresh meats, fruits
and vegetables in a specified area.
e. Promote investment and development in a community where change is desired.

Historic Preservation Overlav: There are no historic preservation overlays that require consideration in

this area.

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS

Staff Summarlt:

The subject property includes two separate parcels. The north parcel includes the existing
convenience store and fueling station. That parcel boundary is approximately 165 feet from
the planned right of way.

The second parcelrs soufh and land-locked, undeveloped and extends approximately 240 feet
south from the north parcel. The applicant plans to combine fhese parcels through the platting
process. This property also abuts a bus route with a stop directly in front of the convenience
store on E. 3dh Street North.

Northland Commercial Strip Center is located on the north side of 36rh Sfreet Norfh and is
occupied by a variety of commercial and non-profit businesses. East and south of the sife rs a
subdivision with single-family detached homes. West of the subject tract is a piece of land
which was rezoned to MX1-U-55 in 2016 but remains undeveloped and AG zoned property with
a single residence at the top of the hill.

Extreme terrain south and west will limit future residential expansion at this location. The single
home on top of a hill in the AG district southwest of this site and is separated by over 90 feet of
elevation change. q_4

l'i
REVTSED 10/V2020



The north portion of the sife is included in a Tulsa Regulatory flood plain. (Refer to exhibit on
following page for graphics)

3388

,.''.'

;1r'. J':'rí, fi-- #

2' Contour and Tulsa Regulatory Floodplain exhibit above

Q,5

"T
Ë

- 
'1,

I

rr

/l
I
L\

Figure 1. Street view from the northern edge of the property facing south

REVTSED rO/r/2O2O



Figure 2. Bus stop directly north of the property facing east

h.-
Figure 3. Street view from the front of the property looking north

qb
Figure 4. Street view from the front of the property looking easUsoutheast

REVTSED rO/r/2O20



're

:l

Figure 5. View from the western edge of the parking lot and northern edge of the property
looking west.

Environmental Considerations: There are no specific environmental considerations that would affect
redevelopment of the site.

Streets

Exist. Access MSHP Desiqn MSHP RAA/ Exist. # Lanes

E. 36th St. N Secondary Arterial 100 ft 4lanes

Utilities

The subject tract has municipal water and sewer available

Surroundinq Properties.

Location Existing Zoning Existing Land Use
nation

Area of Stability
or Growth

Existing Use

Commercial Stri Center
S m Residential
S m Residential

Vacant/ Single-family
Residential

borhood En

The Tulsa Planning Office has mailed notices to property owners within 300 feet of the subject
property, contracted a sign company to install a change of zoning notice sign, and published notice in

the local newspaper. The planning office also has mapped current pending zoning cases in our
website at tulsaplanning.org.

Staff is not aware of a formal neighborhood engagement process between the applicant and property
owners. Also, staff is not aware of any neighborhood correspondence about the possible change in
the 36th Street North Small Area Plan.

N
S
E

W

ol,7

CH Main Street Area of Growth
Area of StabilitvRS-3 Existinq Neighborhood

RS-3 Existino Neiqhborhood Area of Stabilitv
Main Street/New Neighborhood Area of GrowthMX 1-U-55/AG

REVTSED rO/r/2O2O



SECTION lll: Relevant Zoning History

ZONING ORDINANCE: Ordinance number 1 1918 dated September 1, 1970 established zoning for
the subject property.

Subject Property:

SA-3 April 2018: All concurred in approval at city council (TMPAC recommended denial) to
apply supplemental zoning, HNO (Healthy Neighborhoods Overlay), to multiple properties

within the plan area boundaries of Greenwood Heritage Neighborhoods Sector Plan (also

known as the Unity Heritage Neighborhoods Plan), 36th Street North Corridor Small Area Plan,

and The Crutchfield Neighborhood Revitalization Master Plan (related to ZCA-7). Both the
subject property and the surrounding area are included in this overlay.

BOA-14542 Auqust 1987: The Board of Adjustment approved a Variance of the required
screening along the west boundary of the property in question, finding that the subject tract is
abutted by vacant land on the west lot line, on property located 558 East 36th Street North.

Surrounding Property:

2-7336 Mav 2016= All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 218+ acre tract of
land from AG/CS to MX1-U-55 for mixed use, on property located west of the southwest corner
of East 36th Street North and North Garrison Avenue.

2-7318 Withdrawn November 2015: Request to rezone a 2.18+ acre tract of land from AG/CS
to CH for mixed-use, on property located west of the southwest corner of East 36th Street North
and North Garrison Avenue, was withdrawn November 241h,2015.

2-7294 Withdrawn March 2015: Request to rezone a 2.18+ acre tract of land from AG/CS to
CH for mixed-use, on property located west of the southwest corner of East 36th Street North
and North Garrison Avenue, was withdrawn March 26th, 2015.

BOA-20477 April2O07: The Board of Adjustment approved a Verification of the 300ft spacing
requirementfor an adult entertainment establishment, as presented on agenda pages 11.7 and
11.8, and a Special Exception to permit an adult entertainment establishment on a lot within
150ft of an R district to permit a coffee house/beer bar, subject to a time limit of three years for
this space only, as shown on agenda page 11.6, subject to no outside consumption areas
designated, nor music or other outside entertainment, and no food preparation within the
facility, on property located at 567 East 36th Street North.

BOA-13861 December 1985: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception lo
allow a light industrial use in a CH, on property located at the northwest corner of 36th Street
North and Hartford Avenue.

80A-07460 Mav 1972: The Board of Adjustment interpreted that the requested use falls within
Use Unit 5 of the Zoning Ordinance, and approved an Exception to permit using property for a
nonprofit educational corporation for the training of persons engaged in the field of household
employment in order to further the education and improve the working conditions of these
persons, on property located at 506 East 36th Street North.

80A-02963 Julv 1957: The Board of Adjustment approved a request for permission toq.restablish a church, on property located at Pt. NW, NE, NW, SEC 24-20-12

REVTSED rO/7/2O2O



lIJ

CS

RM.2 Ê

CH

CG

SUBJECT TRACT

1-U
I

=É. c H

.,1 CS

RM.1

CS I

AG
RS.3

E 35 g¡4,

RM-1

AG

'\

t!

E34STN

o-
lr)(l
u¡

<ô_
r/rP

LEGEND

Tulsa Corporate Limits

0 300 600
Feet z-7572

L4-J 20-12 24 9.?



6003000

Feet
Subject

Tract
z-7572 Note: G'ð,ph¡c overlays may not precisely

" 
* 
:: ": :::' ":: ::,: ":",i "' Q ¡ ù

lr-ÊJ 20-12 24



Feet
0 50 100

-#
Subject
Tract

z-7572 Note: Graphic overlays may nol precisely
al¡gn with physical features on the ground.

20-12 24 Aerial Photo Date: February 2018

Q. lt



s

4

É

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN
MAIN STREET &

NEW NEIGHBORHOOD

I
o
r¡)
(Þ

l¿¡

=
a.
()
(Ð

u¡

E36s¡4,

1'"
a

Land Use Plan Categories

I oowntoan

! Downtown Neíghborhood

I uain street

Mixed-Use Corridor

I Regional Center

I Town Center

! N"ighOorhoodCenter

! Employment

New Neighborhood

Existing Neighborhood

J eartandOpenSpace

f Rrkansas RiverCorridor

Feet
0 300 600

H-J
z-7572

20-12 24 ?. lL



,r"*tÑ

9"(

É

SUBJECT TRACT

I
o
t¡)
(Þ

r¿¡

=
o.
rô
(Y)

u¡

E35g¡4,

Growth and Sfability

r Area of Growfh

Area of Stability

0
Feet
300 600 z-7572

20-12 24 ?.BO



ALTA/NSPS Land Tllle Suruey

558 East 3Blh St North Tul6a Oklahoma 74106

wrrdds lHf w lffirol
I ÀÑ:nn I ro¡ø|otu

LôEond: !sl!@lp!@ v*rykå

^ddh@dM¡fudil¡{furM¡ø w.wÀ)d*frwß.rr@]B@M
84ìwl.rtudftbbd@Ù@,ebd@
ùùdwd@d:',h&ñ.ûededbå4hMdÚd
hd*ùddrúÉwdrørdbâú,6tuaddbud
eùMtuM!tud¡lrdbÈddg.c4dtuffi
!Údh@þùlM,EsM

Âc!@

!9!çi

o 15 @_-:Ljc ùrdMdÚq66@ð.fu
54bd4tefu.rùdù
E&,rqr6 @6r€Ë
mu.ldtuetututudr#h

cú,dú'dbrydb*,@¡MdlM@,4- dæ'
Í{!04wedøl*#

effir¡dsrMdù$tl,tørwtutub
*Úd.dtud!¡e,

&Pd10r¡lMturqrøú
6 Møddq4Mds@dryú¡@@-b

b¡'wødreñF*

@) wúw
N$mtrÊ @ÉM¡rd

@
ô tusdl*dóúdPætudd€*d4ùb

@

@

âñß'O
ffi*.!@2r.@dtua

6Ò.¡ry'l!@..¡.dqhM6*lh@.,e*

lù7'4ffid'ddmcù¡ffihedtilbd&
tuåMddb¿reübrÀrgd'Éfthb&,h
r{hbfrdbttu@ft ¡e*@3tu
r¿f@,úd@d@
rheJ¡qìrßHJffi
hfrdhrû@h¡fuù¡¡#ffitr#ùñ

.t (ôfqEffidñdl¡@MkwryÊètdhhde
I tucoiad@ddFr,,4tuqã.eåfutdb

@M¡tr¡#æ'h
õ 

'.'^*-'*dtud'.-dr@údrdn'F kdtu@LLc,rl)d.ú@,d¡dMeed!',
I elü&4ð'¡úM&.drossbhedhrù@e
t bdff.#æe#tu

F

6lfu6!

rubbóñúqdùdhæ
ùÊ\¡4dol.edi¿@tÀ¡¡d@d¡lehd

úÐ#dM¿ø
ffisþ'lødh

å¡d6dttuMÐwd@¡ùM

tudhddlb$bddM

bdlì!@håryo' ffi
o^rs4¡'dtrh&,M

Locatlon Maþ

a

NOÂt
fulsa Coünly

Secdon 24, T-20-N, R-12-E, lndltr Merldlæ

FdE

É*="
\13Y*""*"*'@

lhtum71rs w,q¡M

I

I

I

I

It ..T
II

ú
lß

I

I

-
I

I

I

I

I

,1 lc{



TMre
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonning Commission

Gase Number: 2-7573

Hearinq Date: October 7 ,2020

Applicant. City Council

Property Owner. The Park Church Of Christ

Owner and Appl nt lnformation:Gase Report Prepared bv:

Dwayne Wilkerson

(shown with Gity Gouncil Districts)
Location Map

1
3

4
65

7

I

a9

Present Use: Church

Proposed Use: Vertical Mixed-use

Concept summary'. Repurpose existing church site
for mixed use development.

Location'. Southwest corner of East 38th Street
South & South Peoria Avenue

Applicant Proposal:

Tract Size: 1.46 + acres

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval.

Zoninq:

Existing Zoning: RS-3 and CH

Proposed Zoning: MX1-P-65 and MX1-P-U

Comprehensive Plan:

Land Use Map: Main Street

Stability and Growth Map: Area of Growth

Citv Council District: 9

Councilor Name. Ben Kimbro

Countv Gommission District: 2

Commissioner Name; Karen Keith t^,

Staff Data:

TRS: 9224
CZIt/': 46

REVTSED 10/1/2020



SECTION l: 2-7573

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT: The applicant is requesting to rezone the subject property from RS-3
and CH to MXl-P-65 and MX1-P-U to allow a mixed-use development. The request is consistent with
the Comprehensive Plan and with the City Council initiated rezoning along the bus rapid transit
corridor.

EXHIBITS:
INCOG Case map
INCOG Aerial (small scale)
INCOG Aerial (large scale)
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Areas of Stability and Growth Map
Bus Rapid Transit Study zoning recommendations
Applicant Exhibits: None included

DETAILED STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The requested zoning is consistent with the expected zoning and land use patterns along this section
of the Bus Rapid Transit Study area and on the west side of Peoria. The height transitional standards
and development requirements with MX zoning abutting residential areas provides adequate and
predictable results for abutting residential properties and,

Establishing MX1-P (neighborhood mixed-use) zoning designation with a 65-foot maximum height on
the west portion of the property provides use limitations and design standards that are consistent with
the abutting Main Street designation and,

MX1-P building placement requirements will enhance the pedestrian nature of the abutting streets and
establish a consistent corridor edge on South Peoria Avenue and,

MX1-P is the least intensive mixed-use zoning district defined in the code and provides appropriate
design considerations for abutting adjacent residential uses and,

Staff recommends Approval of 2-7573 to rezone property from RS-3 and CH to MX1-P-65 on west
portion of the site and MX1-P-U on the east part.

SECTION ll: Supporting Documentation

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

Staff Summarv: MXl is considered a Neighborhood Mixed-Use and is the least intensive MX-
district in our code. The use is intended to accommodate small-scale retail, seruice and dining
uses that serue nearby residential neighborhoods. The district allows a variety of residential
uses and building types and is generally intended for application in areas designated by the
Comprehensive Plan as Neighborhood Centers, Main Sfreefs, and Mixed-Use Corridors. This
section of Peoria has a Main Street land use desþnation. MX1 zoning with the P character
zone and height limitations of 40 feet abutting residential uses (at the minimum setback) with a
maximum of 65 feet on the west and unlimited height on the east are consistent with the
expected development pattern along Peoria. Existing CH zoning is unlimited in height.

/o.L
REVTSED 70/7/2020



Land Use Vision:

Land Use Plan map designation: Main Street

Main Streets are Tulsa's classic linear centers. They are comprised of residential, commercial, and
entertainment uses along a transit-rich street usually two to four lanes wide and includes much lower
intensity residential neighborhoods situated behind. Main Streets are pedestrian-oriented places with
generous sidewalks, storefronts on the ground floor of buildings, and street trees and other amenities.
Visitors from outside the surrounding neighborhoods can travel to Main Streets by bike, transit, or car.
Parking is provided on street, small private off street lots, or in shared lots or structures.

Areas of Stability and Growth designation: Area of Growth

The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel growth to where it

will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and services with fewer and shorter
auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where general agreement exists that development or
redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are taken to plan for, and, in some cases, develop or redevelop
these areas, ensuring that existing residents will not be displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to
increase economic activity in the area to benefit existing residents and businesses, and where
necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop.

Areas of Growth are found throughout Tulsa. These areas have many different characteristics but
some of the more common traits are proximity to or abutting an arterial street, major employment and
industrial areas, or areas of the city with an abundance of vacant land. Also, several of the Areas of
Growth are in or near downtown. Areas of Growth provide Tulsa with the opportunity to focus growth in
a way that benefits the City as a whole. Development in these areas will provide housing choice and
excellent access to efficient forms of transportation including walking, biking, transit, and the
automobile."

Transportation Vision :

Major Sfreef and Highway Plan: Main Street and Urban Arterial

Trail System Master Plan Considerations: None

SmallArea Plan: Brookside lnfill Design Recommendations

The Brookside Infill Design Recommendation primarily identifies design concepts in the street right of
way and does not provide significant guidance for land use infill strategies. The Brookside lnfill
Development Design Recommendation plan and was adopted in 2002. The plan and has not been
amended. This site is not directly affected by the concepts illustrated in that plan.

Special District Considerations: none except the provisions of the Brookside infill design
recommendations and the Bus Rapid Transit Study.

Historic Preservation Overlav: None

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS:

Staff Summary: The site is currently occupied with a single-family home, cell tower and two-
story church building with surface parking. The church building is vacant.

/o,3
REVTSED rO/r/2O2O



Sfreef View from norfheast corner looking west

¿ -¡6

Street view from northwest corner looking north

1a

T
'l h

.'Jl:,

."TIF
' 'j-\'J

.;#Ña \Èr
l'r.
:.;.
1¡

l i.' ¡;;, '

/0. .f

ìù. ^ .!

REVTSED 10/1/2020



Street view from northwest corner looking southeast

Environmental Considerations: None that would affect site redevelopment

Streets:

Exist. Access MSHP Desiqn MSHP RA¡ú Exist. # Lanes

South Peoria (Frontage but no
access)

Main Street and Urban
Arterial

70 feet 5 (2 each direction with
center turn lane)

38th Street None 50 feet 2

38th Place and Alley None 50 feet 2

Utilities:

The subject tract has municipal water and sewer available

/0.5
REVTSED !O/r/2020



Surround inq Properties:

Location Existing Zoning Existing Land Use
Desiqnation

Area of Stability
or Growth

Existing Use

North CH and RS=3 Main Street Growth Retail, office, and
surface parkinq

East CH Main Street Growth Office, restaurant, retail
office and surface

parking

South CH and RS-3 Main Street Growth Detached Single Family
and drive-in restaurant

West RS-3 Existing
Neiqhborhood

Stability Detached Single Family

Neiqhborhood Enqaoement:

The Tulsa Planning Office has mailed notices to property owners within 300 feet of the subject
property, contracted a sign company to install a change of zoning notice sign, and published notice in

the local newspaper. The planning office also has mapped current pending zoning cases in our
website at tulsaplanning.org.

Staff is not aware of a formal neighborhood engagement process between the applicant and property
owners however we are aware of phone conversations between property owners and the applicant.

During the Bus Rapid Transit System process land use recommendations and study with a broad
public engagement process beginning as early as 2011. The land use recommendation was
presented and adopted by the Planning Commission in 2017. The MX1-P zoning classification is
consistent with the Land Use Recommendation in that plan.

The City Council adopted an incentive program to encourage MX zoning along this route. The current
incentive ends in December 2021.

SECTION lll: Relevant Zoning History

ZONING ORD¡NANCE: Ordinance number 11822 dated June 26,1970 established zoning for the

subject property.

Subject Property:

B0A-17260 December 1995: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to
permit a 70' monopole tower used primarily to support antennas and the related operations
building in an RS-3 zoned district, per plan submitted, on property located al 1132 East 38th

Street.

80A-02062 Julv 1949: The Board of Adjustment granted approval of a church, on property
located W 150'of the N1/2 of lheEl12 of Track 1, Brockman's Sub.

Surrounding Property:

2-7438 Mav 2018: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 1.43! acre tract of
land from CH/PK to MX1-P-U for park and future development, on property located at the
southeast corner of South Peoria Avenue and East 37th Place South. /o.ç

REVTSED !O/!/2O2O



2-7381 ODP Auqust 2017: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a .2+ acre tract
of land from RS-3 to OL for office or packing, on property located west of the southwest corner
of East 37th Place and South Peoria Avenue.

2-7361 Withdraw Februarv 2017: A request to rezone a .2+ acre tract of land from RS-3 to
PK for parking, on property located west of the southwest corner of South Peoria Avenue and
East 37th Place was withdrawn February 15th, 2017 by the applicant.

2-6886 April 2003: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a .165+ acre tract of
land from RS-3 to OL for a consulting office, on property located west of the northwest corner of
East 39th Street South and South Peoria Avenue.

2-6749 Februarv 2000: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a .457+ acre tract
of land from RS-3/RM-1 to PK for parking, on property located east of South Peoria Avenue
fronting East 37th Place and East 38th Street South.

2-6597 Auqust 1997: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a .19+ acre tract of
land from RS-3 to PK for parking, on property located west of the southwest corner of East 37th

Place South and South Peoria Avenue

PUD-535 June 1995: All concurred in approval of a proposed Planned Unit Development on a
4.5+ acre tract of land for a movie rental store, on property located at the southwest corner of
East 39th Street South and South Peoria Avenue.

PUD-491-A Abandonment Februarv 1995: All concurred in approval of a proposed Major
Amendment to Abandon PUD-491 on a 1 .37+ acre tract of land, on property located at the
southwest corner of East 39th Street South and South Peoria.

PUD-491 Julv 1992: All concurred in approval of a proposed Planned Unit Development on a
1.37+ acre tract of land for mini-storage, on property located southwest corner of South Peoria
Avenue and East 39th Street.

BOA-14272 November 1986: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to
allow a crematory associated with an existing funeral home in a CH district, per specifications
submitted, per Health Department approval, on property located at the northeast corner of 39th

Street and Peoria.

BOA-l4lll Julv 1986: The Board of Adjustment made an interpretation that a measurement
is taken in a straight line from the nearest portion of one structure to the nearest portion of
another structure, which in this case measures a distance of 350' from the nearest church and
not 558' as indicated by the applicant. The Board of Adjustment denied a Variance of the
required 500' setback from a church for a sexually oriented business, denied a Variance to
permit a sexually oriented business within 300' of a non-arterial street providing access to an R
district, withdrew a Variance of the setback from 1,000'to 518' of another sexually oriented
business, and denied a Variance to permit business within 300' of an R district, finding that the
variance request for the setback from another sexually oriented business is no longer needed
since the business in question has been ordered to close August 1, 1986 and that hardship
was not demonstrated that would justify the granting of the remaining variances, on property
located at 3819 South Peoria.

/o.7
REVTSED 70/7/2O2O



BOA-13577 Mav 1985: The Board of Adjustment denied a Variance of the 500' setback from a
church, denied a Variance of the 300' setback from a non-arterial street which provides access
to a residentially zoned district in a CH zoned district, finding that the application failed to
demonstrate a hardship that would permit the operation of a club of this nature at this location,
on property located at3741 South Peoria.

BOA-09010 Mav 1976: The Board of Adjustment approved an Exception to erect a duplex,
approved a Variance of the minimum lot area requirements from 9,000 sq. ft. to 8,494 sq. ft.,
and approved a Variance of the frontage requirements from 75' to 62', as presented per plot
plan in an RS-3 district, on property located at1128 East 37th Place.

BOA-07203 October 1971 : The Board of Adjustment approved a Variance to permit operating
an office in an RM-1 District for a period of 1 year, on property located at 1318-A East 38th

Place.

80A-06729 October 1969: The Board of Adjustment approved a Variance to modify the
Major Street setback requirements to permit placing service station pumps 47.5 ft from the
centerline of Peoria Avenue, as well as a pole sign, subject to the execution of right-of-way
removal agreement, on property located at 3820 South Peoria Avenue.

BOA-03103 October 1958: The Board of Adjustment granted permission to establish a
beauty shop, on property located Lot2, Block 4, South Brookside Addition.

BOA-02829 April 1956: The Board of Adjustment granted a request for permission to convert
a dwelling into a duplex, on property located Lot 18 & the S 3'of Lot 1, Block 1, Newport
Addition.

1017120201:00 PM

/Ò.(
REVTSED 10l1/2020



H

1-P

-349

CH
P

SUBJECT TRACT

MX1.P.U

tf )
)
)

CH

( X-

PU

ñt
I

=É,

În

-r

t-

PUD.758RM-2

PUD-480

--
I
I
I

cs M

CH

lr
(

t 3

Feet
2000

z-7573400

19-12 24 ta?



Feet
0 200 400

ÈJ
Subject

Tract
z-7573 Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely

align w¡th phys¡cal features on the ground.

Aeriat photo o"t", r"nru"ry zita l0.l19-12 24



.:,
r+ l

ñ
qt
f'¡

å

'.1í

Feet
0 50 '100

Subject
Tract

z-7573 Note: Gnphic overlays may not precisely

" 
* 
:: : ": ::: "" :::" ::,î "::",i "" i 6 I I19-12 24



o-

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN
MAIN STREET

r -P-u)

s

III
II

l-and Use Plan' Categories

Downtovvn ! Neighoorhood center

DowntownNeighborhood f Employment

Main Str,eet New Neighborhood

Mixed-Use Cor¡idor Existing Neighborhood

Regional Center ! ea* and Open Space

Town Center f Rrfansas River Corridor

400
Feet
2000 z-7573

19-12 24 lù



L

L

-f
l
l

.i

-.-f i:

I

I
i

l

SUBJECT TRACT l!

T
I

I
T

I

:u)

(

ì

(/,

---t

f

Growth and Stability

l

Area of Growth

Area of Stability
'-'.,]

I

I
i

N

0

Feet
400200 z-7573

19-12 24 laß



z-7573

MX2-V

f vrxr-e

! nrxr-v

Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely
al¡gn with physical features on the ground.

Aer¡al Photo Date: February 2018
Map Date: 211012020

z-7573

Feet N

o 3oo 600 71\
!#l \l/

lat+
41st Súreeú



TMre
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonning Commission

Case Number: 2-7574

Hearinq Date: October 7,2020

Case Report Prepared by:

Dwayne Wilkerson

Owner and Applicant lnformation

Applicant: Arborstone Land Holdings c/o AAB
Engineering, LLC

Property Owner. Arborstone Storage Tulsa 41st St,
LLC

Location Map:
(shown with City Council Districts)

Applicant Proposal:

Present Use. Vacant

Proposed Use: Self-serve Storage expansion

Concept summary'. The property owner has learned
that much of the AG zoned portion of his property is
no longer in the mapped flood plain. He plans to
expand his self-storage business into that area.

Tract Size: 3.21 + acres

Location. North and west of the northwest corner of
East 41st Street South and South Garnett Road

Zoninq:

Existing Zoning: AG

Proposed Zoning: CS

Comprehensive Plan:

Land Use Map: Existing Neighborhood

Stability and Growth Map: Area of Growth

Staff Reco mendation:

Staff recom mends approval.
The Existing Neighborhood land use designation
appears to be a mapping error. The site has never
been part of planned open space or integrated into
any existing neighborhood. Staff will correct this
during the update of the Comprehensive Plan.

Staff Data:

TRS: 9419
CZItA: 49

Gitv Gouncil District: 6

Councilor Name: Connie Dodson

Countv Comm ission District: 1

Commissioner Name; Stan Sallee

I l. I
REVTSED rO/L/202O



SECTION l: 2-7574

DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT: The property owner has learned that much of the AG zoned portion of
his property is no longer in the mapped flood plain and has plans to expand his business into the area
outside the newly mapped flood plain. Prior to building permit approval, the applicant will also be
required to go to the Board of Adjustment for a self-storage use if the CS zoning is approved. CG
zoning would allow self-storage, but that zoning designation allows many uses that are not allowed
surrounding land uses.

EXHIBITS:
INCOG Case map
INCOG Aerial (small scale)
INCOG Aerial (large scale)
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Areas of Stability and Growth Map
Applicant Exhibits:

DETAILED STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

2-7574 requesting CS zoning will allow uses that are not consistent with the Existing
Neighborhood land use designation. Staff recognizes the uses allowed in a CS district are
consistent with the provisions outlined in the Town Center land use vision and the Area of
Growth provisions of the Tulsa Comprehensive Plan and,

Uses allowed in the CS zoning district are consistent with the expected future development of
the subject property and,

CS zoning allows a wide range of uses and provides development guidelines that provide a
predictable outcome important to the abutting residential properties, therefore

Staff recommends Approval of 2-7574 to rezone property from AG to CS

SECTION ll: Supporting Documentation

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

Staff Summary: The Existing Neighborhood land use designation appears to be a mapping
error. The site has never been part of planned open space or integrated into any existing
neighborhood. Staff will correct this during the update of the Comprehensive Plan.

Land Use Vision:

Land Use Plan map designation'. Existing Neighborhood,
The Existing Neighborhood category is intended to preserve and enhance Tulsa's existing
single-family neighborhoods. Development activities in these areas should be limited to the
rehabilitation, improvement or replacement of existing homes, and small-scale infill projects, as
permitted through clear and objective setback, height, and other development standards of the
zoning code. ln cooperation with the existing community, the city should make improvements to
sidewalks, bicycle routes, and transit so residents can better access parks, schools, churches,
and other civic amenities. ll.?-

REVTSED 70/7/2O2O



Anticipated future land use designation will be Town Center or something similar:
Town Centers are medium-scale, one to five story mixed-use areas intended to serve a larger
area of neighborhoods than Neighborhood Centers, with retail, dining, and services and
employment. They can include apartments, condominiums, and townhouses with small lot
single family homes at the edges. A Town Center also may contain offices that employ nearby
residents. Town centers also serve as the main transit hub for surrounding neighborhoods and
can include plazas and squares for markets and events. These are pedestrian-oriented centers
designed so visitors can park once and walk to number of destinations.

Current Areas of Stability and Growth designation: Area of Stability
The Areas of Stability includes approximately 75% of the city's total parcels. Existing residential
neighborhoods, where change is expected to be minimal, make up a large proportion of the
Areas of Stability. The ideal for the Areas of Stability is to identify and maintain the valued
character of an area while accommodating the rehabilitation, improvement or replacement of
existing homes, and small-scale infill projects. The concept of stability and growth is specifically
designed to enhance the unique qualities of older neighborhoods that are looking for new ways
to preserve their character and quality of life.

Anticipated future designation will be similar to an Area of Growth,
The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel growth to
where it will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and services with
fewer and shorter auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where general agreement
exists that development or redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are taken to plan for, and, in
some cases, develop or redevelop these areas, ensuring that existing residents will not be
displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to increase economic activity in the area to benefit
existing residents and businesses, and where necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop.

Areas of Growth are found throughout Tulsa. These areas have many different characteristics
but some of the more common traits are proximity to or abutting an arterial street, major
employment and industrial areas, or areas of the city with an abundance of vacant land. Also,
several of the Areas of Growth are in or near downtown. Areas of Growth provide Tulsa with the
opportunity to focus growth in a way that benefits the City as a whole. Development in these
areas will provide housing choice and excellent access to efficient forms of transportation
including walking, biking, transit, and the automobile."

Transportation Vision :

Major Sfreef and Highway PIan: None

Trail System Master Plan Considerations: None

SmallArea Plan: None

Special District Considerations: None

Historic Preservation Overlay: None

/1.3
REVTSED 10/V2020



DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS

Staff Summarv: The majority of the site has been removed from the City of Tulsa regulatory floodplain
and will be available for development opportunities. The site is undeveloped at this time.

Environmental Considerations: The proximity of the site to the remaining creek and flood plain will
require careful site engineering and grading design however it is anticipated that there are no
significant barriers to development opportunities.

Streets:

Exist. Access MSHP Desiqn MSHP RA/t/ Exist. # Lanes

Private drive access to 41st
Street

None None 2

Utilities:

The subject tract has municipal water and sewer available.

Surrou nd inq Properties:

Location Existing Zoning Existing Land Use
Designation

Area of Stability
or Growth

Existing Use

North RS-3 Existing
Neiqhborhood

Stability Single Family Detached
homes

East RS-3 and AG Existing
Neighborhood with

Park and Open
Space

Stability Single family detached
homes

South CS Town Center Growth Self-Storaqe
West AG and CS Town Center Growth Self-Storage and sports

field

Neiohborhood Enqaqement

The Tulsa Planning Office has mailed notices to property owners within 300 feet of the subject
property, contracted a sign company to install a change of zoning notice sign, and published notice in
the local newspaper. The planning office also has mapped current pending zoning cases in our
website at tulsaplanning.org. Additional engagement process by the application has not been
provided.

SECTION lll: Relevant Zoning History

ZONING ORDINANCE: Ordinance number 14814 dated July 28,1980 and Ordinance number 15000

dated April 20,1981 established the current zoning for the subject property.

Subject Property:

2-5504 March 1981: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 5+ acre tract of
land from AG to CS/FD for commercial, on property located 41st Street, west of South Garnett

/1.4
REVTSED LO/r/2O2O



Road. This rezoning includes part of the subject property and part of the surrounding area
(Ordinance No. 15000, dated April 20,1981)

2-5413 Julv 1980: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 4.77+ acre tract of
land from AG to CS/FD for commercial, on property located west of the northwest corner of 41st

Street and Garnett Road. This rezoning includes part of the subject property and part of the
surrounding area. (Ordinance No. 14814, dated July 28, 1980)

2-5048 December 1977: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 137.91 acre
tract of land from RM-3/OM/CS to AG/RM-2/OM/CS, on property located south and west of the
southwest corner of 41st Street and Garnett Road. This rezoning includes part of the subject
property and part of the surrounding area. (Ordinance No.14034, dated January 31, 1978)

2-3622 Februarv '1971: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 239.21+ acre
tract of land from AG to CS/RM-1/RS-3 for commercial, residential, and multifamily uses, on
property located on the northwest corner of 41st . (Ordinance No. 12067, dated March 5, 1971)

Ordinance number 11825 dated June 26, 1970 established zoning for the subject property

Surrounding Property:

BOA-21588 Julv 2013: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception of the tower
setback of 110o/o (137.5 feet) to 7Yo (9.7 feet) adjoining an AG zoned district, per plan on 11.7,
on property located at 10863 East 41st Street South.

BOA-20379 November 2006: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to
permit a can¡rash facility in a CS district, subject to the entire lot consist of concrete or asphalt
surface, lighting directed down and away from entire the adjoining motel, access curb cut be
made somewhere along the eastern boundary of the property in question, per conceptual plan,
on property located north of the intersection of 41st Street and 109th East Avenue.

BOA-19301 Februarv 2002: The Board of Adjustment approved a Specra/ Exception to permit
a drive in restaurant in a CS district, per plan, providing it meets landscape requirements, on
property located East 41st Street South and East of US-169.

2-6776 Julv 2000: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 15+ acre tract of land
from AG to AG/CS for commercial, on property located northeast corner of East 4'lstStreet and
Mingo Valley Expressway. This request excluded the north 260' of both tracts, as requested by
the applicant and staff was directed to amend the comprehensive plan accordingly.

80A-18676 March 2000: The Board of Adjustment approved a Variance of the required
frontage from 150'on an arterial street to 15'for two lots, per plan, finding the hardship to be
the existing configuration of the lot and with the condition that only one driveway access to 41st

Street to serve the connecting lots, on property located on the northwest corner of East 41st

Street and South 109th East Avenue.

BOA-18429 June 1999: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to allow a
mini-storage in a CS zoned district, on property located at the northeast corner of East 41st
Street and US Highway 169.

/1.5
REVTSED 10/V2020



BOA-18321 Februarv 1999: The Board of Adjustment approved a Special Exception to permit
the expansion of a church in an AG district, on property located at 10811 East 41st Street
South.

BOA-15445 Mav 1990: The Board of Adjustment approved a Specral Exception to permit the
operation of a dog grooming business as a home occupation, subject to a maximum of five
dogs being groomed per day, subject to days and hours of operation being Monday through
Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., subject to no overnight boarding of dogs, and subject to all dogs
being kept inside the home, finding that the applicant has been grooming dogs at this location
for approximately 14 years, and that the home occupation, as presented, is compatible with the
residential area, on property located 3720 South 1 1Oth East Avenue.

8oA-06988 April 1971: The Board of Adjustment approved an Exception to permit using the
site for church and other related uses, subject to the condition that the church sanctuary and
related buildings be built on the south 5 acres of the tract, per plot plan, on property located at
11100 East 41st Street.

1017120201:00 PM

//.Q
REVTSED 10/V2020



E36Sr

z
ü

o
AG

SUBJECT TRACT

OL
AG

PUD 0

-

GS PU

z

E

O)

CS cocs s

PUD.I55

RMH
E42PLS coAG

-2

4002000
Feet z-7574

L#J 19-14 19 I 1.7



Feet
0 200 400

!#
Subject
Tract

z-7574 Note: Gnph¡c overlays may not precisely
al¡gn with phys¡cal features on the ground.

Aer¡atPhoto o"t", r"orr"ry zita I | .19-14 19



0

Feet
50 100

Subject
Tract

z-7574 Note: Gnph¡c overlays may not precisely
al¡gn w¡th phys¡cal îeatures on the ground.

L# 19-14 19 Aerial Photo Date: February 2018 ll. I



s{
tll

U,

È
hr-
ulz
É.

o
SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN

EXISTING NEIGHBORHOOD

(Ð
z

E
E-4ls

Land Use, Plan Gategoriês

f Downtoan

f Oowntown Neighborhood

I tvtainStreet

Mixed.Use Corrido¡r

I negional Center

I Town Center

f r.røgftoorhood Center

I Employment

Ne+Neighborhood

Exigting Neighborhood'

I, eart and open$paoe

I nrtansas RiverCorridor

Feet
200 400 z-7574

0

ÉJ 19-14 19 ll.to



E

1

z
=

s
t¡J

c4

SUBJECT TRACT

E

o
É.
Èt-
IU

i

t--

L":

0
Feet

400200 z-7574
l l.llr# 19-14 19





TMre
Tulso Metropoliton Areo
Plonning Commission

Case Number: 2-7575

Hearinq Date: October 7,2020

Gase Report Prepared bv

Dwayne Wilkerson

Owner and Applicant lnformation

Applicant. Jesse Fulcher

Property Owner. RC Battlecreek, LLC

Location Map:
(shown with City Council Districts)

Applicant Proposal:

Present Use: Vacant

Proposed Use: Single-family Residential

Concept summary: Rezone a strip of land abutting
RM-O with an optional development plan along the
south side of a detached single-family subdivision
that is in the construction phase. Rezone from RS-3
(minimum 60 feet wide and 6900 sq. ft.) to RS-4
(minimum 50 feet wide and 5500 sq. ft.).

Tract SZe. 5.61 + acres

Location: North of the Northeast corner of East 41st
Street South and South 145th EastAvenue

Zoninq:

Existing Zoning: RS-3

Proposed Zoning: RS-4

Comprehensive Plan:

Land Use Map: New Neighborhood

Stability and Growth Map: Area of Growth

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval.

Staff Data:

TRS:
CZM

9422
50,49

Citv Council District: 6

Councilor Name: Connie Dodson

Countv Commission District: 1

Commissioner Name; Stan Sallee

l7-,1 REVTSED 10lV2020



SECTION l: 2-7575

APPLICANTS DEVELOPMENT CONGEPT:

This request is to rezone approximately 5.61 acres from RS-3 to RS-4, for approximately 28 lots
identified in the preliminary plat for the Crossings at Battle Creek Phase 5. This request is being made
to provide some lot variety within our development and respond to consumer demand. Additionally,
this rezoning will help us coordinate with an adjacent development to the south that needs a
secondary point of access to meet Fire Code requirements. Further, we feel that this requested zoning
is compatible with the single-family lots in Crossings at Battle Creek and the planned duplex
development directly south of our development.

EXHIBITS:
INCOG Case map
INCOG Aerial (small scale)
INCOG Aerial (large scale)
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map
Tulsa Comprehensive Plan Areas of Stability and Growth Map
Applicant Exhibits:

Applicant Letter
Applicant Rezoning exhibit

DETAILED STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Z-7575 requesting RS-4 zoning allows single family residential uses that are compatible with the
surrounding properties and,

Lot and building regulations in a RS-4 district allow a greater density than the abutting RS-3 zoned
properties however RS-4 zoning is consistent with the anticipated future development pattern of the
surrounding property and,

RS-4 zoning is consistent with the New Neighborhood land use designation of the Comprehensive
Plan therefore,

Staff recommends Approval of 2-7575 to rezone property from RS-3 to RS-4

SECTION ll: Supporting Documentation

RELATIONSHIP TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:

Staff Summary: RS-4 zoning is primarily used for a smaller lot single family residential use
and is consistent with the New Neighborhood land use designation.

Land Use Vision:

Land Use Plan map designation: New Neighborhood

The New Neighborhood residential building block is comprised of a plan category by the same name.

It is intended for new communities developed on vacant land. These neighborhoods are comprised
primarily of single-family homes on a range of lot sizes but can include townhouses and low-rise

apartments or condominiums. These areas should be designed to meet high standards of internal and

external connectivity and shall be paired with an existing or New Neighborhood or Town Center.

lZ.àu,,",,"o,",,o,o



Areas of Stability and Growth designation: Area of Growth
The purpose of Areas of Growth is to direct the allocation of resources and channel growth to where it
will be beneficial and can best improve access to jobs, housing, and services with fewer and shorter
auto trips. Areas of Growth are parts of the city where general agreement exists that development or
redevelopment is beneficial. As steps are taken to plan for, and, in some cases, develop or redevelop
these areas, ensuring that existing residents will not be displaced is a high priority. A major goal is to
increase economic activity in the area to benefit existing residents and businesses, and where
necessary, provide the stimulus to redevelop.

Areas of Growth are found throughout Tulsa. These areas have many different characteristics but
some of the more common traits are proximity to or abutting an arterial street, major employment and
industrial areas, or areas of the city with an abundance of vacant land. Also, several of the Areas of
Growth are in or near downtown. Areas of Growth provide Tulsa with the opportunity to focus growth in
a way that benefits the City as a whole. Development in these areas will provide housing choice and
excellent access to efficient forms of transportation including walking, biking, transit, and the
automobile."

Transportation Vision :

Major Sfreef and Highway Plan: The subject property is part of a preliminary plat that is in the
construction phase. No additional streets or considerations for access is contemplated in the major
street and highway plan.

Trail System Master Plan Considerations: None

SmallArea Plan: None

Special District Considerations: None

Historic Preservation Overlay: None

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS:

Staff Summary: The site is being developed and currently in the construction phase and
Infrastructure Development Plan process. Another development immediately south of this site
is being developed for duplex construction and an anticipated stub street will be constructed to
provide connectivity to that development.

Environmental Considerations: None that affect site development

Streets:

Exist. Access MSHP Desiqn MSHP RA¡ú Exist. # Lanes

South 145th East Avenue Primary Arterial 120 feet 2

South 148th EastAvenue None 50 feet 2

Utilities:

The subject tract has municipal water and sewer available.

/23
REVTSED LO/!/2020



Surround inq Properties:

Location Existing Zoning Existing Land Use
Designation

Area of Stability
or Growth

Existing Use

North RS-3 New Neighborhood Growth Residential subd ivision
in construction phase

East RS-3 New Neighborhood Growth Residential subd ivision
in construction phase

South RM-O with an
Optional

Development plan
for duplex only

New Neighborhood Growth Detached single family
homes

West RS-3 New Neiqhborhood Growth Sinsle-family

SECTION lll: Relevant Zoning History

ZONING ORDINANGE: Ordinance number 11826 dated June 26, 1970 established zoning for the

subject property.

Subject Property:

No Relevant History.

Surrounding Property:

2-7521February 2020: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 18.21+ acre tract
of land from RS-3 to RM-O for residential duplexes, on property located north of the northeast
corner of East 41st Street South and South 145th East Avenue.

2-7388 June 2017: All concurred in approval of a request for rezoning a 12.9+ acre tract of
land from RM-O/CS to RM-2 for multifamily residential, on property located north and east of
the northeast corner of East 41st Street South and South 145th East Avenue.

101712020 1:00 PM

n,q
REVTSED 70/7/2O2O



RM.1

Ie*,lf)t
E
tlJ
(\
u)

RS.3

t
I
\

I
z-7521

RM-O

AG

RM.2

CS

0

I¡J

?z
rü
È6
+

4.R.3

AG A-RD
PUD.94

LEGEND

Broken Arrow Corporate Limits

Tulsa Corporate Limits

SUBJECT TRACT

A-CG

Feet z-75754002000

19-14 22 lz,5



Feet
0 200 400

!#
Subject

Tract
z-7575 Note: Gnphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.

19-14 22
Aet¡dl Photo Date: February 2018

lz,le



s{
trl

I

I
t
f

I

0

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN

NEW NEIGHBORHOOD

I
I
I
I
I

Downtown

Downtown Neighborhood

Main Street

Mixed-Use Corridor

Regional Center

Town Center

! Neigf'oorhood Center

f Employment

New Neighborhood

Existing Neighborhood

I earrandOpenSpace

f Arkansas River Corridor

Land Use Plan Gategories

:l st-ST-S

Feet
200 z-75754000

19-14 22 ,2.J



4002000
Feet z-7575

19-14 22 lL.r



August 26,2020

Nathan Foster

Tulsa Planning Office
2w.znd Street
Tulsa, OK 74103

Mr. Foster,

Please accept this letter as our request to rezone approximately 5.61 acres from RS-3 to RS-4, for
approximately 28 lots in the Crossings at Battle Creek Phase 5. This request is being made to provide
some lot variety within our development and respond to consumer demand. Additionally, this rezoning
will help us coordinate with an adjacent development to the south that needs a secondary point of
access to meet Fire Code requirements. Further, we feel that this requested zoning is compatible with
the single-family lots in Crossings at Battle Creek and the planned duplex development directly south of
our development.

Please don't hesitate to contact me with any questions.

Sincerely,

ù3r"'-
Jesse Fulcher

/z?



sot'28'
81.70'

upum

9
l*

€ wMm

EAru ffiK P¡ 1

upúm

lMM

uruTrÐ

PROPERTY

LOCAÏION

R1+E REZONE EXHIBIT
E ST

u[um JOB 1 31 08905

t,
N19
lH

I

COIJNTY: TI.JI SA

R- 4-
g g

U
Þø
€
ø

RFTONF ARFA 5^61 AC

OWNFR RC BATTLE CRFFK. I.I .C.

ST

TULSA CqJNTY

LOCANON MAP

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

P0c
NW CORNER

s!/'/4

300' 300'

Lrl

=zI
l¡J

-1-
t.l)sf

(/',

rt)
c.l
(\¡o(\¡

l¡J
to¡lt
dlñ¡

(n

oì
ao
ô
z
o

oIô

-
l

O
f

z7

O

tr

o
@o
õ

z
o

o
O
o

I
z
o
ô
=

ô

o
È

ã
<€s9
öî
GO

OL
>ôi
çlò
@-¿

aó
òf
!O

?<

fã-ô
itrrO
o:

NOT PLAÏIEO

51'02'E

POB
150.00'

ral\
<tt\
É)

-¡
E
EIõ¡

z

N88' 'ot'E 1610.00'

-À
Y
l¡Jl¡l
É.
C)

5
tr
co

s88'43'42'M 885.01' n614

1
o
öz

=
ô

RET

GÅ
(P

r
I 1E(

CURVE TABLE

cuRvE # I.ENGÏH RADIUS DELTA CHORD DIRECTION CHORD I.ENGÏH

cl 39.27' 25.00' goo00'00' s46'28 sg'E 35.J6'

c2 117.81' 75.00' 90'00'00" s,160 2g' sg'E 106.07'

CJ 39.27' 25.00' 90'00'00" s46'28' 58"E 35.36'

I 3 I 08905 ct B/26/2020 loFt

Crofton Tull
orchitecture I eng¡neering I survey¡ng

405.787.6270 I 405.787.6276 t

cÄ et3 IPtNt €xP R5 ó/e/.22

e
www.croflontu

300 Po¡nte Porkwoy Blvd.

Yukon, Oklohomo /3099

I



oo
62

1. LESSIE BENNINGFIELD RANDLE,
Tulsa Race Massacre Survivor

2.HISTORIC VERNON A.M.E. CHURCH, INC.,

a domestic not-for-profit corporation,

3. LAUREL STRADFORD,
great-granddaughter of J.B. Stradford,

4. ELLOUISE COCHRANE-PRICE,
daughter of Clarence Rowland and

cousin of Dick Rowland,

5. TEDRA WILLIAMS,
granddaughter of Wess Young,

6. DON M. ADAMS,
nephew and next friend of Dr. A.C. Jackson,

7. DON W ADAMS,
grandson of H.A. Guess,

8. STEPHEN WILLIAMS,
grandson of A.J. Smitherman

9. THE TULSA AFRICAN
ANCESTRAL SOCIETY,
an unincorporated association,

Plaintiffs,
V

1. CITY OF TULSA,
a municipal corporation,

2. TULSA REGIONAL CHAMBER,
a domestic not-for-profit corporation,

t *

TN THE DISTRICT COURT IN AND FOR TULSA COUNTY
STATE OF OKLAHOMA

DISTRICT COURTF¡LËD

rl

I

í
:
;
I-ì

.l

I 
--).:

'I
)

)
)

)
)
)

)
)

)

)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)

)
)

)

)

)
)
)

)

)
)

)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

cv-etffi?9
ruRY TRIAL DEMANDED
ATTORNEY LIEN CLAIM

sEP - I 2020

DON NEWBEñRT COUrI CIETK

STAfE OF OKLA. TULSA COUNÏY

Carotfne WaÌl

3. TULSA DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY,

,3. I



o

4. TULSA METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING )
COMMISSION, )

)
s. BOARD OF COLTNTY COMMISSIONERS )
FOR TULSA COI-INTY, OKLAHOMA )

)
6. VIC REGALADO, IN HIS OFFICIAL )
CAPACiTY AS SHERIFF OF TULSA )

COUNTY, )

)

7. OKLAHOMA MILITARY DEPARTMENT, )

)
Defendants, )

PETITION

COME NOW the Plaintiffs, by and through their counsel of record, Damario

Solomon-Simmons of SolomonsimmonsLaw; Spencer Bryan and Steven Tenill of Bryøn &

Terrill, P.L.L.C.;Professor Eric Miller of LMU Loyola Law School; Professor Emerita Adjoa A.

Aiyetoro of (IALR llm. H, Bowen School of Law; Maynard M. Henry St. of Maynard M' Henry

Sr, Attorney At Law, PC; and Lashandra Peoples-Johnson and Cordal Cephas of Johnson I

Cephas Law, brrng this action against Defendants to abate the public nuisance caused by

Defendants' unlawñrl acts and omissions that began with the Tulsa Race Massacre of 1921

("Massacre") and continues to this day. The Plaintiffs also seek to recover for unjust enrichment

for the Defendants' exploitation of the Massacre for their own economic and political gain For

their cause of action against Defendants, Plaintiffs hereby state as follows:

I. STATEMENT OF'TTIE CASE

l. This lawsuit seeks to remedy the ongoing nuisance caused by the 1921 Tulsa Race

Massacre in the Greenwood District of Tulsa and to obtain benefits unjustly received by

o

.,

l3.u



o I
Defendants based on the Massacre. The type of nuisance inflicted upon the Greenwood

neighborhood and community was aptly described by current City of Tulsa Mayor, G.T. Bynum,

"[n Tulsa, the racial and economic disparities that still exist today can be traced to the l92l race

massacre."' The victims of this nuisance are residents of the Greenwood community and

members of the predominantly Black, North Tulsa community,t Plaintiffs seek a court order, as

authorized by Oklahoma's Public Nuisance Law, Okla. Stat. tit. 50, $ l, requiring Defendants to

abate the public nuisance of racial disparities, economic inequalities, insecurity, and trauma their

unlawful actions and omissions caused in l92l and continue to cause ninety-nine years after the

Massacre.

2. Beginning on May 31, lg}l and lasting through June l, 1921, onc of the worst acts of

domestic terrorism in United States history since slavery completely decimated Tulsa's thriving,

all-Black community of Greenwood. A large, angry White mob, including some members of the

Tulsa Police Department, The Tulsa County Sheriff's Department, and the National Guard, as

well as other City and County leaders and members of the Chamber of Commerce, overwhelmed

the approximately 35-square-block communiç killing hundreds of Black residents, injuring

thousands more, buming down over one thousand homes and businesses, and stealing residents'

personal property. This brutal, inhumane attack, now referred to as the Tulsa Race Massacre of

1921, robbed thousands of African Americans of their right of self-determination' on which they

I Bloomberg philanthropies Announces City of Tulsa lïill Receive 81 Million for Public Art Project Honoring

Americab First 'Btack Watl Stt'eet', City Of Tulsa (archived Mar. 2, 2019)'

https://www.citvoftulsa.org/press-foom/citv-of-tulsa-named-bloombers-ohilanthropies-2018-public-art-challenge-wi
nner/.

-h" hirtory of the development of North Tulsa includes the facts that the Greenwood District and community

destroyed by the Defendants is in North Tulsa, the Black population grew in North Tulsa generally from 1921 to the

present largely due to "white flight" and today, most people in Tulsa, White or Black, consider North Tulsa to be

synonymous with Black Tulsa.
I Okla. Const. Art. II, $ 2.

3

13.3



o
had built this self-sustaining community, and annoyed, injured and endangered the comfort,

rcpose, health, and safety of the members of the Greenwood community, and rendered them

insecure in their lives and the use of their real and personal properfy.

3. Following the Massacre, Defendants exacerbated the damage and suffering of the

Greenwood residents. Defendants unlawfully detained thousands of Greenwood survivors and

enacted unconstitutional laws that deprived Greenwood residents of the reasonable use of their

property, From the period immediately after the Massacre until the present day, Defendants

actively and unlawfully thwarted the community's efforts to rebuild, neglecting the Grccnwood

and predominantly Black, North Tulsa communities. Instead, Defendants redirected public

resources to benefit the overwhelmingly White parts of Tulsa. Defendants also used federal

programs such as Urban Renewal to continue the destruction of the Greenwood community. As a

direct result, Plaintiffs and other Greenwood and l.lorth Tulsa residents and their descendants

have experienced and continue to experience insecurity in their lives and property and their sense

of comfort, health, and safety has been destroyed. Plaintiffs therefore seek to abate this public

nuisance that has continued to plague Tulsa's Black community for nearly one hundred years.

4. To add to the Plaintiffs'other injuries, in 2016 the Defendants began enriching

themselves by promoting the site of the Massacre as a tourist attraction, obtaining funds to do so,

as well as aiding in obtaining funds to create a history center of which Defendants will have a

central role. The residents of the Greenwood neighborhood and North Tulsa have reaped no

significant direct benefits from Defendants' appropriation of the Massacre.

o

4

ß,4



o o

II. TTIE PARTIES

5. Plaintiff Lessie E. Benningfield Randle ("Mother Randle") is an individual who at all

relevant times has resided in the County of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma. Mother Randle is directly

affected by the Massacre and the ongoing public nuisance'

6. Plaintiff Historic Vernon A.M.E. Church, Inc. ("Vernon") is a domestic not-for-profit

corporation which at a\l relevant times has been a resident of Greenwood, at 307 North

Greenwood Avenue, in the County of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma. Vernon is directly affected by

the Massacre and the ongoing public nuisance.

7. Plaintiff Laurel Stradford ("Stradford") is an individual who resides in Chicago,

Illinois. Stradford is the great-granddaughter of J.B. Stradford who owned the Stradford Hotel in

Greenwood, the largest Black owned hotel in the United States at the time of the Massacre.

Stradford is directly affected by the Massacre and the ongoing public nuisance.

8. Plaintiff Ellouise Cochrane-Price ("Price") is an individual who at all relevant times has

resided in the County of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma. Price is the daughter of Massacre victim

Clarence Rowland and the cousin of Massacre victim Dick Rowland. Price is directly affected

by the Massacre and the ongoing public nuisance.

g. Plaintiff Tedra Williams ("Williams") is the granddaughter of Massacre survivor Wess

Young ("Young"). Williams is an individual who resides in Dallas, Texas. Williams is directly

affected by the Massacre and the ongoing public nuisance'

10. Plaintiff Don M. Adams ("M, Adams") is an individual who resides in Del City,

Virginia. Adams is the nephew and next of kin of Massacre victim Dr, A.C. Jackson' Adams is

directly affected by the Massacre and the ongoing nuisance.

5

t3,5



o
11. plaintiff Don W. Adams ("W Adams") is an individual who resides in Alpharetta,

Georgia. W. Adams is the grandson of Massacre survivor Attorney H.A. Guess. W Adams is

directly affected by the Massacre and the ongoing nuisance'

lZ. plaintiff Stephen Williams ("S. Williams") is an individual who resides in San

Bernardino, California. S. Williams is the grandson of Massacre survivor Attorney A.J.

Smitherman. S. Williams is directly affected by the Massacre and thc ongoing nuisance'

13. plaintiff The Thtsa African Ancestral Society ("Society") is a domestic not-for-profit

corporation that maintains its principal place of business in the County of Tulsa, State of

Oklahoma. Society's membership includes descendants of Massacre survivors. Society is directly

affected by the Massacre and the ongoing public nuisance'

14. Defendant City of Tulsa ("Ciry") is a municipal corporation created and authorized under

the laws of the State of Oklahoma, which is and at all relevant times has been situated in the

County of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma'

15. Defendant Tulsa Regional Chamber ("Chamber") is a domestic not-for-profit

corporation that maintains its principal place of business in the County of Tulsa, State of

Oklahoma.

16. Defendant Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission ("Planning Commission")

is a public body corporate created and existing in the City of Tulsa, County of Tulsa, State of

Oklahoma. Defendant's principal office is located in the City of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma.

17. Defendant Tirlsa Development Authority ("TDA") is a pubtic body corporate created

and existing in the City of Tulsa, County of Tulsa. Defendant's principal offtce is located in the

City of Tulsa, State of Oklahoma.

I

6

f 3.þ



o o
18. Defendant Tirlsa County ("Tulsa County") founded at statehood, in 1907, is a political

subdivision of the State of Oklahoma. Defendant's principal office is located in Tulsa,

Oklahoma.

19. Defendant Oklahoma Mititary Department ("National Guard") is an agency of the

State of Oklahoma pursuant to 44. O.S. 2001 Section 21. Defendant's principal offrce is located

in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,

ZO. Defendant Vic Regalado ("Regalado") was elected Sheriff of Tulsa County, Oklahoma in

2016. He is sued in his offrcial capacity as the duly elected Sheriff of Tulsa County. Defendant's

principal place of business is located in Tulsa, Oklahoma.

III. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

21,. This Court has exclusive jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter and venue is

proper in Tulsa County.

IV. SPECIAL HARM TO THE PLAINTIFFS

22. Mother Randle, at 105 years old, is a survivor of the Massacre. Defendants looted and

destroyed Mother Randle's grandmother's home, rendered her insecure in her health and sense

of safety in the immediate aftermath of the Massacre and caused he¡ to have emotional and

physical distress that continues to this day. She experiences flashbacks of Black bodies that were

stacked up on the street as her neighborhood was burning, causing her to constantly relive the

terror of May 31 and June 1, 1921. The Massacre left her family without sufficientfinancial

resources to provide the needed physical and emotional support to overcome the terror of the

7

13".J



o
Massacre. Throughout her life, she has struggled financially, emotionally, and socially as a result

of the continuing public nuisance and will do so until the nuisance is abated,

23. Vernon, founded in 1905, is the only standing Black-owned structure from the Historic

Black Wall Street era and the only edifice that remains from the Massacre. Vernon's sanctuary

burned in the Massacre, The basement was the only part of the red brick building that remained.

Vernon also lost many prominent members, including its pastor, Reverend C.R. Tucker, all of

whom had cont¡ibuted to the church, financially or socially. The trauma of the Massacre,

including the loss of prominent members who contributed both financially and by their

involvement, made it harder for the remaining church members to repair and fumish the

basement to make it usable for services at this time of great spiritual need. Greenwood founder

O.W. Gurley, who also founded Vernon, is an example of this significant loss. The trauma and

losses caused by the l92l Massacre continue to plague the congregation today and will do so

until the nuisance is abated.

24, Stradford is the descendant of Attorney J.B. Stradford, a businessman widely regarded

as the wealthiest resident of Greenwood at the time of the Massacre. Defendants destroyed J.B.

Stradford's property, including the Stradford Hotel, Immediately after the Massacre Defendants

empaneled an all-White Tulsa County grand jury that criminally indicted J.B. Stradford on

charges of causing the Massacre. Defendants' actions injured J.B, Stradford's security and

caused him to flee Tulsa in fear of his life. Defendants interfered with his returning to rebuild

and enjoy the use of his land. Defendants' destructive acts rendered J.B. Stradford and his

descendants, including Stradford, insecure in their health and securiry and caused a loss of

o

I

l3.y



o o
family wealth, status, and security that continues to affect Stradford to this day and will until the

nuisance is abated,

25. Price is the descendant and daughter of Massacre survivor Clarence Rowland who was

kidnapped by White men the day after the Massacre which was caused by the Defendants' acts in

inciting the Massacre. Rowland was held, beaten, and tortured by the White men for 2 weeks

because he could not tell them the whereabouts of his and Price's cousin, Dick Rowland, who

was falsely accused of sexually assaulting a White woman (the false accusation that incited the

angry White mob, leading to the Massacre). Defendants' actions destroyed Clarence Rowland's

property, rendered Rowland and his descendant Price to be insecu¡e in their health and security,

and caused Price continuing physical and emotional distress. The destruction of Greenwood and

Defendants' active interference in reconstruction efforts have resulted in a loss of family wealth,

status, security, and mental and physical health that continues to plague Price to this day and will

continue until the nuisance is abated.

26. Williams is the granddaughter of Wess Young. Defendants destroyed Young's property

and unlawfully detained him against his will at the Booker T. Washington High School.

Defendants' actions rendered Young and his descendant Williams insecure in their health and

securiry and caused continuing physical and emotional distress that continues to plague Williams

to this day and will continue until the nuisance is abated.

27. M. Adams is an heir and nephew of Dr. A.C. Jackson. Dr. A.C. Jackson was brutally

murdered and his property looted and destroyed during the Massacre. Defendants' actions

rendered Adams insecure in his health and security and caused continuing physical and

emotional distress. Defendants' destruction of Greenwood, murder of Dr. A.C. Jackson, and use

9

13.1



oO

of Dr. A.C. Jackson's story name and likeness for their own benefit and self-aggrandizement has

resulted in a loss of family wealth, status, securiry and negatively affected M. Adams' mental

and physical health that continues to this day and will continue until the nuisance is abated.

28. W. Adams is the grandson of Attorney H.A. Guess. Defendants looted and destroyed

Guess' property. Guess lost clients, income, and his savings as a result of the Massacre. Further,

Defendants' actions rendered Guess and his descendants insecure in their health and security, and

caused financial, physical, and emotional distress that continues to plague W. Adams to this day

and will continue until the nuisance is abated.

29. S. Williams is the grandson of AttomeyA.J. Smithennan, journalist. Defendants looted

and destroyed Smitherman's property. Smitherman, the nationally known and influential

publisher, and editor-in-chief of the Tulsa Star was also forced into exile first to escape the

White mob and later from Defendants' spurious criminal charges. Defendants' actions rendered

Smitherman and his descendants insecure in their health and security, and caused continuing

financial, physical, and emotional distress that continues to plague S, Williams to this day and

will continue until the nuisance is abated,

30. Society includes descendants of Massacre suryivors and represents descendants of

Massacre suwivors by publicizing their ancestors' experiences during the Massacre and ongoing

destruction of Greenwood. The Society's work to ch¡onicle the history of the Massacre has been

excluded by Defendants as they seek to profit from the Massacre, which has caused emotional

distress and financial losses to the Society membership. Defendants actions have and continue to

result in a loss of family wealth, status, security, and mental and physical health that continues to

this day and will until the nuisance is abated.

t0

l3.lÐ



o

V. GREENWOOD

31. In 1906, African American community leader O.W. Gurley founded "Greenwood," a

community on the northeast side of Tulsa.

32. In May 192I, the Greenwood community and neighborhood was home to more than

10,000 African Americans as well as hundreds of thriving Black-owned businesses and

organizations.

33. Running north out of the downtown commercial district and shaped, more or less, like an

elongated jigsaw puzzle piece, Greenwood was bordered by the Frisco railroad yards to the

south, by Lansing Street and the Midland Valley tracks to the east, and by Stand Pipe and Sunset

Hills to the west.

34. Greenwood was unlike any other Black community in the country. Its founders and

residents had successfully created an affluent, self-suff,rcient, and flourishing community. Much

of the land and the structures in Greenwood were owned by Greenwood residents. Black people

from around the country visited Greenwood to witness and enjoy its prosperity.

o

l3.ll
1t



o o
r.rgllq

35. Gurley and other community leaders played a cent¡al role in developing the Greenwood

neighborhood and its economy. For example, community leader Attomey J.B, Stradford built the

Stradford Hotel which was known as the largest and finest African American owned hotel in the

United States. Communìty leader Attorney A.J. Smithemran published the nationally influential

Black-owned newspaper, the Tulsa Star, and served as the President of the Western Negro Press

Association, the purpose of which was to represent Black newspaper publishers west of the

Mississippi and support their efforts to expose racial terrorism. These and other community

leaders were essential to creating a flourishing community. Famous for its social cohesion and

economic strength, Greenwood became known throughout the United States as "Black Wall

Street."

l2

13,17-'



o

VT. TULSA RACE MASSACRE

36. On May 31, 1921, Tulsa City police anested a l9-year-old resident of the Greenwood

community, Dick Rowland, on false charges of assaulting a White woman. The Tulsa Tribune

published a false and inflammatory article which accused Rowland of attempting to rape the

White \ryoman. It also published an editorial that encouraged White people in Tulsa "To Lynch a

Negro Tonight."

37 . The Tribune 3 false and inflammatory reporting endangered Rowland's life and fueled the

formation of an angry White mob that led to the Massacre.

Defendants Deputize and Arm White Residents

38. By 10:00 p.m. on May 31, the Tulsa police station was filled with a mob of armed, angry

White people - overwhelmingly male. The police deputized and armed male civilians without

regard for the safety and security of the African American residents of Greenwood. They kept no

record of which civilians were issued weapons. Instead the police department ordered deputies

and non-deputies alike to "go home, get a gun, and get a nigger."o

o Scott Ellsworth, Tulsa Race Massacre, Oru¡. Htsr'l Soc. [hereinafter "Ellsworth, Tulsa Race Massacre"] (last

visited Jan. 23, 2020 2:08 P.M. C.S.T.), https:/iwww.okhistory.org/oublications/cnclcntry.php?cntry:TU() 13.

o

13

13,13



o o

39. From May 31 - June I, 1921, Defendants ripped the Greenwood community apart.

Valiant efforts by Greenwood residents to defend their community from this brutal attack were

unsuccessful. They were outnumbered and outgunned. This anry, White mob attacked

Greenwood, killing hundreds of Greenwood's residents, looting their homes and businesses, and

reducing an approximately 35-square-block area (4 square miles) of homes and businesses to ash

and rubble. Hundreds of Greenwood residents died. Thousands more were injured. Still

thousands more were left homeless-many forced to flee Tulsa never to return. Many were

simply never heard from again.

40. Various City and County officials including offrcers of the Defendant City's Police

Department and members of the County Sheriff's office unlawfully and without just cause,

participated with the angry White mob, killing African American Greenwood residents.

4L The newly-deputized members of the Tulsa Police Department, County Sheriff and City

and County offrcials also committed arson on hundreds of Greenwood residents' homes and

l4

I 3.1.{



o
businesses. One witness, Judge John A. Oliphant, testified that, "Instead of protecting properfy,

they were the chief fellows setting fires."t

42. Defendants used airplanes to drop incendiary materials on the streets of Greenwood.

43. Defcndants' wanton acts of desffuction and violations of their public duties during the

Massacre did more than deprive hundreds of residents of the Greenwood neighborhood of their

lives. Those who survivcd were robbed of their homes, personal property, livelihoods, dignity,

community leaders, sense of safety, physical securiry economic capital, and consequently the

exercise of their right to self-determination,o the basis upon which they created this successful

community.

44. In allowing its police offrcers and deputized White residents to engage in the

aforementioned conduct, City, County, and State elected leaders breached their duty to protect

the security of all Tulsa residents 'ü/ithout regard to race, and affirmatively acted to injure and

endanger the comfort, repose, health, safety, lives and property of Greenwood's African

American residents.

45. White people who chose to participate in this raging White mob, both City, County, and

State offrcials and other residents, were responsible for these acts of terror.

46. The Massacre was not simply an act of domestic terrorism. It was an economic, social,

and cultural human-made disaster for the Greenwood neighborhood, a community of the City of

Tulsa.

47. Ovemight more than 9,000 Black people were left homeless and over 1,200 homes and

businesses were destroyed.

5 Tulsa Race Riot Commission Report, at 160 (citing Testimony of John A. Oliphant 2, Attorney General's Civil
Case Files, RG l-2, A-C Case No. 1062, Box 25 (Oklahoma State Archives)).
ó Okla. Const. Art. II, $ 2.

l5

o

l3, ll



o o
48. Defendants were responsible for stealing and looting personal property worth millions of

dollars.

49. Defendants' actions, in addition to murdering hundreds of Greenwood community

membe¡s and destroying residences and businesses, tore families and social networks apart and

destroyed its leadership structure.

50. Estimates of the properfy damage alone suffered by the residents of Greenwood are

between $50-100 million in today's currency.

National Guard Joins the Angry White Mob, Participating in the Massacre

51. Local officials sought the assistance of the State National Guard. Members of the

National Guard were in Tulsa early on May 31, and participated with and provided tactical and

logistical support to the anry White mob. It was not until round 2:00 a.m. on June l,l92I,that

the Govemor of Oklahoma declared martial law and ordered the National Guard to move against

the "Negro Uprising."

16

l3. lþ



o
52. The National Guard did not act to quell the violence directed at the residents of

Greenwood. Rather, it joined the police and the arrgry White mob, including the newly

deputized White ¡esidents. The Guard systematically rounded up African Americans during the

Massacre, going so far as to kill those who would not leave their homes. The National Guard

was not the savior of the African Americans, but rather intervened in the Massacre to advance

the brutal, inhumane blood bath and destruction - an intervention that was pivotal to the success

of the Massacre.

53, Members of the National Guard facilitated the marauding of local ofücials and the angry

White mob. Guardsmen advanced on Greenwood and indiscriminately murdered, beat,

terrorized, disarmed, and arrested Afiican American residents and participated in setting

Greenwood on fire. Brigadier Barrett, dispatched to command the National Guard, wrote, "In all

my experience, I have never witnessed such scenes that prevailed in this city when I arrived at

the height of the rioting. 25,000 whites, armed to the teeth, were ranging the city in utter and

o

T7

t3.l?



o o
ruthless defiance of every concept of law and righteousness. Motorcars bristling with guns swept

through your city, their occupants firing at will,"?

VII. THE MASSACRE'S CONTINUING INJURIES

Trauma

54. The Massacre had and continues to have a severe impact on the comfort, repose, health,

and safety of the Greenwood neighborhood and Greenwood community of Tulsa.

55. Defendants, having unlawfully and maliciously destroyed the comfort, repose, health, and

safety of the Greenwood neighborhood and Greenwood community, had a duty of care to

provide resources to mitigate the damage and trauma they caused. Defendants breached that

7 "Citizens in Mass Meeting Voice Shame Over Riots That Razed Negro Quarter." The New York Times,Iune 3,

1921, sec. Archives.

httos://www.nvtimes.com/1921/06/03/archives/tulsa-in-rcmorsc-to-rcbuild-homes-dead-now-put-at-30-citizens-in.ht
ml. (last visited Aug. 11, 2020 9:08 A,M. C.S.T.),

l3. l(
l8



o o
duty by instead piling trauma upon trauma through a conspiracy of silence that lasted for

sevenfy-frve years. Defendants continued, through various unlawful âcts and omissions, to

thwart the Greenwood community's efforts to rebuild and recapture a community that promoted

residents' economic, social, physical, and financial well-being. Defendants' actions over the

next ninety-nine years excluded Greenwood community members and the predominantly Black

North Tulsa community members from participating in the decisions that affected their health,

safety, peace, and the community's shared social, economic, and cultural affairs.

56. In the immediate aftermath of the Massacre the Chamber was given charge of Tulsa while

it was under martial law. The Chamber formed the Public Welfare Board, all members of which

were White. The failure to include any Greenwood residents precluded the Greenwood

community from influencing public efforts at reconstruction.

57. Under tlre authority of thc Public Wclfare Board, more than 5,000 G¡eenwood residents

were forcefully detained in what the Tnlsa lLorld called "concentration camps."t Th.re camps,

including the Ballpark and Convention Center, were guarded by arnred White men including the

City's police ancl members of the National Guard. Members of the Greenwood Community were

only able to leave these camps if a V/hite person sponsored them. vouching for their good

character. The "paroled" Creenwood community members were required to wear or carry a

green card bearing their sponsor's name while out of the camp. Many Greenwood comrnunity

residents were forced to work fbr their sponsors or for the City under threat of violence and

without pay. These conditions arnounted to a badge of slavery.

ì5,000 Negroes Held in Fairgrounds Camp, Tulsn Del¡-v WonLD, Jun. 2, l92l (final ed.), at 2,
https:/ich¡oniclingamerica.loc.gov/lccr/sn85042345/1921-06-02/ed-l/seq-2/. (last visited Aug. ll, 2020 9:08 A.M.
c.s.T.).

19

13. l1



o
58. Defendant Chamber paid for the green cards that the City of Tulsa and the State of

Oklahoma's National Guard required every African American adult to carry. These green cards

were adorned with the words 'Police Protection' printed on one side, and various other data

recorded on the other, including the person's name, address, and employer. It has been reported

that "any black found on the street without a green card properly frlled out was arrested and sent

o

back to the detention camp."
9

59, In addition, Defendants Chamber, City, and National Guard required African Americans

to work their way out of custody by cleaning up the destruction caused by the angry White mob.

At some time on June 2, General Barrett issued Field Order Number 4, which dec¡eed that "all

able bodied fN]egro men remaining in detention camp at the Fairgrounds and other places in the

City of Tulsa [would] be required to render such service and perform such labor as [was]

required by the military commission."'o The African Amencan Greenwood residents were

treated like chattel, reminiscent of slavery.

e Scott Ellsworth, Death in a Promise Land: The Tulsa Riot of 1921 , ( I 982).

'0 Smith, Gerald Jerome. "Race and the States'Use of Police and Military Force." Oklahoma Cíty Universitv Law
Review, Spring 2002.
htÞs://racism.ore/arficles/race/62-definine-racial-eroups/africans-and-african-descendents/298-?framOó-01. (Last
visited August 4, 2020).

20

13.?9



o
Prevented Rebuilding and Expansion

60. From the Massacre until the present day, the Defendants have imposed or supported

policies that stifled the ability of Greenwood residents to rebuild and thrive, except to the extent

that development and preservation would benefit the parts of Tulsa that are predominantly

White. Defendants continuing unlawful acts and omissions violated Greenwood and

subsequently North Tulsa residents' constitutional right to equal protection under Oklahoma law,

rendering them insecure in their lives and property. Defendants curtailed economic, social, and

cultural opporrunities in the G¡eenwood and North Tulsa communities, redirecting those benefits

to White businesses and institutions in other parts of Tulsa, to the detriment of African

Americans in Greenwood and North Tulsa, whose wellbeing in all areas of life was endangered.

The Massacre and its ongoing marginalization of Black Tulsans constitute racial terrorism and

inflict "deep traumatic and psychological wounds on survivors, witnesses, family members, and

the entire African American community.""

61. In the days and weeks following the Massacre, City and County officials and local White

businessmen, including members of the Chamber, engaged in unlawful acts designed to prevent

reconstruction of the Greenwood neighborhood and community.

62. While members of the Greenwood community of Tulsa were forcefully interned, the City

and Chamber unlawfully p\rshed for changes in frre regulatìons and zoning laws that illegally

deprived Greenwood community members of their property without due process of law.

tt Equal Justice Initiative, "Lynching in America: Confronting the Legacy of Racial Terror" (3d Ed. 2017).
https://eji.org/reports/lynching-in-america/. See the report attached herein as Exhibit l. See also Deangolis, Tori,
"The Legacy of trauma: An emerging line of research is exploring how historical and cultural traumas affect
survivors' children for generations to come." American Psychology Association, February 2019.
httos://rvrvw,apa.org/nlonitor/2019;'02ilegac.v--trauma. (Last visited August 26,2020).

o

3 a

2l

"Å



o
63. Many Greenwood residents lived on the sites of the intemment camps for over a year in

squalid conditions while awaiting reconstnrction.

64. The zoning change, eventually declared unlawful by the Oklahoma Supreme Court, made

reconstruction efforts prohibitively costly for Greenwood residents. The Oklahoma Supreme

Court struck down the zoning ordinance in response to an expensive and time-consuming lawsuit

brought by Massacre suryivors that further drained thei¡ limited resources for rebuilding. The

unlawful ordinance caused months-long delay in the rebuilding efforts. Defendants' unlawful

actions left survivors of the Massacre to live in makeshift tents as their shelter into the winter,

subjecting them to cold, filth and disease for up to a year after the Massacre.

65. The Massacre injured the reputation and standing of the whole of Tulsa. To coverup the

true nature of the destruction and mitigate the public relations disaster caused by the Massacre,

the City and Chamber colluded in a campaign to cover up the true nature of the destruction of

Greenwood, characterizing the Massacre as a "race riot" to misrepresent the attack and extent of

the damage. In a statement to the local nerü/spaper, Alva J. Niles, President of Defendant

o

22

13..7þ



o o
Chamber at the time, blamed the Massacre on "a group of negroes exhibiting a spirit of

lawlessness."tt

66. The City and Chamber, through the Public Welfare Board, affrrmatively rejected

monetary aid from around the country that was intended to assist those who had been displaced

as a result of the Massacre.

67. Their material misrepresentations also prevented Greenwood residents, including

business owners, from collecting on insurance policies, leaving them no choice but to use any

savings and capital they had or undertaking exorbitant debt to rebuild.

68. The County convened an all-White Grand Jury to determine whether there should be

indictments related to the Massacre. This Grand Jury only indicted residents of Greenwood for

causing the Massacre - people who had had their homes and businesses destroyed by the angry

White mob. The Grand Jury also called for more aggressive policing of Black people in

Greenwood which continues to this day.

69. As a result, the Greenwood community suffered economic ruin, which robbed

Greenwood descendants of their rightful inheritance, and the wealth and financial security they

would have had but for the actions of Defendants.

Def endantscontinuel,:iiäi1iå:'å1iil"äliJäîii":i::å.tvandsecuritvof

70. In the years following the Massacre the Defendants continued to support the Greenwood

Community being terrorized by racist th¡eats in the form of the Ku Klux Klan ("KKK"). The

Defendants participated in overt public displays by the KKK. In fact, all five of the men who

'2 "Okla. Historian, Hannibal Johnson, Gives Annotation of l92l Tulsa Chamber Meeting Minutes." The Black Wall
Street Times, June 30, 2020.
htÞs://theblackwallsuimes.com/2019/05/28/okla-historian-hannibAl-johnson-pives-annotation-oÊ l92l -tulsa-chambe
r-meetinq-minutes/. (Last visited August 4, 2020).

23

13.)3



o
incorporated the Tulsa KKK in January 7922 were prominent leaders of the Ciry County, and

Chamber. Just two months later in March 1922, Greenwood resident John Smithennan, brother

of A.J. Smitherman, was kidnapped, beaten, and mutilated by the Tulsa KKK. John

Smitherman's "crime" was registering Greenwood residents to vote. No one was charged or

anested for the aÍlack on John Smitherman. The Defendants knew that some of their offrcers

and employees were active in the Tulsa KKK, enhancing the sense of insecurity caused by the

Massacre that continues to this day for Black Tulsans.

71. In 1923, Defendants again used zoning laws to impede the reconstruction of the

Greenwood neighborhood. Defendants enacted a comprehensive zoning plan that designated

Greenwood for industrial uses, while Black Tulsans, due to racially discriminatory laws and City

sanctioned practices, were prohibited from moving outside the Greenwood neighborhood. This

caused overcrowding in the decades that followed. Defendants' unlawful acts and omissions

drove up rent prices and mortgage rates to levels most Greenwood residents could barely afford.

o

24

13.2.f



o
For residents of the Greenwood neighborhood, housing costs became an outsized portion of their

budgets. Due to the high costs of loans and lack of basic resources to repair, many homes in

Greenwood were virtually makeshift shacks.

72. In the 1930s, 1940s, and 1950s, Defendant City and County unlawfully neglected their

duty to provide public services, utilities, and amenities to the Greenwood neighborhood, such as

paved streets, running water, sewers and regular trash pickup, or a comparable number of parks

and playgrounds. ln 1958, the Tulsa Urban League published a report entitled "A Concise

Review of Housing Problems Affecting Negroes In Tulsa" that documents these concerns.13

73. Defendants' unlawful acts and omissions in the years and decades following the

Massacre blighted the Greenwood neighborhood, endangering the health and safety of the

Greenwood community. The City's unlawful acts and violations of duty led to a lack of adequate

and code-compliant housing during the 1950s that continues to this day. The City, after

participating in the burning and looting of Greenwood, refused to enforce housing codes, and

thereby neglected their duty to provide assistance to Greenwood homeowners at that time to

make needed repairs. lts unlawful acts and violations of its municipal duties made houses prone

to rapid deterioration and led to substandard conditions and blight that threatened the health,

comfort, and safety of the Greenwood neighborhood and North Tulsa community and rendered

them insecure in their lives and property.

74. Defendants' interference with investment in the Greenwood and North Tulsa community

and neighborhood, which began after the Massacre, continues to this day. There is still no viable

public infrastructure in these communities. For example, the City has yet to replace structures

13 Tulsa Urban League, A Concise Review of Housing Problems Affecting Negroes In Tulsa,
utulsa.as.atlas-sys.com/repositories/2/archival objects/85594 (ed., 1958).

25

o

13.7-5



o
and other institutions destroyed during the Massacre. Since the Massacre, Defendants have

oppressed and undermined the predominantly Black North Tulsa community in Tulsa, diverting

rcsources to other communities to the detriment of the health, safety, and security of the Black

community in Tulsa. Defendants have failed to provide material support for rebuilding the Black

businesses, homes, schools, and hospital and recapturing the wealth and ready access to services

destroyed in the Massacre. Instead, Defendants continue to neglect their obligation to abate the

nuisance they created to the detriment of the Greenwood and North Tulsa communities, rather,

focusing on providing opporfunities for overwhelmingly White-owned and run businesses,

organizations, and nonprofits.

75. The latest version of the City's business plan is to profit off the Massacre by turning it

into a tourism attraction and primarily White-owned commercial hub.

76. In addition to the dircct economic losses that resulted from the Massacre, the Greenwood

community suffered other severe losses that destroyed the integrify of the community and

contributed to the public nuisance that continues today.

Destroyed Leadership

77. Defendants' actions during the Massacre and its aftermath destroyed the Greenwood

community's leadership. The mob murdered professionals and business owners who contributed

to the community's prosperity, such as nationally renowned surgeon Dr. A.C. Jackson. Dr.

Jackson was a prominent Greenwood resident who was brutally shot on June l, 192L, by

members of the angry White mob deputized and armed by the City of Tulsa while coming out of

his home, hands raised. He bled to death while imprisoned at the Convention Center by

Defendants.

o

26

|-3,7k



o o

78. The City and the Tulsa Tribune encoxlaged the formation of a grand jury that targeted

twenty-seven Greenwood community leaders, including Gurley, Smitherman and Stradford. The

resulting indictments forced Smitherman, Gurley and Stradford, along with others, into

permanent exile. Many other Greenwood leaders fled the state. And even more of its leadership

and those who were key to its economic viability, including doctors, lawyers, teachers, nurses,

businesspeople, skilled and blue-collar workers needed to make the community thrive, left

Greenwood because the Massacre destroyed community businesses and institutions that provided

them with employment.

79, From the 1920s and continuing to the present day, Defendants' unlawful acts and

violations of their duties have prevented the African American members of the Greenwood and

North Tulsa communities from occupying top level leadership positions in City government.

80. Dunng the 1930s, the City, with the support of the Chamber, engaged in more extensive

racial segregation in pubtic employment than any other southern and southwestern city. For

example, unlike other Southern cities, Tulsa did not hire any African Americans for public

13,)7

27



o o
service jobs with the exception of those hired as police for the Greenwood community or

teachers in the segregated school system.

81. Similarly, in the 1920s through the 1960s, the City and the Chamber unlawfully excluded

the few African American businesses run by members of the Greenwood and North Tulsa

communities from participation in business opportunities.

82. The Chamber excluded Greenwood and North Tulsa Black-owned businesses in its

publicity materials commemorating Oklahoma's fiftieth anniversary.

83. In addition to the Chamber's significant involvement in creating the public nuisance

stemming from the Massacre, the Chamber has not taken any affirmative action to abate the

nuisance. The City and County continued their practices of limiting employment opportunities

for African Americans. In the 1970s Afücan Americans were predominantly in lower-level jobs.

Few African American members of the Greenwood and North Tulsa communities were

appointed to managerial positions that would enhance the stature of the community and permit

the Greenwood and North Tulsa communities to have some measure of control over the future of

their neighborhoods,

84. The Chamber, County, and City continue to deny African American businesses in the

Greenwood and North Tulsa communities an equal voice by excluding their representatives from

leadership positions and on decision-making bodies that determine economic and social policy

for Tulsa, including the Greenwood and North Tulsa communities.

Destroyed Neighborhood and Community Integrity l92l to Present

85. Defendants' continuous unlawful acts and persistent neglect of required duties towards

the Greenwood neighborhood and community laid the fertile ground for the effects of the

28

t3.28



oo
nuisance created by the Defendants to not only be experienced in the Greenwood community and

North Tulsa, but to follow Black Tulsans who migrated from these communities, either by choice

or through acts of the Defendants, to other parts of Tulsa. These unlawful acts and persistent

neglect of governmental duties include the continuous dispossession and taking of land owned

by Greenwood residents, blighting the Greenwood and North Tulsa neighborhoods and

community by causing a steady decline of the Greenwood and North Tulsa property values, the

fragmentation of the Greenwood and Nofh Tulsa neighborhood and community by placement of

a highway that physically divided it, and the destruction of a base of professionals and

entrepreneurs who lived and worked in Greenwood and North Tulsa. Defendants, on the other

hand, made it possible for property values in predominantly White South Tulsa to appreciate,

new housing and commercial developments to sprout, and White professional and

entrepreneurial residents to maintain their base in South Tulsa.

86. Throughout the 1950s, 1960s, and 1970s, Defendants City, County, andChambe¡ acting

through TDA and the Planning Commission, implemented or promoted policies of "urban

renewal" and urban planning initiatives without regard for the health and safety needs of the

Greenwood community and Black Tulsans. Defendant's unlawful failure to include the

Greenwood and North Tulsa communities in the decision-making process ensured any urban

renewal plan would not serve these communities but rather would serve the interests of the

predominantly White South Tulsa residents.

87. This failure exacerbated nuisance conditions in the Greenwood and North Tulsa

neighborhoods. The initiatives adopted by Defendants and their actions pursuant to them

including unlawfully taking land from Black Greenwood for less than market value, led to

29

13.U



o
further fragmentation of the Greenwood community and deepened Tulsa's geographical, racial

and wealth divide that still exists today.

88. In the 19ó0s and 1970s, Defendants unlawfully harmed the health and safety of the

Greenwood and North Tulsa community by deciding that the location of Interstate 244 and the

construction of the inner dispersal loop would go through the middle of the Greenwood

community and neighborhood, despite other viable alternatives.

g9. That placement continued Defendants' practice of isolating and fragmenting the

Greenwood and North Tulsa communities from the rest of the city. The Interstate divided the

Greenwood neighborhood and community in two, creating a physical barrier between the North

side, which had an overwhelmingly Black population, from the rest of the city, and displaced

o

30

13.3D



o
many families and businesses.'o A Muy 4, 1967 article in the Tulsa Tribune states, "The

crosstown expressway slices across the 100 block of North GreenwoodAvenue,... Therewill

still be a Greenwood Avenue, but it will be a lonely, forgotten lane ducking under the shadow of

t(
a Dlg overpass.

90. Defendants used their urban renewal powers to take property from Greenwood residents

for projects that provided no direct benefit to them-for example, the sprawling University

Center at Tulsa (now Oklahoma State Llniversity-Tulsatu) pictured below. This taking

perpetuated the Defendants' acts that diminished the enjoyment by Greenwood residents of their

property and further eroded Greenwood's tax base negatively effecting residents, businesses, and

schools in the Greenwood and North Tulsa Community.

ra A May 2020 report by the internationally acclaimed Human Rights Watch found that Defendants' disparate use of
Urban Renewal powers "claimed and demolished so many businesses and homes in Tulsa, more than 1,000, many of
them in Greenwood, that black Tulsans would come to call urban renewal "urban removal...this led black Tulsans to

move north, east, and west-but with few exceptions, not to the more prosperous neighborhoods south of the

railroad tracks." See, The Cøse for Reparations in Ttilsa, Oklahoma A Human Rights Argment,
https:l/rvrvw.hr"v'r'.orglne rvs/202{)i05,i29,'us-prgvide-reparations- I 92 I -tulsa-racc-m¡rssacre.
15 Joe Looney, "Greenwood Fades Away Before Advance of Expressway," Tulsa Tribune, May 4, 1967,
http:;'¡cclml5020.contentdn.oclc.org/cclm.,singleitenVcollectiowpl6063colll/id/439r'rec/18 (Last visited August 4,

2020).

'6 Not only is the Oklahoma State University-Tulsa Board of Trustees devoid of any Massacre or Greenwood
descendants, the Oklahorna State University Board of Trustees is all-White. '

31

o

13.31



o

91. These initiatives only further exacerbated Defendant-created disparities in education,

policing, housing, poverty, and health outcomes, rendering members of Tulsa's African

American community insecure in their lives and properfy, and annoying, injuring, and

endangering Greenwood and North Tulsa residents in their comfort, repose, health, and safety.

92. An August 1977 report by the Oklahoma Advisory Committee to the U.S. Commission on

Civil Rights describing North Tulsa, which includes the Greenwood District, found that the Tulsa

"Black population is concentrated mainly in the northern part of the city [Tulsa]. At the present

time, this section of Tulsa is experiencing a decline in properly values, an increase in housing

abandonment, and loss of business...incrcasingly the...northern sections of the city are being

forsaken. Conversely, the southeastern part of Tulsa has prospe¡ed and is experiencing a

tremendous growth in housing."

93. By 1980, very little remained of the original Greenwood community. At the same time,

Greenwood and North Tulsa residents had the worst outcomes in every conceivable

social-economic category including housing, education, employment, and mental and physical

health, in addition to the continuing racially disparate treatment by Tulsa law enforcement.

32

o

13,32-



o

94. Throughout the 1980s, Defendants continued to injure and endanger the comfort, repose,

health, and safety of the Greenwood neighborhood and community that first began during the

Massacre. ln 1989, then- Tulsa School Board member Judy Eason-Mclntyre lamented that the

hardships Black Tulsans endured were caused by "years of discrimination...dating back to

Tulsa's race riot in 1921..." These "years of discrimination" perpetuated the public nuisance

created in l92I that continues to destroy the lives of North Tulsa and Greenwood residents.

95. The Defendants had a duty to rebuild the Greenwood neighborhood that they destroyed in

192I. Rather than fulfilling this duty, they consistently underserved the Greenwood and North

Tulsa communities throughout the 1990s and 2000s. They did not use federal funding,

programs, and services to which they had access in the Greenwood neighborhood and North

Tulsa community to enhance these communities' ability to thrive.

o

t

JJ

13,53t



o
96. The racially disparate health outcomes, including life expectancy,'t chronic diseases and

infant deaths, as well as other negative health outcomes documented in the 2000s flow from the

public nuisance created by Defendants.

97. Defendants have continued the public nuisance in the Greenwood neighborhood and

North Tulsa communities by making them less viable for commercial activity, threatening the

health and safefy of the Greenwood and No¡th Tulsa communities by depriving North Tulsans of

easy access to meet their basic needs, like grocery stores, schools, and hospitals, all of which the

rest of Tulsa enjoyed. Current Chamber President and CEO Mike Neal stated "the racism that

enabled the massacre also shaped the economic disparities in our community."'*

98. There is now an established consensus among medical professionals that such disparities

in access to the resources that enable well-being, like nutritious food and primary care providers,

threatens community health. The American Academy of Pediatrics, the American Medical

Association, and the American College of Emergency Physicians recently formally declared

"institutional racism an urgent public health issue"tt and states and cities around the country are

beginning to declare racism a public health crisis.

'7 In 2018 Mayor Bynum stated "For this generation of Tulsans, the great moral issue we face is in resolving the
racial disparities that have been allowed to persist in our city for far too long. In 1921, Tulsa was the site of the
largest race massacre in United States history. Hundreds of Black Tulsans were killed and businesses were destroyed
in Tulsa's Greenwood District - a place known around America at that time as Black Wall Streel. Today, a child
born in the most predominantly Black part of our ciry has a life expectancy that is I I years shorter than a child born
elsewhere in Tulsa." See, httos://www.citvoftulsa.org/media/7673lreslient-tulsa-digital-web.pdf, (Last visited
August 4,2020\.
18 "Chamber Donates Meetings Minutes From 1921 to Greenwood Cultural Center." Tulsa Regional Chamber, May
28, 2019. See,
https:/itulsachamber.com/news/2019/05/28lcommunity-developmenlchamber-donatcs-meetinE-minutes-from-1921-
to-greenwood-cultural-center/. (Last visited August 4, 2020).
re Vestal, Christine. "Racism Is a Public Health Crisis, Say Cities and Counties." The Pew Charitable Trusts, June
15, 2020. See,
https://www.pewTrusts.orsietl, research-and-analvsisibloss/statelinel2020r'06/l 5¡'racism-is-a-public-health-crisis-say-c
rtics-and-countics (Last visited August 4, 2020).

34

o

t3.3{



o
99. As a direct and proximate result of the Massacre and the Defendants' continued unlawful

actions described above, Black Tulsans face disparate treatment and outcomes with respect to

every single basic human need: jobs, financial security, education, housing, justice, and health,

both mental and physical health, that annoys, injures, or endangers their comfort, repose, health,

or safety and renders them insecure in life, or in the use of theirproperty. Examples of howthe

nuisance, caused and perpetuated by the Defendants, has imperiled the lives of Black Tulsans are

documented by the City in ils 2019 Tulsa Equality Indicators Annual Report,t'and include:

a. Jobs. Unemployment in Tulsa's Black community is more than twice that of

unemployment among White Tulsans.

b. Financial Security. The median household income of White residents of Tulsa is over

$20,000.00 more than that of Black residents of Tulsa. Significantly more Black

residents of Tulsa live at or below the poverty line than White residents.

c. Education. Black students are nine times more likely than White students to be

suspended frorn school.

d. Housing. Fifty-eight percent of White adults own their homes, compared to only 34.8%

of Black adults.

20 The findings of the Tulsa Equality Indicators Annual Reports only further documented that the nuisance created
by the l92l Race Massacre continues to hinder and harm Black Tulsans and the Greenwood community. See, Tulsa
Equality Indicators Ann. Rpt. (2019)
https:/irvu.w.tulsaei.org/rvp-contentiuploadsl20I 9/07,/Tulsa-Equality-lndic¿rtors-Renort-20I 9.pclf (last visited August
10,2020). It should be noted that in response to the City of Tulsa's 2018 Equalitv htdicators Annual Report the
NAACP Legal Defense Fund and over fifty local communiry elected, and religious leaders sent a letter to Mayor
Bynum and the Tulsa City Council demanding reforms be immediately implemented, The letter stated, "it is simply
unacceptable to acknowledge racial inequities in City report and do little to nothing to address them." To date none
of the reforms requested in the letter have been implemented.

o

35

t3.35



o
e. Justice. The arrest rate of Black youth is nearly three-and-a-half times that of White

youth. Likewise, the arrest rate of Black adults is over twice that of White adults. Blacks

Tulsans are one-and-a half times more likely to be victims of police use of force than

White Tulsans and are five times more likely to be victims of offtcer use-of-force than

all other racial and ethnic groups.

f. Heatth. The rate of infant mortality among Black Tulsans is over four times that of the

rate among White Tulsans.

VUI. EXPLOITATION OF THE MASSACRE FOR DEFENDANTS' GAIN AT
PLAINTIFFS' EXPENSE

100. The Defendants City, County, Chamber, Sheriff, and National Guard participated in the

Massacre that destroyed the Greenwood neighborhood and community and in the discriminatory

schemes to thwart the complete rebuilding of Greenwood. They have and still actively

participate in schemes to prevent Greenwood's full reconstruction and harm North Tulsa's

residential and business coÍtmunities. Yet, Defendants are now appropriating the hauma and

terror suffered by the survivors and descendants of the Tulsa Massacre for their economic benefit

at Plaintiffs' expense.

l0l, Defendants have appropriated the history of the Massacre, using the names and

likenesses of survivors and descendants of Massacre victims, to exploit the horrific event in

which they actively participated and the subsequent trauma they caused and which continues to

this day. Their purpose is to promote tourism and economic development by appropriating the

name "Black Wall Street," along with its culfural and historical significance and through use of

the names and likenesses of survivors-predominantly for the benefit of White-owned or

controlled Tulsa businesses and organizations. Their appropriations not only result in their

o

36

,3.\



o
unjust enrichment; but rather than offering an apology and compensation for the damages they

caused, they are exacerbating the pain of the continued trauma they caused. For example' Tulsa

Mayor Bynum on May 3I,2020, during a televised program about the Tulsa Race Massacre,

shared the story of Dr. A.C. Jackson, without apology to Jackson's heir M. Adams or

acknowledgment of a debt owed to M. Adams or the Jackson family.

l0Z. The Defendants are working to bring business to Tulsa using the Massacre and Black

Wall Street as a "cultural tourism" draw The problem is not that the Defendants want to increase

the attraction to Tulsa, it is that they are doing so on the backs of those they destroyed, without

ensuring that the community and descendants of those subjected to the nuisance they created are

signifrcantly represented in the decision-making group and are direct beneficiaries of these

efforts. This exclusion appears intentional, not a happenstance.

103. The Defendants City, Chamber and County are partnering in the development of a

"cultural tourism" district that includes the $30 million Greenwood Rising History Center. The

Black residents of Greenwood and North Tulsa and survivors and descendants of those who were

killed or suffered losses in the 1921 Massacre are not guaranteed any income producing and

generating role in the project.

104. The Defendants' exploitation of the death, destruction, and disparities they created and

perpetuated for financial gain and failure to address the public nuisance they created that caused

significant injuries to the Greenwood neighborhood and North Tulsa community, have resulted in

their unjust enrichment at the expense of these communities and worsened the racial disparities

including the wealth divide.

I

37

13.3?



o
IX. CLAIM # 1: PUBLIC NUISANCE

All Defendants

105. Plaintiffs restate and incorporate paragraphs I through 104 as if fully set forth herein.

106. Defendants' above-described unlawful acts and omissions injured Plaintiffs and the

Greenwood and North Tulsa communities, endangered their comfort, repose, health, and safety

and rendered them insecure in life and in the use of their property.

L07. The above-described unlawful acts and omissions constitute a public nuisance, and such

nuisance has affected the entire Greenwood community and the Black population of North Tulsa

more generally.

108. Defendants' actions and violations of duty that caused the nuisance in the Greenwood

and the North Tulsa communities accelerate aging, shorten life expectancy" and cause Black

Tulsans to experience significant psychological and emotional tnjury.

109. Oklahoma statutes define a "nuisance'o as "unlawfully doing an act, or omitting to

perform a duty, which act or omission . . . annoys, injures or endangers the comfort, repose,

health, or safety of others . . . or . . . [i]n any way renders other persons insecure in life, or in the

useofproperty....""

2r Liam Knox, New Study Shows Racism May Shorten Black Americans' Lifespans, NBCN¡ws.cola (Feb. 5,2020,
2:06 P.M. C.S.T.),
httos://www.nbcnews.coJn/news/nbcblk/new-studv-shows-racism-mav-shorten-black-americansJifespans-n1 128351

; David H. Chae, et al., Racial Discrimination and Telomere Shortening Among African Americans, 39 Hr¡rr¡
Psvcs. 209 (2020\, available at https://os),cnet.apa.orgldoiLandingi'doi:10. l0-i702ô2Fhca0000832 (last accessed Feb.

10, 2020, l:38 P.M.); Sierra E. Carter, et al., The Effect of Early Discrimination on Accelerated Aging Among
African Americans, Sct¡ncsD¡tlv.covt (Sept. 30, 2019),

https://rvrvw.scicnccdaily.com,¡relcascsi20l9¡'09i 19093()l6l920.htm (last accessed Feb. 10, 2020,1:42 P.M.).

22 50 o.s. $ 1.

38

o

13,38



o
110. A nuisance is public, as opposed to private, if it "affects at the same time an entire

communify or neighborhood, or any considerable number of persons, although the extent of the

annoyance or damage inflicted upon the individuals may be unequal.t'

1l l. The public nuisance, as described above, is continuing, and has resultcd in an obstruction

of public rights including, but not limited to, the inherent right to life, liberty, the pursuit of

happiness, and the enjoyment of the gains of one's own industry, the right of equal protection

under the law, the right not to be placed in harm's way by Defendants' affirmative actions, the

right to security in health, the right to access public roads and thoroughfares, and the right to

enjoy reasonable use of property as guaranteed under the Oklahoma Constitution. Accordingly,

"[n]o lapse of time can legalize" the nuisance described herein.2o

ll2. As a direct and proximate result of the Massacre and the unlawful actions and omissions

of Defendants since the Massacre, Greenwood and North Tulsa Community residents continue to

face racially disparate treatment and City-created barriers to basic human needs, including jobs,

financial security, education, housing, justice, and health that annoy, injure, or endanger their

comfort, repose, health, or safety and render them insecure in life, or in the use of their property.

I13. Plaintiffs, who are African American residcnts and organizations of the Greenwood and

North Tulsa communities, or descendants of previous residents, have suffered injuries that are

unique to their status and their injuries are substantial in nahrre. Thus, Plaintiffs have authority

to bring this claim against Defendants for abatement of the public nuisance they created and to

be compensated for the injuries they caused to Plaintiffs.

t3 50 O.S. $ 2. In Oklahoma, "the nuisance or wrong does not have to affect the govemment or the entire community
of the state to be apublic nuisance." L. Mark Walker & Dale E. Cottingham,An Abridged Primer on the Lav,of
Public Nuisance, 30 Tulsa L.J. 355, 358 (1994) (citingFinkelstein v. City of Sapulpa,234P.18'7 (Okla. 1925)).
2o 50 o.s. $ 7.

39

o

13.31



o o

X. CLAIM # 2: UNJUST ENRICHMENT

Defendants Cify, County and Chamber

Il4. Plaintiffs restate and incorporate paragraphs I through I 13 as if fully set forth herein.

115. Defendants by their purported efforts to revitalize the Greenwood neighborhood and

communiry known as the "Black Wall Street," have appropriated the historic reputation of

"Black Wall Street" to their own hnancial and reputational benefit.

116. Defendants actively engaged in the destn¡ction of the Greenwood District and its

viability, prosperity, and national acclaim. It is inequitable for the Defendants to retain the

benefits they receive from marketing Black Wall Street rather than providing those benefits to

the Black residents and businesses in the Greenwood District and North Tulsa, with top priority

placed on those who are descendants of the Black residents who resided in the Greenwood

District at the time of the Massacre.

XI. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Plaintiffs pray this Court will grant the following:

1. A declaration that Defendants' policies, actions, and omissions druing and after the

1921 Massacre created a public nuisance as defined by Oklahoma law and that said

public nuisance is on-going and a public health emergency.

2. A declaration that the public nuisance created by Defendants is capable of being

abated through the expenditure of money and labor.

3. A declaration that the National Guard's conduct contributed to the creation of the

nuisance.

40

l3,qD



o
4. A declaration and order of abatement of the public nuisance by Defendants including

all costs necessary to abate such nuisance'

5. A declaration that the deployment of the national guard in l92l was inconsistent with

its charter.

6. An injunction prohibiting Defendants from using the likenesses of victims of the

Massacre, or of individuals and businesses destroyed in the Massacre, to their benefit

without fair and equitable compensation to the descendants of those likenesses; and if

there arc no living descendants, payment into the Tulsa Massacre Victims

Compensation Fund ("Victims Compensation Fund") created herein."

7. An injunction to prohibit the Defendants from receiving any monies or frnancial

benefit from the Greenwood Rising facility. Any monies designated for Defendants

shall be placed in the Victims Compensation Fund.

8. An injunction prohibiting Defendants receiving any money or other material benefits

from appropriating the legacy of the Massacre and the reputation of the Greenwood

District and neighborhood. Any fees or revenue due the Defendants associated with

providing licensing or other services to private or public goups to implement this

appropriation, including the Greenwood Rising History Center, shall be placed in the

Victims Compensation Fund.

g. An accounting of the unjust enrichment Defendants received by appropriating the

historic reputation and legacy of the Massacre and the ongoing nuisance to its benefit

while causing the nuisance and neglecting to repair the injuries caused to the

2s Plaintiffs propose creation of a fund modeled after those compensating victims of other mass casualty events such

as the fund created for victims of the September I l, 2001 tenorist attacks.

4T

o

l3:41



o
Greenwood District, and subsequently North Tulsa, by its breach of its fiduciary duty

to the residents of Greenwood and North Tulsa. The accounting shall include:

à. All money raised by the Defendants, through private and public sources,

since 2010 from marketing of the Greenwood District and neighborhood, or North

Tulsa, as the site of the Massacre.

b. All money received by the Defendantsn from public and private sources,

for use in the Greenwood neighborhood and community from June l,l92l to

1960.

c. All money received by the Defendants from public and private sources for

use in North Tulsa from 1960 to the present.26

d. All benefits, including money, Defendants received from licensing private

groups to engage in the appropriation of Black Wall Street and the Massacre.

e. All money dispersed by the Defendants to residents of the Greenwood

neighborhood and North Tulsa, or their descendants, to abate the nuisance from

May 3l, l92l to the present. This should not include money for which eligibility

is given to all Tulsa residents.

f. All money disbursed to directly benefit the Greenwood neighborhood and

community, subsequently North Tulsa, from May 3I,I92l to the present.

g. The value of the loss of life in the Greenwood neighborhood and

subsequently North Tulsa, as determined by licensed professional actuaries based

upon published mortality tables that can be reasonably attributable to Defendants'

o

2ó Specifically, monies received from public and private sources for use in zip codes 14106,74126,74130.

42

13,4L



o o
actions in causing the nuisance, including those who were killed on May 3l and

June l, 1921 to the present.

h. The value of the loss of private personal property stolen and looted from

Greenwood residents by Defendants from May 3l, l92l to the present.

i. The value of all claims made by survivors after the Massacre, whether to

private companies or to the City, County, and State of Oklahoma.

j. The value of the emotional and psychological trauma inflicted on the

residents of Greenwood, subsequently North Tulsa, by the nuisance created by

Defendants.

k. The difference in property values pre-Massacre and every ten ( l0) years

subsequent to the Massacre of property owned by residents of Greenwood and

North Tulsa.

l. The value of property lost due to Defendants' actions, including

Defendants' policies and practices, from May 3l, l92l to the present.

m. An audit of land records of property owned by residents of Greenwood on

May 30, L921, and purportedly owned by them or their descendants on June 2,

1921, and thereafter to ensure all proper title and ownership.

n. An assessment of the current value of the Greenwood District, both the

one destroyed in 1921 and the one that has been renamed by the Defendants, and

neighborhood including the realization of its l92l potential but for Defendants'

actions, including Defendants' policies and practices.

43

13.q3



o
10. Creation of the Victims Compensation Fund in which the valuation of the unjust

enrichment derived from the accounting shall be placed as well as all monies

determined by the Court to be necessary for the abatement of the nuisance based upon

the accounting outlined in paragraph 9 above. These funds shall be used for the sole

benefit of suwivors of the Massacre, Descendants of those killed, injured, or lost

property in the Massacre, and residents of the Greenwood and North Tulsa

Community who have lived in Greenwood or North Tulsa for at least 10 years, five of

which are consecutive, or were displaced from these communities at any time from

May 31, 1921, until the present in that order.

1l. Abating all the conditions in the Greenwood neighborhood and North Tulsa that are

aspects of the nuisance created by Defendants as demonstrated by the evidence

presented in this matter and not addressed by any other demand in this prayer for

relief including but not limited to:

a. Payment of all outstanding claims presented by Greenwood residents as a

direct result of losses sustained in the Massacre that were denied by Defendants or

insurance companies.

b. Properly development, including purchase of business and ¡esidential

property and repairs and upgrading of existing property, in the Greenwood

neighborhood or North Tulsa.

c. Development of mental health and educational programs by individuals

who live in Greenwood or North Tulsa fo¡ residents of Greenwood and North

o

44

BT+ï



o

Tulsa; or organizations with 75% of their leadership consisting of individuals who

live in Greenwood or North Tulsa.

d. Development of a quality of life program for individuals who live in

Greenwood or North Tulsa for emergency needs related to maintaining

employment, medical emergencies, and home maintenance

e. Creation of a land trust into which all vacant or undeveloped land in the

historical Greenwood neighborhood and North Tulsa community currently owned

by Defendants will be placed. Residents who are descendants of those who lost

homes or businesses in the Massacre shall be able to receive a parcel as close to

the size that was destroyed in the Massacre or taken for less than fair market value

during urban renewal,

f. Construction of a Level I Trauma Center hospital, including an urgent

care center, in Greenwood, in which Greenwood and North Tulsa residents are

given top priority for employment at all levels, that is named after and dedicated

to the Massacre murder victim and nationally acclaimed surgeon, Dr' A.C'

Jackson.

g. Immunity from all City of Tulsa and County of Tulsa taxes, fees,

assessments, and/or utility expenses for the next 99 years for residents of the City

of Tulsa or Tulsa County who are Massacre descendants. descendants of those

who were killed, injured or lost property in the Massacre.

h. Creation of a scholarship program for Massacre descendants of the

Greenwood District who lived in Greenwood on May 3l, l92l or for at least l0

o

45

,3.r{5



o o
years, with at least f,rve years consecutive, between May 31, l92I,and untilthe

present. The scholarship shall pay tuition, room and board, books, and fees to

attend a university, college, or other post high school education or training

institution in Oklahoma. This program shall last 99 years.

i. Black Tulsans who live in the Greenwood neighborhood and North Tulsa

communities shall have top priority and fair representation reflective of their

percentage of the Tulsa population, among recipients of City contracts, with those

who are descendants of Massacre victims having the highest priority for the next

99 years.

12. The plaintiffs shall be awarded punitive damages as allowed by law. These punitive

damages shall be added to the Tulsa Massacre Victims Compensation Fund.

13. The plaintiffs shall be awarded attorneys' fees and expenses.

14. The plaintiffs shall be awarded any and all further relief this Court deems just and

equitable, including as well as pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the appropriate

lawful rate.

Respectfully submitted,

SOLOMONSIMMONSLAW
ì

Damario S

601 S. Boulder, 600

Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74119

918-551-8999 - Phone

918-582-6106 - Facsimile

dss@solomonsimmons. com

oBA# 20340

46

l3.qk



o

27 Reinstatement to active status from reti¡ed status pending.

47

BRYAN & TERRILL

J. Spencer Bryan, OBA # 19419

Steven J. Terrill, OBA #20869

3015 E. Skelly Dr., Suite 400

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74105

(918) 935-2777 - Phone

(918) 935-2777 - Facsimile
j sbryan@bryanterrill.com
sj tenill @bryantenill. com

Eric J. Miller, BAP.#194237

Professor and Leo J. O'Brien Fellow
Burns 307

919 Albany Street

Los Angeles, CA 90015

(213) 736 -1175 - Offrce
eric.miller@lls,edu

Adjoa A. Aiyetoro, BAR #26971
Professor Emerita, UALR Wm. H. Bowen School

of Law"
60 L Street NIE #1018
(202) 842-2039
aaaiyetoro@ualr.edu

Pending Pro Hac Vice Admission

Maynard M. Henry Sr., BAR #VS839266
Maynard M. Henry, Sr., Attomey At Law, P.C.

10332 Main Street, #308

Fairfax, Virginia 22030

(703) 593-2773 - phone

(800) 234-6112 - Facsimile
mhenryesquire@cox.net

Pending Pro Hac Vice Adrnission

o

13,q7



oo

ATTORNEY LIEN CLATMED

ruRY TRIAL DEMANDED

JOHNSON ICEPHAS LAW

Lashandra Peoples-Johnson, OBA# 33995

Cordal Cephas, OBA#33857

3939 S. Harvard Ave. Suite 238

Tulsa, Oklahoma, 74135

(918)877-0262 -Phone

lashandra@j ohnsoncephaslaw. c om

cordal@j ohnsoncephaslaw. com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS

48

17.Ll'g



Proposed
2021 SCHEDULE

Tulsa Metropolitan Area Planning Gommission
(TMAPC)

Regular meetings of the TMAPC are held on the first and third Wednesday of each month at 1:00
p.m'. in the One"Technology Center, 175E.2nd Street, City Council Charírbers,2nd Level, Tulsa,
Oklahoma.

Work sessions of the TMAPC are held, as necessary, typically prior to regular TMAPC business in
the One Technology Center, 175 E.2nd Street, in a room location to be announced at the time an
agenda is posted.

JANUARY

6

20

APRIL
7

21

J U LY

7

21

OCTOBER
6

20

FEBRUARY

3

17

MAY

5

19

AUGUST
4

l8

NOVEMBER
3

17

MARCH

3

17

JUNE
2

16

SEPTEMBER
1

15

DECEMBER
1

15

9t30t2020

lq. I




